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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”)
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE”)
BERBERZMERAATEIMADARR(AIRRKR]) 2%

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only after due
and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising
from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sau San Tong
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors of the Company, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive; (2) there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or in
this report misleading.
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CORPORATE PROFILE A G

Founded in July 2000, Sau San Tong Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have established itself as one of the leading
beauty and slimming services providers in Hong Kong and Mainland
China over the past years through the introduction of a series of
innovative health and beauty treatment and products as well as the
provision of the most professional and superior beauty and slimming
solution to our customers. The Group was listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock
Code: 8200) in November 2003 and is the first listed beauty and
slimming company in Hong Kong.

The Group currently has ten beauty and slimming centres with five in
Hong Kong, one in Macau and four in Mainland China including one in
Beijing, two in Shanghai and one in Shenzhen. All these centers are
under two brand names “Sau San Tong” (original brand of the Group)
and “IPRO” (acquired in 2015). All these centers provide unique all-
rounded personalized beauty and slimming services, health
management and anti-ageing treatment programs etc.. Combining the
effective treatments and comprehensive follow up, all programmes
enable customers to achieve their desired skin quality, weight and body
shape in the healthiest manner.

The Group has been widely recognized and highly praised for its
outstanding products and services, the Group was proud to receive “The
Base Strategic Brand Award” by Strategist Magazine, “The Most
Valuable Companies in Hong Kong — Asia Most Reliable Beauty
Group” by Mediazone Limited, “The Creditable Business Awards of
Asian Beauty Industry” from the Hong Kong Hair & Beauty Merchants
Association and is honoured to be the “Caring Company” for 10
consecutive years.

To further diversify its businesses, the Group has acquired a distribution
business in Mainland China in 2005, which distributes P&G’s personal
care products in Shanghai, and cosmetic and skin care products with
famous brands like SK-II and Olay in the eastern and western part of
Mainland China. With years of development, the distribution network is
well developed and with the additions of international famous brands,
the growth of turnover as well as the number of distribution points is
impressive.
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CORPORATE PROFILE 2 &

In recent years, the Group realized that e-Commerce is flourishing but
the beauty and slimming market is still untapped, the business potential
is unpredictable. Therefore, starting from 2012, the Group invests in
developing an one-stop online booking platform at www.beautyu.com
to pave the way for entering into the e-Commerce new Era.

In March 2015, the Group commenced a new business segment of
investment in securities, with a view that such business will diversify the
income stream of the Group and broaden its revenue base. It may also
improve the capital usage efficiency and generate additional investment
returns on the idle funds of the Company.

In May 2016, the Group commenced another new business segment of
provision of money lending services. The Group provided both secured
and unsecured loans with terms ranging from several months to 1 year.
For unsecured loans, the Group’s targeted corporations and individuals
are small to medium sized corporations which include both listed and
non-listed corporations and businessmen in various industries. For
secured loans, the Group’s targeted corporations and individuals are
those with properties for mortgage. This money lending business will
diversify the income stream of the Group and broaden its revenue base
in order to enhance the capital use of the Company as well as the
interests of the Company and its shareholders on the overall.

With the existing beauty and slimming business, product distribution
business, franchise co-operation business and e-Commerce business,
the Group is well-equipped to provide the best-in-class services to our
customers.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP A& BB FELRME

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other revenue and net income
Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative
expenses

Profit from operations
Finance costs

Share of (losses)/profits of joint
ventures

Profit before taxation

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Non-current assets
Current assets

Current liabilities

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity
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2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E2—t§F —T-RF ZT—HF —T—@HmF =—ZT—=
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET FET FEL FEL
2,228,417 1,693,550 1,548,256 1,362,916 1,141,662
(1,958,591)  (1,509,127)  (1,335,614)  (1,189,750) (974,098)
269,826 184,423 212,642 173,166 167,564
7,022 21,890 18,225 19,355 4,686
(93,875) (83,783) (80,620) (85,050) (83,863)
(116,120 (103,377) (97,964) (85,223) (71,829
66,853 19,153 52,283 22,248 16,558
(4,157) (3,165) (4,424 (3,647) (1,798)
- — (2,047) (3,669) 668
62,696 15,988 45,812 14,932 15,428
(25,143) (11,400 (7,818) (7,287) (7,870)
37,553 4,588 37,994 7,645 7,558
171,231 108,834 34,809 41,715 42,252
1,122,110 683,855 560,996 368,899 290,301
(355,758) (217,402) (169,054) (162,776) (162,435)
766,352 466,453 391,942 206,123 127,866
(3,761) (22,504) (41,456) (70,078) (20,837)
933,822 552,783 385,295 177,760 149,281
921,458 537,907 366,541 153,400 125,514
12,364 14,876 18,754 24,360 23,767
933,822 552,783 385,295 177,760 149,281
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT F[EHR T

| am pleased to present the annual report for the year ended 31 March
2017 (the “Year Under Review”) to the shareholders of Sau San Tong
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) on behalf of the board of Directors (the
“Board”).

2017 was a year of recovery for the Group and the entire retail and
services industry in Hong Kong. Economic growth of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”) continued to slow down. In
2017, the PRC economy showed signs of deceleration after years of
amazing growth, with the growth in gross domestic production dropping
10 6.7% from 6.9% of last year, marking the lowest level in the last 25
years. Consumer sentiments in the China luxury retail market were also
depressed by the fluctuations on the capital market in China. However,
both the economy and stock markets in Hong Kong continued to
recover. As a result the revenues and performance of the beauty and
slimming business continued to recover. In addition, the local financial
market performed very well which improve the performance of the
Group’s securities investments business, and recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$85,112,000 during the Year Under Review. In spite
of the challenges faced by the operating environment of the retail and
financial markets in China, the product distribution business of the
Group in China managed to attain a significant growth of approximately
28.8% from approximately HK$1,572,106,000 of last year to
approximately HK$2,024,349,000 of the Year Under Review.

Apart from carrying out its core business in the professional approach
consistently during the Year Under Review, the Group has also
proactively identified different opportunities of acquisitions and
development. In September 2016, the Group has completed acquisition
of a commercial property located in the prime business area in Tsim
Sha Tsui. Acquisition of properties enables the Group to carry out its
operation of shops from a longer term of strategic view to minimise the
risk of fluctuations in rentals, significantly cut down rental expenses,
enhance the assets and/or revenue bases of the Group, and to bring
potential of capital appreciation to the Group. In the mid- to long-term,
it can also improve the operating results of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT F[E#R &

In respect of financial performance during the Year Under Review, the
Group’s overall turnover increased from approximately
HK$1,693,550,000 (including revenues from securities investments of
HK$31,639,000) in the previous year to approximately
HK$2,228,417,000 (including revenues from securities investments of
HK$85,112,000) in the Year Under Review, representing a 31.6%
increase. Contribution to gross profit for the Year Under Review was
approximately HK$269,826,000, with an increase of approximately
HK$85,403,000 as compared with approximately HK$184,423,000 for
the same period last year. The increase was mainly due to an increase
in revenues from the product distribution business in China and
securities investments. Revenues from the product distribution business
in China increased from approximately HK$1,572,106,000 of last year
to approximately HK$2,024,349,000 of the Year Under Review.
Revenues from securities investments also increased from
approximately HK$31,639,000 of last year to approximately
HK$85,112,000 of the Year Under Review. As a result, the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company turnaround from a loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$3,744,000 to profit attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$26,071,000. During the Year Under Review, general
and administrative expenses amounted to HK$116,120,000,
representing a increase of approximately 12.3% or HK$12,743,000
from approximately HK$103,377,000 for the same period last year. The
selling and distribution cost increased by 12.0% or HK$10,092,000
from approximately HK$83,783,000 in last year to approximately
HK$93,875,000 of the Year Under Review. Due to its dedicated efforts
in controlling the operating costs, the Group was able to maintain a
relatively low level of growth in expenses despite of significant growth in
the turnover.

The care we showed to our customers, the professionalism we
demonstrated, the dedication we gave to our service and the industrial
ethics and conduct are Sau San Tong’s tenet, have been well
recognized by our customers and the industry and helped establish
our position in the industry. While not complacent with our
accomplishments, we have been incessantly researching and
developing more effective and personalised new treatments and
products for our valued customers by integrating our extensive
experience accumulated through the years with advanced technologies.
On top of expanding our business, we put equal emphasis on corporate
governance, risk management and social services. These corporate
social responsibilities are of utmost importance to our sustainable
development in the long run. In the effort to building a harmonious
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT F[EHR T

society and a prosperous future, Sau San Tong always proactively
demonstrates its care for the community, supports various welfare
activities and encourages its employees to participate in various
voluntary services. For a number of consecutive years, Sau San Tong
has been awarded the “Caring Company” logo, which exemplifies our
continuous care and support to the society.

Looking ahead into 2017, Hong Kong economy and retail business is
expected to continue its recovery. Although the increase in interest rate
in United States may ultimately led to increase in Hong Kong interest
rate which may have negative impact on consumer confidence in Hong
Kong, the Group will strive to capture any business opportunities
available. We will continue to examine the situation carefully and adjust
the Group’s development and investment strategies in the effort of
diversifying its business, which in turn will enable us to respond to the
ever-changing market environment and maximise the interests of the
Group and our shareholders as a whole.

Lastly, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders,
my fellow members in the Board and our hardworking staff, as well as
our loyal customers, business partners and other stakeholders for their
valuable contribution and strong support for the Group. | would also like
to take this opportunity to welcome our new members, Mr. Lau Wai
Leung, Alfred as an non-executive director of the Company and to give
my heartfelt appreciation to our ex-independent non-executive director
Ms. Hui Yat Lam who have resigned in the Year Under Review, for their
long-standing support and contribution to the Group. With our
persistent dedication and relentless efforts, | am confident that the
Group will be able to overcome any obstacle ahead and adhere to its
vision and mission to bring rewarding returns to all shareholders.

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BB Es 5Kk o4

Business Review

In 2017, the economic growth rate in Hong Kong was 4.3%, indicating
a continuing economic recovery. As a result, the beauty and slimming
industry in Hong Kong continue to recover. The Group successfully
leveraged on its excellent brand visibility and solid customer base in
both Hong Kong and China to capture the opportunity of this recovery.

For the year ended 31 March 2017 (the “Year Under Review”), the
Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$2,228,417,000,
representing an increase of 31.6% from approximately
HK$1,693,550,000 of last year. This was mainly attributable to a
significant growth of 28.8% in the contributions from the distribution
business and 40.5% in the contributions from the core business of
provision of beauty and slimming services. In the recent year, given that
the Hong Kong population maintains the predominance of females over
males and that many Hong Kong females belong to the high-earning
group, females have become an important consumer group for the
Hong Kong retail market with the beauty and slimming services and
products being increasingly viewed as daily necessities more than
luxuries. On the other hand, the demand for beauty and slimming
services and products in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
was stimulated by the increasing middle-class population. The Group is
positive that still more prosperous results can be accomplished by riding
on the industry leadership in Hong Kong and China and sound
reputation and customer confidence it has built over the years. The
business of distribution sales of cosmetic and skin care products of
Shanghai Dong Fang Ri Hua Sales Co. Ltd. (“Dong Fang”) also have
significant growth momentum as a result of successful strategy through
expansion in online platform sales, generating a contribution to the
turnover of approximately HK$2,024,349,000, up by 28.8% from
approximately HK$1,572,106,000 of last year, forming another stable
source of revenues for the Group.

Profit for the year increased significantly by 718.50% from approximately
HK$4,588,000 of 2016 to approximately HK$37,553,000, as the
securities investments business brought along net realised and
unrealised gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$58,527,000 and HK$26,585,000, respectively, in the
Year Under Review while merely approximately HK$25,977,000 of net
realised gains and approximately HK$5,662,000 of net unrealised gains
were recorded in last year due to a sluggish stock market in 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BB Es KR o4

As at 31 March 2017, cash and bank balances increased to
approximately HK$522,045,000 (2016: approximately
HK$263,867,000), whereas liquidity ratio (represented by a ratio of
current assets over current liabilities) was 3.15:1 (2016: 3.15:1),
reflecting the adequacy of financial resources.

Beauty, Slimming and Spa Centres

During the Year under review, Hong Kong economy continued to
recover but China economy has decelerating economic growth, as well
as other negative factors such as increasing costs of sales, rising
salaries and inflating rentals, the beauty, slimming and spa business
was unavoidably affected to some extent in the Year Under Review.
Despite that, the Group recorded a 40.5% increase in the overall
turnover as compared to last year as it successfully brought its
fundamental advantages to the full play to resist the industry cold snap
under the outstanding leadership of the management. This was a
tremendous encouragement to the Group amidst the severe business
environment at the present and testified to the solid strengths of the
Group.

The Group has a long history in the operation of beauty, slimming and
spa centres in Hong Kong and the PRC. With extensive experience in
the industry and committed efforts for innovations, the Group has
continuously introduced sophisticated services and products of the
highest quality for its customers, winning the long-term favour of its
customers for its beauty and slimming products and services while
successfully establishing brand advantages and customer loyalty. To
further fortify its leading position in the industry, the Group has
introduced a number of new beauty, slimming and anti-ageing
treatments and machineries during the year under review.
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As the first listed beauty and slimming company in Hong Kong, the
Group has consistently uphold the principles of quality products,
professional services and honest operation. Backed by the strengths of
the brand, the Group has won numerous awards over the years and
enjoys sound reputation in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC. It was
strongly trusted by its customers. With increasingly intensive market
competition, some industry players have resorted to all possible means
including dishonest sales methods to secure their market shares.
Coupled with various beauty and slimming incidents during recent years
and seriously weak and outdated government supervision, customer
confidence has been impaired. This, however, has at the same time
encouraged the customer demand for quality beauty and slimming
services, enabling the remarkable increase in the turnover from the
beauty, slimming and spa centres of the Group in the Year Under
Review, proving the market’s recognition for the quality products and
services provided by the Group. Maintaining the strategy of winning with
quality, the Group will continue to leverage on its professional and
outstanding beauty and slimming technologies, bring its brand visibility
to the full play, and operate with honest and honour, in order to win over
the consumers’ trust, secure a wider business coverage in the high-end
market and thereby realise sustainable growth and return.

Distribution Business in the PRC

Product distribution in the PRC is another core business of the Group
and is carried out by the Group’s subsidiary, Dong Fang. Dong Fang is
one of the top three distributors of P&G in the greater China in terms of
average sales in the PRC, and is the top distributor in the East China
area. It is responsible for the overall distribution coverage in the
Shanghai region and provides supply and sales services to its
customers via various channels, including online platforms, electrical
appliances merchants, department stores channel, local modernised
retail malls, supermarkets, small-sized supermarkets, convenient stores,
maternity stores and cosmetic stores headquartered or regionally
headquartered in Shanghai. Products involved include OLAY skincare,
Head & Shoulders, Vidal Sassoon, Pantene, Rejoice, Pampers, Crest,
Safeguard, Whisper, Ariel, Oral-B and Gillette. Moreover, the Company
is responsible for the SK-II business in East and West China areas,
covering Shanghai city, Zhejiang Province, Jiangsu Province, Anhui
Province, Henan Province, Shanxi Province, Sichuan Province and
Chongqing city (8 provinces and cities in total). In the Year Under
Review, Dong Fang has successful expand its sales through online
platforms which resulted in significant growth in revenue.
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Health, Beauty and Related Products

The Group spares no efforts in keeping itself abreast of time and
marching at the forefront of the market. Through heavily investing in the
development and introduction of products embedding advanced
technologies and safe ingredients to enrich its portfolio of health and
beauty products, the Group targets to bring to its customers a wider
array of sophisticated product choices. This will in turn further enhance
the attraction of the brand name Sau San Tong and ensure the Group’s
leading market position.

Going forward, the Group will continue to launch different safe and
effective products that meet the different needs of its customers,
helping them to achieve beauty in a healthy way. We believe that the
segment of distribution of health and beauty products will continue to
make a stable contribution to the Group’s results in the time ahead.

Franchise Co-operation Business in the PRC

Building on its successful business in Hong Kong and a strong brand
visibility, the Group started venturing into the enormous market in the
PRC back in early 2004 and effectively laid a solid foundation in the
beauty and slimming industry in China ahead of its counterparts,
reaping a sizeable market share. Envying the outstanding achievement
of “Sau San Tong”, competitors, imitators and even fakers began to
spring up like mushroom on the PRC market where the entry barrier to
the industry was relatively low. To tackle the situation, apart from
establishing high-end flagship centres in China to help clearly identify
ourselves, the Group specially combined the name of our founder, Dr.
Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley with its brand name to form the new brand of
“REMME S E “ to establish the uniqueness of the brand, using it to
fully explore the PRC market while letting the market and consumer
more easily distinguish the genuine “Sau San Tong” brand and its
inherent quality and professional products and services, protecting the
consumers’ rights. Since the efforts to developing the franchise co-
operation business in full sail since December 2010, we have entered
into more than 180 franchise co-operation contracts as at 31 March
2017. The rapid growth in the number of franchise co-operation shops
also put “GR FHHE & & on the top position in the beauty and slimming
industry in China.

RE - XBRHEBER

AEBEZRNKERBLE EETHER
e ARBEEBERENFELIIESRES
TREEMBERZ 2D ZER WNEE
HRREEXFREREES REETXEZE
TEZEMER UME—FRATESE]
AR Z WA N RASEREN TS 2 E
R A IVA

BEAR AEBRBEEEHERETF,S
BEXR YELXE SRZER KREETF
AR A - HAIEE RIEEE
REROHEOBHIRAKREERAEEEXE
EHRERR -

TEMBEEXHE

REEBRZRSEK 2N R D2 ESH
FZE BER_ETNFYEEFRZEAT
i AEREERE CERTRBBITERRE
BEM BERAMSEEEXR -BRMES
Bl 7HBER METEPIERE £ E
Mz LteBmPFHF EFEEZLERES
NREEH - BRE  AEERBEBARF
BRI % M B & PR R LA B ST B P b
SO FRBAIMAREMEL 2 5L HE
EREEgEs NMmELRE - EB T
EIEREMeHE I 22T RE2ERAATEH
mE BMEREBERERAIBFELEE
GE|mBERAE-BEEEREXE ZEMER
HREEEERE AKEBE T —ZF
TZRAREEHRAANBEEREL BE=Z
—+tF=A=+—H8 BHMEFIZHBE180
DMBEEESHN NMBASIEEHEERREE
ZRIBLIEREMESEIES ATPEHERR
WEITE BT -

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 8 B E#ZBRER A A

Annual Report 2016/17 FER &

15



16

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BB Es KR o4

BeautyU Online Booking Platform

Following its successful establishment of a huge franchise co- operation
business in China, the Group once again stepped ahead of its
competitors in launching “BeautyU” (www.beautyu.com) in 2012, an
online beauty and slimming service booking platform, through which its
customers can conveniently and easily order products and make
appointments for different services. This platform out of the traditional
hard-selling and prepayment business model was warmly welcomed by
the retail customers of the Group. Moreover, this platform also functions
as a channel to solicit beauty and slimming service providers to join,
helping to propel the Group’s business in the PRC.

Securities Investments Business

As a move to expand its diversified business, the Group has
commenced the new segment of securities investments business in
March 2015 to put the idle funds of the Company into long- and short-
term investments in listed securities in Hong Kong and other recognised
securities markets in the overseas as well as wealth management
products purchased from banks and other financial institutions, with a
view to generate additional income outside its retail business, to widen
its revenue base and minimise the risks of the Group on the overall, in
order to enhance the capital use of the Company as well as the interests
of the Company and its shareholders on the overall. During the Year
Under Review, the Group has recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$85,112,000 from its investments in the Hong Kong stock market,
encompassing investments in a high variety of industries including
construction , real estates , information technology, software services,
finance, industry and education, with the objective of minimising the
risks while maximising the return. As at 31 March 2017, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss amounted to approximately
HK$139,746,000.

Money Lending Business

During the Year Under Review, the Group commenced new business of
money leading in order to better utilise the idle funds to generate
additional returns to the Company. The Group provided both secured
and unsecured loans with terms ranging from several months to 1 year.
The Group has recorded a revenue of approximately HK$5,947,000 for
the year. As at 31 March 2017, the loans receivable from money lending
business amounted to approximately HK$59,921,000.
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Acquisition of Properties

During the Year Under Review, the Group leveraged on its solid
strengths and adequate funds to acquire the entire floor of a commercial
building in a prime location in Tsim Sha Tsui at a consideration of
HK$41,000,000. On the one hand, the property can be used for own
use purpose in the future when the rentals go up for establishment of a
beauty, slimming and spa centre to spare the Group the issue of
escalating rentals. On the other hand, it can be used as an investment
for appreciation and enhancing the quality of the Group’s assets. The
acquisition was completed on 28 September 2016.

Outlook

The Group played the strengths it has long established to attain a
significant growth in turnover in the Year Under Review with quality
service and products, honest operation, excellent reputation and good
words of mouth. In face of the economic recovery in Hong Kong and
continuing economic growth in China, the Group will continue to
consistently maintain a positive attitude to explore, research and
develop more sophisticated and effective health and beauty products
and professional treatments, in order to meet the pursuit and demand
for beauty and health by the ladies in Hong Kong and China and in turn
achieve stable growth and enhance the performance of the Group’s
core business. Meanwhile, the Group is also devoted to the training of
its people, and has specifically devised training courses targeted at the
employees of the franchise co-operation shops on the mainland market,
with the aim to ensure the consistence in the quality of operation and
services of the beauty, slimming and spa centres across different
places.

In addition, parallel to its focus on the beauty and slimming business,
the Group will also utilise the abundant funds on hand to identify new
investment opportunities, including appropriate and timely investments
in securities, money lending and properties, with the objectives of
generating additional return, broadening its revenue base, enhance the
efficiency of capital use and further promote the performance of the
Group in different areas. The Group will meticulously select sound
investments with high return potentials. Moving forward, the Group will
concentrate on bring its strengths, customer base, reputation and other
advantages into full play in order to actualise stable growth of its core
business. This will be complemented with careful investments in the
effort to bring along more rewarding returns to our investors.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

As a leader in the beauty and slimming industry, the Group is dedicated
to leading the way in enhancing the safety level of the sector. We have
always attached great importance to the safety of our services and
products and exercises stringent quality control on its products. The
machines and materials used in our treatment services have passed
vigorous safety tests and attained international safety standards. Beauty
and slimming consultants and technicians of both the direct operations
and franchise co-operation businesses of the Group all received
professional training to ensure the provision of safe services of high
quality. Moreover, the Group is the first slimming company in Hong
Kong to set up a free health services hotline to provide consultation
services on weight management. This move is targeted to take care of
different walks of society through suggesting to those looking to
improve their body the correct ways for a balanced diet, free of charge.

Awards

Widely recognised and highly praised for its outstanding

products and services, the Group was proud to receive “The
Creditable Business Awards of Asian Beauty Industry” from
the Hong Kong Hair & Beauty Merchants Association
during the Year Under Review, and is honoured to be the

“Caring Company” for ten consecutive years.

Charity

Since its establishment, the Group has been actively partaking in charity
affairs and has set up the “Sau San Tong Volunteer Team” in an effort
to support different charity initiatives. During the Year Under Review, the
Group continued to make regular charity donations in the pursuit for
inner beauty, alongside with its yearning for physical perfection.
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Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and bank balances as at 31 March 2017 were approximately
HK$522,045,000 compared to approximately HK$263,867,000 as at
31 March 2016. Gearing ratio of the Group was 7.3% (2016: 4.4%),
based on total of bank borrowings of approximately HK$67,731,000
(2016: approximately HK$24,055,000) and the net assets of
approximately HK$933,822,000 (2016: approximately
HK$552,783,000). As at 31 March 2017, liability of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$359,519,000 (2016:
HK$239,906,000), including trade and other payables of approximately
HK$169,387,000 (2016: approximately HK$103,894,000) arising mainly
from the daily operations of our subsidiary, Dong Fang, deferred income
of approximately HK$23,189,000 (2016:
HK$18,990,000), and bank borrowings of approximately
HK$67,731,000 (2016: approximately HK$24,055,000) arising mainly
from the trading activities of Dong Fang. The liability is intended to be

approximately

approximately

financed by internal resources of the Group. The liquidity ratio of the
Group represented by a ratio of current assets over current liabilities
was 3.15:1 (2016: 3.15:1),
resources.

reflecting the adequacy of financial

Pursuant to the share consolidation made by the Company which
completed on 23 September 2016, every two (2) issued and unissued
shares of HK$0.01 each was consolidated into one (1) consolidated
share of HK$0.02 each (“Share Consolidation”). Details of the Share
Consolidation are set out in the Company’s circular dated 5 September
2016.

Pursuant to the special resolution passed in the extraordinary general
meeting on 23 January 2017, the authorised capital of the Company
increased from HK$100,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000 shares to
HK$400,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000 shares.
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Pursuant to the rights issue made by the Company which completed on
3 March 2017, the Company issued 3,642,271,908 shares in the rights
issue on the basis of two (2) offer share for every one (1) share held on
the record date at the subscription price of HK$0.10 per rights issue
share (the “Rights Issue”), resulting in net proceeds of approximately
HK$352,000,000. Details of the Rights Issue are set out in the
Company’s prospectus dated 9 February 2017.

Convertible Notes

Pursuant to the subscription agreement entered into between the
Company and Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (“Dr. Cheung”) and an
ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting held on
6 December 2013, the Company issued a convertible note in the
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 to Dr. Cheung (“Subscription
Convertible Note”) on 20 December 2013. The Subscription Convertible
Note is with 2% interest rate per annum and is due in 3 years from the
date of issue and convertible into ordinary shares at an adjusted
conversion price of HK$0.272 (adjusted for the Share Consolidation
which was completed on 23 September 2016) per conversion share,
subject to adjustments. Up to the date of this report, the Company has
repaid all outstanding balance of Subscription Convertible Note.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent approach towards its treasury policies.
The Group evaluates the financial condition of its customers regularly to
mitigate the credit risk. The average outstanding days of the Group’s
accounts receivable was maintained at below 90 days. To manage the
liquidity risk, the Group closely monitors its liquidity position to ensure
the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments
and to ensure the fulfillment of its funding requirements. The Group has
no investments in derivatives, bonds or structured financial products.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since the assets, liabilities, revenue and payments of the Group are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi, the Group
considers that there was no significant exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuations.

Use of Proceeds

The Group completed the Rights Issue on 3 March 2017 resulting in net
proceeds of approximately HK$352,000,000. Details of the use of
proceeds is as follows:

—  approximately HK$40,000,000 was used for the development of
the Group’s money lending business;

—  approximately HK$20,000,000 was used for repayment of the
outstanding amount due to Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley under
the Convertible Note; and

—  approximately HK$30,000,000 was used for the development of
securities trading business.

The remaining proceeds of approximately HK$262,000,000 was
unutilised at the date of this report.

Except for the above proceeds from the Rights Issue, all other proceeds
from previous fund raising exercises have been fully utilised as at the
date of this report.

Net Assets

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s net assets amounted to
approximately HK$933,822,000 compared to approximately
HK$552,783,000 as at 31 March 2016. There are no charges on the
Group’s assets as at 31 March 2017 and 2016.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had 522 (2016: 469) employees.
During the year, the Group’s total staff costs amounted to approximately
HK$96,298,000 (2016: approximately HK$90,036,000).

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of the
performance and experience of individual employee and are in line with
practices of local markets in which the Group operates. In addition to
salary, the Group also offers to its employees other fringe benefits
including share option, provident fund and medical benefits.

Share Option Scheme

The Group has a share option scheme whereby qualified participants
may be granted options to acquire shares of the Company, under the
terms and conditions stipulated therein, as incentives or rewards for
their contributions to the Group. As at 31 March 2017 there is an
aggregate of 36,422,718 outstanding options to subscribe for
36,422,718 shares of the Company pursuant to the share option
scheme adopted on 24 February 2016.

Future Plans

It is in the view of the Group that with the changing of beauty and
slimming services and products into necessities, coupled with the
continued growth of the middle class in China, the demand for quality
products and services will remain on the upward momentum in both
Hong Kong and the PRC. As such, the Group will continue to spare no
efforts in the development and introduction of different sophisticated
and innovative treatment, products and machines of supreme quality to
nurture our portfolio of services and products into one that is diversified,
accommodated to market demands and attractive to new customers.
We will however adopt a more careful approach under the uncertainties
in the macroeconomy and operating environment at present.
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Seeing the increasing influence of the social media in Hong Kong and
the rapid growth in the e-tail market in China, the Group takes
e-commerce as an inevitable path to success. The Group plans to
increase its promotional efforts on different social media platforms in
order to increase the awareness of the younger generation for our
brands name Sau San Tong and IPRO, and thereby broaden the
Group’s customer base. In terms of the PRC market, the Group will
continue to capitalise on the innovative business model of its online
beauty and slimming appointment platform “BeautyU”, which will serve
to fortify the Group’s industry position, and at the same time improving
brand visibility of our brand name on the internet at relatively low cost,
enhance the experience of making purchases and bookings for our
retail customers, and provide a highly accessible platform to our
potential partners of beauty and slimming service providers to promote
entrepreneurial opportunities.

The Group will also increase the investment of the abundant funds on
hand into securities, money lending, properties and other opportunities.
Apart from the generation of additional investment return, it can also
open up new revenue bases and promote the efficiency of capital use,
and thereby procure more rewarding return to our shareholders.
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Directors

Executive Director

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley (“Dr. Cheung”), aged 42, is the
Chairman of the Board, an Executive Director of the Company and also
the chairman of the Company’s nomination committee. Dr. Cheung
founded the Group in 2000, and over the years, by virtue of her over 16
years’ expertise in beauty and slimming industry and profound
understanding and unique vision on the market, she can fully capitalize
on the trends and changes in the market and leading the Group
successfully developed into a famous and reputable brand in Greater
China. Dr. Cheung holds an honorary doctorate degree from Armstrong
University, U.S.A. and an Executive Master degree of Business
Administration from Peking University. Dr. Cheung is responsible for the
overall stewardship of the Group which includes directions and
formulating strategies. With her management style and innovative
promotional strategies, she achieved various accomplishments and
leading the Group to a new height. She also holds directorships in
various subsidiaries of the Company.

Dr. Cheung is an Honorary President of the Federation of Beauty
Industry (H.K.) and she has been appointed as a member of the Beauty
Industry Training Advisory Committee of Education Bureau —
Qualifications Framework in 20086. In the past, Dr. Cheung was awarded
as one of the “100 Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs in China” by the
“Women Entrepreneurs’ Association of China”. She is also one of the
few Hong Kong awardees and one of the youngest awarded
entrepreneurs. Subsequently, Dr. Cheung has been awarded as one of
the “World Outstanding Chinese”.

In respect of social charity, Dr. Cheung is an Honorary Consultant of
The Against Elderly Abuse of Hong Kong. Dr. Cheung has founded the
Shirley Cheung Charity Foundation, which is granted as an approved
charitable organization. As a Chairman of the Foundation, she leads the
team to serve and feedback to the community in every minute and every
moment.
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Mr. MUI Wai Sum (“Mr. Mui”), aged 29, is an Executive Director and
joined the Group in December 2014. He is also a member of the
Company’s nomination committee. He also holds directorships in
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Mui is a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration Degree with major in
General Finance from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Mui
had worked in Corporate Restructuring Services for an international
accounting firm. He has extensive experience in corporate finance,
corporate restructuring and securities investment. As at the date of this
report, Mr. Mui is an executive director of LEAP Holdings Group Limited
(a company listed on the Main Board of the Exchange, stock code:
1499).

Non-executive Director

Mr. Takashi TOGO (“Mr. Togo”), aged 53, holds a bachelor degree of
Economics from Hitotsubashi University in Japan. He has over 11 years’
experience in foreign equities investment. He was the investment
manager of several investment funds in Japan including Yasuda Trust &
Banking Corporation Limited and Fuji Investment Management
Company Limited. He also specializes in merger and acquisitions, his
clients cover major reputable Japan corporations. Mr. Togo has been
serving as the chief executive officer of a consultancy firm in Japan
since 2000. He is also currently participating in a few big property
projects in Tokyo and Osaka.

Mr. Togo is currently an executive director of China Information
Technology Development Limited (a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Exchange, stock code: 8178).
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Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. HONG Po Kui, Martin (“Mr. Hong”), aged 67, is an Independent
Non-executive Director and joined the Group in June 2002. He is
responsible for giving advices to the board of Directors and shareholders
of the Company. He is also the chairman of the Company’s audit
committee, a member of the Company’s remuneration committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Hong is a practicing solicitor and a notary
public in Hong Kong. He has been practicing as a solicitor of the High
Court of Hong Kong for over 36 years and is the senior partner of
Messrs Lau, Chan & Ko, Solicitors. He holds a bachelor degree in
science from University of New South Wales. Mr. Hong is an
independent non-executive director of Modern Beauty Salon Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Exchange, stock
code: 919).

Cavaliere Ms. CHIU Kam Hing Kathy, JP (“Ms. Chiu”), aged 68,
joined the Group in October 2013 as an Independent Non- executive
Director, and also as a member of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. Ms. Chiu has over 29 years of banking experience in Canada
and the Asia Pacific Region. She was Senior Vice President at the
Republic National Bank of New York for almost thirteen years and was
responsible for the management and investment of third party client’s
funds. Ms. Chiu is an associate and a fellow of the Institute of Canadian
Bankers. Ms. Chiu was appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the
Hong Kong Government in 1992 and as Cavaliere by the Italian
Government in 1999 and she is Montblanc Outstanding Business Lady
of the year 2002 in Hong Kong. Ms. Chiu is the chairman of Prime
Investments Group Limited and also an independent non-executive
director of National Agricultural Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Main Board of the Exchange, stock code: 1236). Ms. Chiu is
licensed to carry out asset management business under Type 9
regulated activity under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571, Laws of Hong Kong).
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Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred (“Mr. Lau”), aged 37, is an independent
non-executive Director and joined the Group in December 2016. He is a
member of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee of the Company. He has over 14 years of
working experience in accounting, corporate finance, debt restructuring
and private equity investment. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor degree of
business administration from City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lau is a
member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and also
is a Certified Public Accountant in Washington State, USA. Mr. Lau is a
licensed person under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) permitted to carry out Type 6 (advising
on corporate finance) regulated activity since July 2004.

Senior Management

Dr. KWAN Fei Ying (“Dr. Kwan”), aged 33, is the chief executive
officer of the Company. Dr. Kwan joined the Company in December
2015 and is responsible for the overall management, business strategy
and development of the Group. She is also involved in the formulation of
various aspects of the Group’s policies. Dr. Kwan holds an honorary
doctorate degree from the International American University, U.S.A. and
has more than 12 years of experience in the beauty and slimming
industry. Dr. Kwan has served as the management of a beauty and
slimming company in Hong Kong and is an Honorary President of the
Hong Kong Beauty & Wellness Association.
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Introduction

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in
this annual report for the year ended 31 March 2017.

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and control
of the Group. It believes in good corporate governance practices that
strengthen investors’ confidence, facilitate the development of the
Group, and increase transparency in the operation of the Group,
ultimately striving for the long-term interest of the Group and
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s corporate governance practices
and is satisfied that the Company has complied with the code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 March 2017, except for the following
deviation:

Code provision A.2.7

Code provision A.2.7 stipulates that the chairman of the board of
directors should at least annually hold meetings with the non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors) without the
executive directors’ presence. As Dr. Cheung, the Chairman of the
Board, is also an Executive Director, the Company has deviated from
this code provision as it is not applicable. Besides, the Chairman of the
Board considered that it was unnecessary as it would be more
transparent and efficient to let the Independent Non-executive Directors
express their views to all Executive Directors in the meetings of the
Board. Besides, the Chairman of the Board always welcomes all
Independent Non-executive Directors to communicate with her directly
via email or phone to discuss any matters of the Company from time to
time.
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Code provision A.4.1

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates all the non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The term of
office for non-executive directors is subject to retirement from office by
rotation and is eligible for re-election in accordance with the provisions
of the Company’s bye-laws. At each annual general meeting, one-third
of the directors for the time being, (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation. As such, the Company considers that such provisions
are sufficient to meet the underlying objective of this code provision.

Code provision A.6.7

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board members,
should attend general meetings of the Company and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr. Hong Po Kui,
Martin and Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy, being the Independent Non-
executive Directors, due to other unexpected important engagements,
were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 30 September 2016, and the extraordinary general meetings held on
22 September 2016 and 23 January 2017. Mr. Hui Yat Lam, being the
Independent Non-executive Director, due to other unexpected important
engagements, was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 30 September 2016, and the extraordinary general
meetings held on 22 September 2016. Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred, being
the Independent Non-executive Director, due to other unexpected
important engagements, was unable to attend the extraordinary general
meeting held on 23 January 2017.

Code provision C.1.2

Code provision C.1.2 stipulates that the management shall provide all
members of the board with monthly updates. Management considers
that quarterly updates and periodic instant updates when developments
arising out of the ordinary business instead of monthly updates are
sufficient for the Board to discharge its duties. Besides, during the Year
Under Review, the Executive Directors have provided, and will continue
to provide, to all Independent Non-executive Directors updates on any
material changes to the position and prospects of the Company, which
are considered to be sufficient to provide general updates of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to the Board and
allow them to give a balanced and understandable assessment of the
same to serve the purpose required by the code provision C.1.2.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard of dealings
and its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 March 2017.

Board of Directors
Composition

As at 31 March 2017, the Board comprised of six Directors, including
two Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Director and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board
during the year is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (Chairman)
Mr. Mui Wai Sum

Non-executive Director
Mr. Takashi Togo

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin

Ms. Hui Yat Lam (resigned on 16 December 2016)

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy

Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred (appointed on 16 December 2016)

Ms. Hui Yat Lam (“Ms. Hui”) resigned as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 16 December 2016 as she would like to devote
more time to her business and personal affairs. Ms. Hui has confirmed
to the Board that she has no disagreement with the Board and there is
no other matter in respect of her resignation that needs to be brought to
the attention of the shareholders of the Company.
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The composition of the Board reflects the balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the Company’s business
and for the exercise of independent decisions. The Company has one
non-executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors
which is more than half of the Board. They are professionals in different
areas and provide independent opinions based on their expertise.

Biographical details of the current Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on pages 25 to 28.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board of
Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration Committee with the
reference to their respective duties and responsibility with the Company,
the Company’s performance and current market situation. Details of
emoluments of the Directors for the Year Under Review are disclosed in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Functions, Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Company,
undertaking the responsibility to lead and control and to promote the
success of the Company through providing direction and supervision.
All Directors are bound by their duties to make objective decisions in the
interests of the Company. The Board is responsible for the major affairs
of the Company, including the approval and supervision of all major
policies, overall strategies, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (particularly transactions involving conflict
of interest), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
material financial and operating matters. Major corporate matters that
are specifically delegated by the Board to the management include the
preparation of annual, interim and quarterly accounts for approval by
the Board before publication, execution of business strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate internal
control systems and risk management procedures, and compliance
with relevant statutory requirements and rules and regulations.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of expertise,
and have exhibited high standards of personal and professional ethics
and integrity. The Board is of reasonable size and composition to
provide checks and balances that safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the Company as a whole. All Directors have given
sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs.
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Independence

As at the date of this report, the Company has three Independent Non-
executive Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise
under Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has received
from each of the Independent Non- executive Directors a confirmation
of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. As at
the date of this report, the Company in its best knowledge considers all
of the Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Each Independent Non-executive Director is required to inform the
Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that may affect
his/her independence.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship) among the members of the Board.

Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person or through other electronic means
of communication at least four times a year to, among other matters,
review past financial and operating performance and discuss the
Group’s direction and strategy. Appropriate notices of regular Board
meetings are given to all Directors, who are all given an opportunity to
attend and include matters in the agenda for discussion. Senior
management from time to time provides to the Directors information on
activities and development of the business of the Group. The Company
Secretary takes detailed minutes of the meetings and keeps records of
matters discussed and decisions resolved at the meetings. Both draft
and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comments and records, and such minutes are open for inspection with
reasonable advance notice.

The Directors can seek independent professional advice in performing
their duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary. According to the
current Board’s practices, should a potential conflict of interest involving
a substantial shareholder or Director of the Company arise, the matter is
discussed in a Board meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by
written resolution. Independent Non-executive Directors with no conflict
of interest should be present at meetings dealing with conflict issues.
When the Board considers any proposal or transaction in which a
Director has a conflict of interest, the Director declares his interest and
abstains from voting.
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Eleven meetings of the Board were held during the year. The attendance FA EFGHBT+—XER -BEEH
of each Director at the meetings of the Board is set out below: FEZEEZ2BERAHEINOT :

Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate
Name of Directors BN HE/BITERERH =
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (Chairman) 5k EI1E + (F/E) 11/11 100%
Mr. Mui Wai Sum BREERLE 11/11 100%
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Takashi Togo g e e 11/11 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFHTESE
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin REEE 10/11 91%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam FF—EZ T 9/9 100%
(resigned on 16 December 2016) (RZZE—R*F
TZ AT NHEEE)
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy HeHZzLT 11/11 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred 2EREE 2/2 100%
(appointed on 16 December 2016) (RZE—XRF+=ZA+~
HEZE)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors ZERERES

The Company uses a formal, considered and transparent procedure for RAARBRAER KZEWEBERAEZEF
the appointment of new Directors. The proposed appointments wil be ~ ZEEHMEF -EFZERNADZEBR LRIER
considered and if thought fit, approved by the Board after due LLEg RE BERRNEHEFBAZ
deliberation and upon recommendation of the Nomination Committee. FEE-

Al Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors) are ~ =R EF(BREBIIFATEE) REEEH
appointed for a specific term and are subject to retirement by rotation EEE WAREBARARMBBERMA 2 IE
and re-election at least once every three years at the annual general XRARRIREREFRg((RERRBFRg])
meeting (“AGM”) of the Company in accordance with the provisions of tHmEERRBRET ELB=F—K-
the Company’s Articles of Association.

Pursuant to the Code provision A.4.1 of the Code, the non-executive BT ZFAMEXAL4TL ERITEEZER
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. TREERETEH W EESER - FEHITE
The Non-Executive Director is not appointed for a specific term, but he EEAUEEBEEH HEFAREERAR
is subject to re-election at the AGM of the Company in accordance with RAIZHEBERMARETRARRBFAE L
the Company’s Articles of Association. HiEE(E o
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At the forthcoming AGM of the Company, Mr. Takashi Togo and Mr.
Lau Wai Leung, Alfred shall retire pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Association. All the above retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.
The Board and the Nomination Committee recommended their re-
appointment. The Company’s circular, to be sent to the Shareholders,
contains detailed information of the above Directors as required by the
GEM Listing Rules.

Continuing Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a comprehensive
induction package covering policy and procedures of the Company as
well as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being a
Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her
responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements. All Directors shall participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates on
the relevant laws, rules and regulations to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company has been
encouraging the Directors and officers to participate in a wide range of
professional development courses and seminars relating to the GEM
Listing Rules, applicable regulatory requirements and corporate
governance practices organised by professional bodies and/or
independent auditors to further improve their relevant knowledge and
skills.

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating any
suitable training or seminars and reading relevant materials to refresh
their knowledge and skills.

Insurance

The Company arranges and reviews annually appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal action against its Directors and officers.

R

RARFEEBRRBFRAG L RBELX
ERFEREEBBREARR ZABERMN
AR P BAREEEKEERTLBAE
RARFEEBRRBFASEEELT -EF
ENRELEZEERBARNFEERE(E - AQA
5 R B SR 5 3% 2 B KB A B AR B A RIAR
EHIBBLAESTZFAER -

FREEXRRE

BEHEZREZEESNMAZTETERHKIE 2
HZABER SBEREAQARZBERLE
FIARERERZ R EEREEEME
NERBIED THRENAIZR EHARAEE
MAEEERETE T ZEE - 2REFES
HSEEXER UWERMEMEABELE

4,
BE °

EEHEMENSMEBER RAUKERZ
BAREFHEE UBREEAGEZEEA
ROEMBZBERATHEZSELTER - K
AR —EHNBEENEABEREHEXHE
B/ NBILZEBMBRERAIER ETR
A - EREEREMEREARAERZIEZE
EERABLMTNE RE-FRATEAH
R A BE o

EREETHAQIFEEXERZEZ T
BMOZ2EEMEEFIIHMTE  ANBE
BRAEM EHRREZ NI NEEE-

R B2

ARAEFHLRFERRTEERR  URE
HESRSRBEMREZABRFARME -

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 8 B E#ZBRER A A

Annual Report 2016/17 FER &



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ &8 %E

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separated
and performed by Dr. Cheung and Ms. Kwan respectively to ensure a
balance of power and authority.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board whereas the Chief Executive
Officer focuses on the Group’s business development and daily
management and operation generally.

Board Committees

The Board has maintained three Board Committees (the “Board
Committee”), namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee, throughout the year to oversee particular
aspects of the Group’s affairs. Each of these Committees has specific
written terms of reference, which deal clearly with their authorities and
duties.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established on 4 November 2003, with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The terms
of reference are available on the websites of the Exchange and the
Company.

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Ms. Hui Yat Lam (resigned
on 16 December 2016), Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy and Mr. Lau Wai
Leung, Alfred (appointed on 16 December 2016). The Committee is
chaired by Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin. No member of the Audit Committee
is a member of the former or existing auditor of the Company.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not limited
to, the following: (a) to independent review and supervise the financial
reporting process and internal control systems; (b) to ensure good
communications among Directors and the Company’s auditor; (c) to
recommend the appointment of external auditor on an annual basis and
approval of the audit fees; (d) to assist the Board in oversight of the
independence, qualifications, performance and compensation of the
independent accountant; (e) to review quarterly, interim and annual
results announcements as well as the financial statements prior to their
approval by the Board; and (f) to provide advice on audit report,
accounting policies and comments to all Directors.

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual reports
before submission to the Board. Senior representatives of the external
auditor, Executive Directors and senior management are invited to
attend the meetings, if required.

During the year, the Audit Committee has approved the nature and
scope of the statutory audits, and reviewed the quarterly, interim and
annual financial statements of the Group, and was satisfied that the
accounting policies and standards of the Group complied with the
applicable accounting standards and requirements and that the
adequate disclosures have been made.

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year. The
attendance of each member at the meetings of the Audit Committee is
set out below:
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Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate

Name of members BB &R HE RITEBRHY o E R

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin (Chairman) BERLAE(FE) 3/4 75%

Ms. Hui Yat Lam F—ELZt 3/3 100%
(resigned on 16 December 2016) (RZZ—RHF

+Z A+ NHEEE)

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy iizherl i e 4/4 100%

Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred REREE 1/ 100%
(appointed on 16 December 2016) (RZE—REF

TZA+TARBEZE)
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 23 June 2006, with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM Listing
Rules and the requirements set out under Code Provision. The terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Exchange and the
Company.

The Remuneration Committee comprises all Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Ms. Hui Yat Lam
(resigned on 16 December 2016), Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy and Mr.
Lau Wai Leung, Alfred (appointed on 16 December 2016). The
Committee is chaired by Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but are not
limited to, the following: (a) to make recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policies and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management remuneration; (b) to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and senior management; and (c) to ensure that no
Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own
remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors, the Non- Executive
Director and senior management of the Company.

Two meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the year.
The attendance of each member at the meeting of the Remuneration
Committee is set out below:
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Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate

Name of members REEE HE/BITEERH H =

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy (Chairman) HEWZE(EE) 2/2 100%

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin REMEE 2/2 100%

Ms. Hui Yat Lam HF—mTL 1/1 100%
(resigned on 16 December 2016) (RZZE—RF

TZ AT IRBEEE)

Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred RERLEE 1/ 100%

(appointed on 16 December 2016) (RZZE—RF

TZATRBEZME)
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established on 29 March 2012, and the Company had
adopted a terms of reference in compliance with the Code Provision A.5.
The terms of reference are available on the websites of the Exchange
and the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises, all Executive Directors, namely
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley and Mr. Mui Wai Sum and all Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Ms. Hui Yat
Lam (resigned to 16 December 2016), Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy and
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred (appointed on 16 December 2016). The
Committee is chaired by Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but are not
limited to, the following: (a) to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, and make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes; and (b)
to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board
composition, the appointment and re-appointment of Directors and also
succession planning for the Board, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. During the year, the Nomination
Committee recommended Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred to be appointed
as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Board.
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Two meeting of the Nomination Committee were held during the year.
The attendance of each member at the meeting of the Nomination
Committee is set out below:

il

A

ilﬂq*?% %EQ/\ﬁﬁﬁﬁ}ﬁt@%°%ﬁ%
2EF2BEREINWAT

Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate
Name of members REHSR HE BITERERE =
Executive Directors HITES
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley (Chairman) ik T Hi1E+ (£ /%) 2/2 100%
Mr. Mui Wai Sum EEELLE 2/2 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHITES
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin B LA 2/2 100%
Ms. Hui Yat Lam F—Et 11 100%
(resigned on 16 December 2016) (R —RHF
TZ A+ IRBEEE)
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy it el R 2/2 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred 2EREE 1/1 100%
(appointed on 16 December 2016) (RZZE—R%F
+=—A+HEZT)
Corporate Governance Functions EERERHEE
No corporate governance committee of the Company has been AARVWEXNITCEERZES YHES
established and the Board as a whole is responsible for performing the SEBATETELEERRE 2% @
corporate governance duties including: (a) to develop and review the € & 1& f"fﬁ Gl Zi%ﬁ/@ E&k KER (D)
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance; (b) to BT REREERSRE BRI RFE

review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; (c) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and (e) to review the Company’s compliance
with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance.
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Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group that give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2017, the accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong have been adopted and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance have been complied with. The Directors believe
that they have complied all applicable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable. The Directors also ensure the timely publication of the
financial statements of the Group. As at 31 March 2017, the Directors
were not aware of any material uncertainties or events which may have
a significant impact on the Company’s ability to operate as a going
concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis, which contemplates continuity of
normal business activities and the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities in the ordinary course of business.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor, Baker
Tily Hong Kong Limited, are set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s
Report” in this annual report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Company reviews the appointment of external auditor on an annual
basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of the audit
fee. During the year, the fee payable to the Company’s external auditor
for audit services amounted to HK$1,100,000 and fee for non-audit
related activities amounted to HK$747,000.
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Company Secretary

The primary duties of the Company Secretary include, but are not
limited to, the following: (a) to ensure the Board procedures are followed
and that the activities of the Board are carried out efficiently and
effectively; (b) to assists the Chairman to prepare agendas and Board
papers for meetings and disseminates such documents to the Directors
and Board Committees in a timely manner; (c) to timely dissemination of
announcements and information relating to the Group to the market;
and (d) to maintain formal minutes of the Board meetings and other
Board Committee meetings.

Mr. Ip Wai Sing (“Mr. Ip”) was appointed as the Company Secretary of
the Company.

Mr. Ip has confirmed that he has undertaken no less than 15 hours of
professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

Shareholders’ Rights
Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)

In accordance with Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
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Right to direct enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary by addressing them to
the principal place of business of Company in Hong Kong at: 16th Floor,
Prosperity Tower, 39 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

Right to put forward proposals at a general meeting

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group. Shareholders
are request to follow Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association
for including a resolution at an EGM. The requirement and procedures
are set out in paragraph headed “Right to convene an extraordinary
general meeting (‘EGM”)” above.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and transparent
communication with all shareholders. The Company has provided clear
and full performance information of the Group to shareholders in
accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and through various
communication channels, including AGM and EGM, quarterly, interim
and annual reports, announcements and circulars. Additional
information of the Group is also available to shareholders on the
Company’s website at http://www.sausantong.com.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM for which not less than
21 clear days’ notice is given. The Chairman and Directors are available
to answer questions on the Group’s business at the meeting.

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its effort to promote
transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments and
suggestions are always welcomed.
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Constitutional Documents

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year.

Corporate Governance Enhancement

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and
complying with the Corporate Governance Code of the Exchange but
also about promoting and developing an ethical and healthy corporate
culture. We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our
current practices on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes
and developments. Any views and suggestions from our Shareholders
to promote and improve our transparency are also welcome.

Risk Management and Internal Control

During the Year, the Board complied with the code provisions on risk
management and internal control as set out in the CG Code. The Board
has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems for the Group. The systems are designed
to manage the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting
records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information to achieve
a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the occurrence
of fraud and errors.
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The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s and its subsidiaries risk management
and internal control systems has been conducted annually and the
systems are considered to be effective and adequate. Self-assessment
and comprehensive risk assessment surveys have been conducted
during the review. The Company also has an internal audit function to
carry out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems, and has procedures in place to keep
information confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of
interest. Stringent internal structures have been designed to prevent the
misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.

All Directors and those employees who could have access to, and
monitor, the information of the Group are responsible for making
appropriate precautions to prevent abuse or misuse of such information.
Employees of the Group are prohibited from using inside information for
their own benefit.

The Board is also vested with the responsibility to disseminate to the
Shareholders and the public any inside information in the form of
announcements and circulars, in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
Cayman Islands on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman lIslands and its shares have
been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 19
November 2003.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and particulars of the jointly controlled entities and
subsidiaries are set out in note 14 on pages 138 to 141 and note 39 on
pages 201 to 209 to the financial statements respectively.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of beauty and
slimming services from slimming centres, distribution sales of cosmetic
and skin care products, sale of other health and beauty products,
investment in securities and money lending business. The slimming
centres, which are operated under the “Sau San Tong” and “IPRO"
brand names, provide services such as whole and partial body
slimming, weight management, body treatment services and facial
treatment services to its customers.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and
an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business, can
be found in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 11 to 24 of this annual report. This
discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

Financial Statements
The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017, and the state

of the Group’s affairs as at that date, are set out in the financial
statements on pages 72 to 221.
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Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil).

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 6. The summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 11 to the financial statements on pages 132 to 134.

Convertible notes

Details of the movements in convertible notes of the Group are set out
in notes 24 and 25 to the financial statement on pages 154 to 155.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 30(a) to the financial statements on pages 169
to 171.

Share Option Scheme
Share option scheme adopted on 4 November 2003

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 4 November
2008 (the “Expired Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Expired
Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to
eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.
Eligible participants of the Expired Share Option Scheme include full-
time or part-time employees, executives or officers (including executive,
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors) of the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers, consultants,
agents or advisers who, in the sole opinion of the Board, have
contributed to the Company and/or such subsidiaries.
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Share options are granted to the eligible participants at a consideration
of HK$1. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company. The period during which an option may
be exercised will be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion,
save that no option may be exercised more than five years after it has
been granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years after the
date of approval of the Expired Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Expired Share Option Scheme and any other share option plans of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Expired Share Option Scheme
and any other share option plans of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) to each eligible participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant in excess of 1% of the number
of shares in issue as at the date of grant, are subject to the Company
issuing a circular and the approval from the Company’s shareholders in
a general meeting.

The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Expired Share Option Scheme (which shall be payable upon
exercise of the option) shall be such price as the Board in its absolute
discretion shall determine, save that such price will not be less than the
highest of (i) the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (ji) the
nominal value of a share.
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Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016

On 24 February 2016, the Company has adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the New
Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to
eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.
Eligible participants of the New Share Option Scheme include full-time
or part-time employees, executives or officers (including executive, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors) of the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and any consultants, agents or
advisers who, in the sole opinion of the Board, have contributed to the
Company and/or such subsidiaries.

Share options are granted to the eligible participants at a consideration
of HK$1. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company. The period during which an option may
be exercised will be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion,
save that no option may be exercised more than five years after it has
been granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years after the
date of approval of the New Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Share Option Scheme and any other share option plans of the Company
at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the New Share Option Scheme
and any other share option plans of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) to each eligible participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant in excess of 1% of the number
of shares in issue as at the date of grant, are subject to the Company
issuing a circular and the approval from the Company’s shareholders in
a general meeting.
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The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular option granted
under the New Share Option Scheme (which shall be payable upon
exercise of the option) shall be such price as the Board in its absolute
discretion shall determine, save that such price will not be less than the
highest of (i) the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

Details of the share options movements during the year ended 31
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Rz Bin T B (RETERBREREMN) K
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March 2017 under the Share Option Scheme are as follows: BETEIE TN EIRESESEBET
No. of options
BREHE
Cancelled/ Market value per
Held at Granted  Lapsed during Exercised  Outstanding Exercise price  share at date of
1 April 2016 during the year during atthe Period during which pershare  grant of options
RZB-RE theyear  EREH/ the year yearend Date granted options are exercisable BROEE RELERE
mA-BHE ERRH 34 ERTR EAHABA RHAH BRETFIEDE HK)(Er) BRHBzERTE
Director £%
Executive director {7E % :
Mr. Mui Wai Sum 18,211,359 - - - 18,211,359 10 March 2016 (Note) 10 March 2016 to 0.132 0.132
BEREE “T-REZRTRE(HH) 9 March 2021
ZE-rE-ATHE
“Z--FZANR
Chief Executive Officer 18,211,359 - - - 18,211,359 10 March 2016 (Note) 10 March 2016 to 0.132 0.132
THER ZE-REZATR IR 9 March 2021
ZE-RECATHE
“TC-EZANR
Other eligible persons 6,894,300 - (6,894,300) - — 22 February 2012 (Note) 22 February 2012 to 0.424 0418
EthEERAL “E--E-F-1-R 21 February 2017
(W) “I-C-F
iy s =
ZT-tE
ZAZt+-H
43317,318 - (6,894,300) - 36,422,718
Note: ff it -

The numbers of options and the subscription price per share have been retrospectively
adjusted for the Rights Issue on 26 September 2014 and the Open Offer on 25
September 2015 and Share Consolidation on 23 September 2016.
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Equity-Linked Agreement

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed in the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the Year.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and reserved) of the Cayman Islands, share premium and
contributed surplus of the Company are distributable to the
shareholders. As at 31 March 2017, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$436,896,000 (2016: HK$210,756,000).

Segment Information

The segment information of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2017 is set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 125 to 131.

Connected Transaction

The “Other related party transactions” as disclosed in the note 37(b) to
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
do not constitute a connected transaction or a continuing connected
transaction under the GEM Listing Rules.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
annual report are:

Executive Directors

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Mr. Mui Wai Sum

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Takashi Togo
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin

Ms. Hui Yat Lam (resigned on 16 December 2016)

Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy

Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred (appointed on 16 December 2016)

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Takashi Togo and Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Martin, Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy and Mr. Lau Wai
Leung, Alfred as at the date of this annual report and therefore still
considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report are set
out on pages 25 to 28.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years commencing 4 November 2003
and will continue thereafter for successive term of one year unless and
until terminate by not less than six months’ notice in writing served by
either party to the other provided that such notice period shall not expire
at any time during the first 12 calendar months of the term of the
appointment.

The Executive Director is entitled to a basic salary and a discretionary
bonus provided that the aggregate amount of the bonuses payable to
all the Executive Directors for any financial year of the Company may
not exceed 10% of the audited consolidated net profit of the Group (after
taxation and non-controlling interests but before extraordinary and
exceptional items of the Group) in respect of the financial year.
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Save for a total fee of approximately HK$158,000 for all of them for the
year ended 31 March 2017, the Independent Non-executive Directors
are not entitled to any other remuneration.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within 1 year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are determined by the Remuneration Committee with reference to their
relevant qualifications, experience, competence and the prevailing
market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23 June 2006, and
the Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as of 29 March
2012 in accordance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM Listing Rules
and the requirements set out under Code Provision. Details of the role
and work performed by the committee are set out in “Corporate
Governance Report” in this annual report.

Remuneration by Bands

The remuneration paid or payable to the Directors and senior
management during the year were fell within the following bands:
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HKS$Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 7 7T £1,000,0007% 7T 6 -
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HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 % 7T & 4,000,000% 7T 1 1

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 8 B E#ZBRER A A

Annual Report 2016/17 FER &



DIRECTORS’ REPORT &2 &4

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

None of the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance subsisting during or at the end
of the financial year to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance
throughout the Year, which provides appropriate cover for legal actions
brought against the Directors. The level of the coverage is reviewed
annually.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2017, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company or their respective associates in
shares and underlying shares (the “Shares”) of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) which are required to be notified to
the Company and the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO, including interests and/or short positions which they are
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deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO, or which /SR E)  sIREE 5 K HE 1§ 55 352
will be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise 1A IBIEAIER FTHHBIE546 56715
notified to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 BEMBARANBIRBRZAENAT

of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company: RERGROGZHE

Number of shares

RO & B
Approximate
percentage of
interest in the
Company’s
issued share
capital
Corporate Personal HARRQF
Name of director interests interests Total ERITHRAER
EEpng DR R &l A s B ZEBHN A DL
Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley 62,664,000 80,645,400 143,309,400 2.62%
ok EME - (Note 1)
(Mtat1)
Note: Wiz

The 62,664,000 shares were held by Biochem Investments Limited (“Biochem”), a £262,664,0000% 1% 19 Biochem Investments Limited

company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability. The entire ( [Biochem]| ) 7% ' Biochemag—BREBELEE

issued share capital of Biochem is wholly owned by Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley. Sk 2 AR AR ° BiochemZ 2B 3478 AAEE
e+ E%A -
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Long position in underlying shares of the Company:

Share Option Scheme

The interests in the underlying shares of the Company arise from share

options granted to the Directors of the Company under the Company’s

share option scheme, details of which are as follows:

REARGEERGZIHFE -

R 2
RARIEBRD Z KB REBEARARAER
RETEIRTARRARIESR 2 EBIRE  EFFEWN
T

Approximate

percentage
Aggregate interest in the
long position Company’s
in underlying issued share
shares of the capital
Company EARAFE
Name of director/ Subscription RALDF ERTRA
chief executive Date of grant Exercisable period price per share HE R 7 e i3
ESpnE TETHRAE HUEBH TS BRABE ZHREREY Bk
Mr. Mui Wai Sum 10 March 2016 10 March 2016 - HK$0.132 18,211,359 0.33%
BRERELE —E-R"E=ZA+H 9 March 2021 0.132/& 7T
—T-R"E¥=ZA+H=ZE
—E--%=ZANA
Ms. Kwan Fei Ying 10 March 2016 10 March 2016 - HK$0.132 18,211,359 0.33%
BASER&Z L —E-R"¥=A+H 9 March 2021 01328 T
—E-XF=ZR+HZE
—T-_—-F=ANH
Note: ff it -

The above interest constitutes a long position of the Director and the Chief Executive
in a physically settled equity derivative for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the Directors or

chief executive of the Company or their respective associates has any

personal, family, corporate or other interests or short positions in the

Shares of the Company or its associated (within the meaning of Part XV

of SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under section

352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Exchange pursuant to the minimum standard of dealings by Directors of
the Company as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules, are required to be notified to the Company and the Exchange
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Annual Report 2016/17 FER &

HRESKBAEGRIIME LA EEBREERTET
BABRUNEMEETRATETRAZER -

BREXHEZREN RZTE—tF=A=+
—B ARAREF FETBHABHXESA
ZHEBALIHERNARARKERAEEE(TE
ERBLFLBEROBEXVE) ZBRGOF - #
BEMEHENBEES KBS KA F35215
MEFEZ2ECMP  NBEBEAIZER LR
5462567 IKFMILARRIZESEITR 5
CEEREEMEARNARBIMAZMEA
Rik - RrlskHmgamskARs  MAMNE AR
UNCIDSE il



DIRECTORS’ REPORT &%=

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short TERRRABROZERZRRARR

Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2017, so far was known to any Directors or chief RZE—+F=ZA=+—H mMARa{EM
executive of the Company, the following interests of which would fall to EENTETHRAEBNRA THEZBEFE
be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who FRHEBOIEXVEEE2RE3D AT H
were deemed to be directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the B oSG AEESRMEREAEALNR D RTT
issued capital of the Company, or which were recorded in the register R AR5%8 A @ s ZERSEMNIBIEFEAMEE
of interests required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or have P EB IR EFEE R LM e

notified to the Company were as follows: RARHEWT
Long position in Shares: REBEGBZHE
Number of shareholding
BEREAE

Substantial shareholder Capacity Share Percentage
FERRK 514 % 2 ERa
Yau Chung Chung Beneficial owner 543,800,000 9.95%
AR EmEA A
Like Capital Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 520,200,000 9.52%
BEEXREBRAT (HET) EmBEAA
Ethnocentric Investment Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 520,200,000 9.52%

(Note 1) (Hiat1) REHEE s
Capital VC Limited (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 520,200,000 9.52%
BHEIRBER AR (A1) REHEE
Note 1:  Like Capital Limited is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited Kiiz1: BEBEABRARAREBEIMKIZE

liability which is wholly owned by Ethnocentric Investment Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, which
is in turn wholly owned by Capital VC Limited, a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and the issued shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2324). As such, each of
Ethnocentric Investment Limited and Capital VC Limited is deemed to be
interested in all the 348,400,000 Share held by Like Capital Limited.

& A & » i Ethnocentric Investment Limited (7
ABEABESHAMANILZERRAR) 2EH
A - i Ethnocentric Investment Limited i & #B
BRERAR(RFAERSFMKLZA
Al EEBHTRONB R ER LW (RG
R 5% 2324)) 2 E# A o A It -+ Ethnocentric
Investment Limited & & &0 &l 3% B R A 7] &
BERRAREBEEERERABIMBZES
348,400,000 % B {5 P #E B 75 o
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, no person, other than
the Directors of the Company and the chief executive of the Group
whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Position in Shares” above, has
registered an interest or short position in the share capital, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares” above, at no time during the
year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Competing Interests

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company or
their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) has any
interest in a business which compete or might compete with the
business of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued share as
required under the GEM listing rules throughout the Year Under Review
and up to the date of this report.
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Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report section set out on
pages 29 to 45.

Events after the Reporting Period
There is no material events after the reporting period.
Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 99.78% (2016: 99.78%) of the total purchases for the
year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted
10 99.69% (2016: 99.78%). Sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 73.22% (2016: 68.5%) of the total sales for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$2,788,000 (2016: HK$1,917,000).

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 4 November 2003, and the
Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as of 31 March
2016 in accordance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Details of the role and work performed by the committee are set out in
“Corporate Governance Report” in the annual report. The audit
committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the

Group for the year ended 31 March 2017.

HEE

B

ARARFEMzETECLEERERANE29
EFBEMFHCCERERRSE -

EHRHMREE
SRMEEMEAFE -
ITEEFRHEER

FA AEEEERAAHERZKBEGEFA
IR BERE 2 99.78% (—F — /N 4F £ 99.78%) »
MEEFRZAHERNZRBENGIN(ZE
—RNF:99.78%) c AEEBEMAERAEF Z
HENFANBBEETE 27322% (=T — <
F :68.5%) °

ARBEE HEMBEATHEMBKRR
(MEEMRM FEHEEBBEARADHE
TIRAZ5%) N AEB R RHERE T EE
BBt -

BERX

AEEPNFEARNE T 2 2 18 50E 492,788,000
BILT(ZZE—REF: 1,917,0007%75) o

BEABEERE

ARBIZHEBERARLETRATMANAHE
ERBERZG MASHEERTERLZ

%A R E A RS -
BEREEE
ERZEREN-TT=F+-AMAR

Mo MARBIERIEA R LR 5E5.28
2533 RZZE—A"F=ZA=+—BEH
KEIBEaRE -Z8g 2 ABRETZT
EHEBRAAFRICEETARE] - BRE
B EHASEEE-_T—tF=A=+
—BIEFEZEEVBRE -

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 8 B E#ZBRER A A

Annual Report 2016/17 FER &

59



DIRECTORS’ REPORT &= &%

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Director on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company
confirmed that all Directors have complied with the required standard of
dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Auditor

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible offer themselves
for reappointment. A resolution for re-appointment of Baker Tilly Hong
Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2017
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=2

BAKER TILLY

HONG KONG | K it

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sau San Tong Holdings Limited

BEEERBROE

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sau San Tong
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 72 to 221, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2017 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

The Key Audit Matter
EREXER

FAREREXER

MREZFASRBERMAFIXAE  ARY
ERABGEMBERAR/RERZLER -
ZEERANRNBERZEREAMBRREPR
BopltEREMcER  MEMAT S5 &
EEHELENER -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMELE N EESEIR

Business combination in relating to the acquisition of further interests in Wealthy Sound Limited

FHRUWBESEBERABDE-—PEE 2EKSH

Refer to Notes 2(f), 2(g), 34(c) and 34(d) of the audited consolidated financial statements

FREEEGEAIBERXNZ20 - 2() » 34(c) & 34(d)

On 23 May 2016, the Group acquired the remaining 50%
equity interest in Wealthy Sound Limited and its subsidiaries
(“Wealthy Sound Group”), at a consideration of
HK$4,119,000. These businesses were classified as joint
ventures prior to this acquisition. Upon the completion of
this further acquisition, Wealthy Sound Limited has become
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. Following the
transaction, management determined a gain on re-
measuring the fair value of the original 50% equity interest
previously held of HK$1,633,000 and related goodwill
carried at HK$8,490,000.

RZE—X"FRA-+=H ' EE£BELIMR{E4119,000
BTHELSZERARAREMNBAR(EEEE])
TE0%R AR  ZEEBFNRHBRENSEAEE
TE - RUEBE-—PWESTETKE TBERAA
EXAE BEEEZZENBRAA -#1TX5% T8
[E HE B3 5T 2 1R 1 BT #5 R B 50% A% 7K # % 1,633,000
B2 AT EWE - A R R 58,490,000 7T ©
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Our audit procedures in this area included:
BN TE EZEFBE

assessing the accuracy and relevance of the data used
by management by challenging and corroborating with
market data and information from similar transactions
and the process for identifying any intangible assets;

BATHEITEFERURS 2 TIHEE R E A &
REMEFEE AR FHEEBCAZEER

TRRRNRE

assessing the robustness of the cash flow forecasts to
changes in assumptions, including sales growth, beyond
the 2018 detailed forecasts, long-term growth rates and
discount rates in the model to assess the
appropriateness of the value of any intangible assets
and goodwill recognised at the acquisition date;
AERENERAHBRREH I BEN  BREHEE
BR - ZZE-NFHABANIINZER  REPEER
EREAZBBE X U KB R ER 2 EAET
BENBEZEERSHEE
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The Key Audit Matter
HRERSER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMERRNMUEESER

Business combination in relating to the acquisition of further interests in Wealthy Sound Limited (Continued)

FRURBSEERARE- SRS ZEKS O (B

Refer to Notes 2(f), 2(g), 34(c) and 34(d) of the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)

BRI EZGE R BEREN G20 - 2(9) « 34(c) &% 34(d) ()

Any fair value adjustments to the carrying amount of
Wealthy Sound Group’s net liabilities as at the date of
acquisition were valued using discounted cash flow
methods. In applying these methodologies, the Group made
a number of key assumptions and estimates, including
growth and attrition rates, discount rates and service life-
cycles. The identification and valuation of these fair value
adjustments requires judgement and is sensitive to the
assumptions used.

HEBEEAEFENKBEZREABELH 2EAA
FEFABERARREREREEZETHE BRAZSE
AR BEREFHZEBRBRIMG  BEEER
REAE BRERBREEER  #RKAEZE
ATPEARBELAE  WEHAEAZBRR AR -

Fair value amounts which cannot be allocated to acquired
assets are allocated to goodwill. Goodwill is not amortised
and will affect consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income only on any future impairment.
EENDEZRWNEEEZ2ATE2ER P EZEE -
FEAAHE YRHREMRRKBRER T2
meBAmkHEMEEKERX -

reviewing the documentation relating to the acquisition
to ensure the consideration paid has been recognised in
accordance with relevant accounting standards;

ERERWBEBZXH  UBERENKESRESH

St EAER

reviewing the agreements relating to the business
combination;

EHEREHEH 2z

examining the accounting entries for the business
combination prepared by management and determine
whether they were in accordance with HKFRS 3 (Revised)
“Business Combinations”; and
BREEBEREBSHMBRH GHEE YEE
FHRLBEANABT BB REEREIN(KE
RDIEBEG] K

assessing the adequacy of the disclosures about the
business combination with regard to HKFRS 3 (Revised).
HEABERB A E B MRS EREI5 (KE
FZHEBERBRR ©
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The Key Audit Matter
BREXEHE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMELRNAEEEE

Key judgements relating to impairment testing of goodwill

ERBEERERNE 2B

Refer to Notes 2(g), 2(n)(ii) and 13 of the audited consolidated financial statements
BRI E RS A FREN E20) - 200)6) & 13

As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of the Group’s ~ Our audit procedures in this area included:
goodwill was mainly allocated to two cash-generating units PRI T E 2 BZIRF BT

(“CGUs”), namely, the provision of beauty and slimming
services in Hong Kong and in the People’s Republic of
China, activities which arose from the acquisition of | Pro
Medical Skin Care Centre Limited and Wealthy Sound
Group respectively.

RZE—+tF=A=+—HB  ES£EFIEZKHEZF
EoREMARELEM(ReEAEM]  BIR
EERPEARANMEREEZTRABRYE - DA
KEKBENERTEBEERARALEBEBRZ X -

The assessment of the recoverability of goodwill is based on
the future business prospects and the forecast business
performance of the two businesses.
BEZAKNOUERBERAREBAISREMEXRE 2 XK
RIRFERIME L AL -
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evaluating the assumptions and methodologies used by
the management, in particular those relating to the sales
growth rate and pre-tax discount rate;
EEREMERCBRRE A LESAHAEE
R R RBLAIBE K

assessing and challenging the cash flow projections
prepared by the management, including an assessment
of the accuracy of management’s historical estimates
and comparing historic actual results to those budgeted
to assess the quality of management’s forecasting;
FELREREEEMRECASRERD  BIET
HEREBREMT 2ERE AREBBEETERR
BEEE U HEBERACZER
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The Key Audit Matter
HRERSER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMERRNMUEESER

Key judgements relating to impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

BB ERE S 2 B (E

Refer to Notes 2(g), 2(n)(ii) and 13 of the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)

ARREEGCE BB RENZ2Q)  20)0) %13 ()

There is inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting and
discounting future cash flows, which are the basis of the
assessment of recoverability of the goodwill and,
accordingly, this is one of the key judgemental areas upon
which our audit concentrated. There is the risk that the key
assumptions, estimates and judgements on which the
calculations are based are inappropriate and that goodwiill is
misstated as a consequence.
EEZAKBETEMEKERARMBERARRESRE
XE LS RTHAREREZ B ABMERRET 2 H
h—ERARE S - ERAERGTEMKE @R
& hE R HE TR N EE 0 SRR R -

assessing the robustness of the forecasts to changes in
assumptions, including sales growth beyond the 2018
detailed forecast, long-term growth rates and discount
rates used in the model, to assess the appropriateness
of the carrying amount of goodwill; and
AEEAERRESHCREN  BFE 2T \Fit
AMIBRIAINZHEL R KRB REREXFFAM
BE PUAEEHECRAESREE K&

assessing the adequacy of the disclosures relating to
those assumptions to which the outcome of the
impairment test is most sensitive, that is, those that have
the most significant effect on the determination of the
recoverable amount of goodwill.

FEBEBEANAERESHR IAZFBRRIBEE
EERE Y EEHET KOS ERREAF

22 HR-
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The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

HREEXER EMERSNAEESIR

Impairment of trade and other receivables

FEW B 5 SRR R H Ath B WK H 2 B

Refer to Notes 2(n)(i), 2(p) and 18 of the audited consolidated financial statements
FRMEFE GG S BRI T20)) - 200) % 18

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had trade receivables and  Our audit procedures in this area included:
other receivables of HK$246,444,000 and HK$97,185,000 R Itk H B 2 B2 F B 1E
respectively.

RZE—+tF=A=+—H BESEZEWEZHIE e« testing aged balances where no provision was

2 E Ath [iE U 738 9 Bl A 246,444,00078 T N 97,185,000 recognised for any indication of impairment. This
BT o included verifying whether payments had been received

since the end of the reporting period, reviewing historical
The determination as to whether the trade and other payment patterns and correspondence with the
receivables are collectable involves management’s counterparty relating to expected settlement dates;
judgement. Specific factors that management considers o  BIAEHEHR EPTERBEZTATFRER
include the age of the balance, location of customers, B BEEXERSE A2 R ARBUEE -
existence of disputes, recent historical payment patterns ERBATNREANEZZEFEERHEER 2
and any other available information concerning the FoRkE 8%

creditworthiness of the counterparty.
ETRWESRBERAEMEYRRERZS AT A K@Y
REBEBzHE BREEZERZ2EETRZOREARE
B BPMEME FEFE OHBEXNEARE
MEMERAXIHFEEZRBEER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B3 #Z & En k&

The Key Audit Matter
HRERSER

Impairment of trade and other receivables (Continued)

FE W B 5 5RIR I H Ath B WK H 2 R B ()

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMERRNMUEESER

Refer to Notes 2(n)(i), 2(p) and 18 of the audited consolidated financial statements (Continued)

BRI EREEHBERENT20)) - 2(0) % 18 (&)

Management uses this information to determine whether an
impairment loss adjustment is required either for a specific
transaction or for a counterparty’s overall balance. We
focused on this area because it requires a high level of
management judgement and with regard to the materiality
of the amounts involved.

EEEBCALEN HUETRSAVRFERHIAX
SHFBRBERELREBEARE - RMEBR LS
B -REAZETEHERSKFZEREHEG  ARE
My hkeBEEKR:.

selecting a sample of the larger trade and other
receivables balances where a provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables was recognised and
understanding the rationale behind management’s
judgement. In order to evaluate the appropriateness of
these judgements we verified whether balances were
overdue, examined the counterparties’ historical
payment patterns and whether any payments had been
received since the end of the reporting period and up to
the date of completion of our audit procedures; and
BERAEWE 5 IE & H M W R IE 48R 2 1
K BHHEREWE S RIE K E i EKKIE 2R E
BiE WTEBREREELABERZIEH  RFH
ZEHERRES BMREEHESRH T8
REGHFZAEXNREAUARREELE2HBARK
BEEEZERFTKE B WEEMRKIE: &

obtaining corroborative evidence including
correspondence relating to any disputes between the
parties involved, efforts by management to recover the
amounts outstanding and on the credit status of
significant counterparties where available.
ESHEEE BRAMMIREN ZEEMFHR
ZHHE - EREBROAREERBEZITBHREARS
HFZ2EEMRR(MER) -
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Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors and those charged
with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 5 Z#KRER A 7
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B3 #Z & En k&

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

BB ERES
EzEME

B IS R A A

BMzERRRERGAMBRRELTF
FElRNAFFRERME B 2 BAHERRAER
GeREER YTRLBERMER ZZHE
BE - ABERERNBEBRRRSE  BKiULIA
Sh o R ETABEEMAE - HAMT 5
AREZABTHEMEMBA LA TS AEE
EREE-

EHEFBS KT LEE BYFRIRSE
BERERMETZERBREERE —EX
8 aR BRI 2 75 £ o 8 AR BRI T A AR RF SoEE AR
5B f 7] g & 12 78 2 18 Bl s [E AR 2R 2
HRRASEEREGRAM B RRERBEN
ERYBMERMIEL 2QBRE - AIBARE
EAFERRA -

EARBEBBRENETERL — 85
RMARERENER LA RS
BRAETE o BT

- WERUFEANRFHERTEHE
EMBHRRFEERERRAZ AR
RAUBITEREZERERZBZERF
NEEBRRERNEE ZERERE (ER
HMERZER - HREKFFEA BES I &

RomE FEERER ERRL FZE
BRAMEE  HAREERREKFEM

EYEAERRAZ ARBREER
FAERMEMERERER A 2R R

=

= °

HEZEEZABEE  URFE
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B
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—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B3 #Z & En k&

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tong Wai Hang.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 June 2017

Tong Wai Hang

Practising certificate number PO6231
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

tEZA=+—AILEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & & — Z —
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7% 7t £ %1))

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other net income

Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative expenses

Profit from operations

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings/(loss) per share
— Basic

— Diluted

B

5 45 R

3

2 ftp Y 26

2 1tp g N OB 5B
WE RS HAA
—BRRATRAX
S A
B
B8 A1 Y
P8 BB X

4 Py 5 R

BER:
ZN/NSIEZ Z DN
IR R

SREF(FE)
— &K

— 85

The notes on pages 81 to 221 form part of the consolidated financial

statements.
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Note
it &t

5(a)

= N Z
SEatd

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FEIT
2,228,417 1,693,550
(1,958,591) (1,509,127)
269,826 184,423
2,694 21,172
4,328 718
(93,875) (83,783)
(116,120) (103,377)
66,853 19,1583
(4,157) (8,165)
62,696 15,988
(25,143) (11,400)
37,553 4,588
26,071 (3,744)
11,482 8,332
37,553 4,588
HK cents HK cents
A BN
(restated)
(#E 7))
1.24 (0.27)
1.24 (0.20)
mEMBmE 2

FE81EFE221 8 2 M T EAK

—85



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #4E#REMEEING R

Fortheyearended 31 March2017 HlZE =T —+tF =A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A 7# 7t 2 71|

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss for the year,
net of nil tax
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
— Exchange difference on translation of
financial statements of foreign operations

Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

The notes on pages 81 to 221 form part of the consolidated financial

statements.

N

F R F

2R

— BB B R R Z /5

FAHMEZEEE  EHE

HERAgEf o BE=BacEA

RATEAZER =5
FRHEMBZEER
EREZEKE(BE)EAHE
BEBR:

ZN/NECTE RSN
JEPE AR A 25

81 EFH221 8 2 M sk

—#5 -

2017 2016
—E—tF —EF—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
37,553 4,588
(9,669) (5,106)
(9,669) (5,106)
27,884 (518)
19,634 (6,134)
8,250 5,616
27,884 (518)
REMBmE 2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Asat31March2017 A =Z—tHF=A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7% 7t £ %1))

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Interests in joint ventures
Deposit paid

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Loans receivable

Interest receivables

Amounts due from joint ventures
Amounts due from related parties
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Bank loans

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued charges
Amount due to a director

Amounts due to related parties
Deferred income

Convertible notes

Current tax payable

Other liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

ERBEE

M MR NRE
REME
BVEE

B
REEhEZEn
BEffEE

RBEE

&
BMAFEFABREZER®
BE

FE U & 5 KA

BNRE - Re LA ER

IR

& W & 3%

& LU A B

FEU & & A
JE Y BAE A LR
RekREFEY

RBEE

RITER

e E 558

H Al & 5R S BT & A
BN —REZEHRA

JE T RRE A TR

BT WA

ABREE

e E BT R

HiAE

RBEEFE

EERABRRARBAES
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Note
M &t

11
11
12
13
14
15

16

17
18

18
19
20
14
21

22
23
23
24
21

25
26(a)
29

e IR AR

2017 2016
—Z2—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
135,441 84,055
8,001 —
1,820 3,776
25,969 16,884
= 4,119
171,231 108,834
9,415 10,559
139,746 42,530
246,444 212,004
142,721 150,248
59,921 —
388 —

- 3,117

1,430 1,440
522,045 263,867
1,122,110 683,855
67,731 24,055
38,938 39,693
130,449 64,201
20,338 37
37,308 46,366
23,189 18,990
= 19,759
18,568 4,301
19,237 —
355,758 217,402
766,352 466,453
937,583 575,287




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 44 B &40 &
Asat31March2017 AR —ZE—+&FE=HA=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7t 2 %1])

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to owners of

the Company

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 June

2017

The notes on pages 81 to 221 form part of the consolidated financial

statements.

Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley
5K it
Director

EF

Note
Mt aF

rkFRBEE
EEFHIEEE 26(b)
EmaE 29

BEEFH

EARR#HE 30

A
&1

BENARAEE AR
#E

FRIE R s

AR

RETIE -

—#5 -

2017 2016
—B-—t&E —TAH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
3,761 4,007
= 18,497
3,761 22,504
933,822 552,783
109,268 36,422
812,190 501,485
921,458 537,907
12,364 14,876
933,822 552,783

Mui Wai Sum
WEZR

Director

EF

E81EFE221 8 2 B K

EFeR T tFAA-TABHERE

RAaPB®mEZ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY & EE2 R
Fortheyearended 31 March2017 HZ = —tF =ZA=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA % 7t £ 71))

Attributable to owners of the Company

GRRADAAAA
Share- The PRC (Accumulated
based  Convertiole statutory losses)/ Non-
Share Share  Merger Exchange  payment notes  surplus Other retained controlling Total
capitd  premium  reseve  resenve  resene resene  resenve  resene profits Totl  interests  equity
& CLid EX RAAT TAREE FEEE i (RHER)/ R ER

kx  &E HE O BE  BR Wl AREE BB RERN  e%  #E  #E
Note  HKS000 HKS000 HKSO00 HKSO00 HKSO000 — HKS000 HKS000 HKSO00 — HKS000 HKS000  HKS000 HK$000
W#  TET  TET  TET  TEr  TEr  TET  TET  TET  TET TET TET TER

At1 April 2015 R=8-1f
mA-A 18211 342030  (3637) 833 7127 1214 8769 48 (15574 366541 18754 385,205

Changesin equity for —B-AE2

2016: EE2E:
Profit for the year FERE - - - - - - - - B,744)  (8,744) 8,332 4,588
Other comprehensive 2 EEE
loss - - - (2,390) - - - - - (2390 2,716)  (5,106)
Total comprehensive  £R2EEE
loss for the year 8% - - - 230 - - - - (744 (6134 5516 (518
Equity-settled EnfERD
share-hased R
transactions 28 - - - - 2,222 - - - - 2,022 - 2,222
Bipiration of share ~~ BERERE %
options 28 - - - - (5,179 - - - 5179 - - -
Appropriation tothe  EEFTREIEE
PRC statutory BHEE
surplus reserve - - - - - - 2,264 - (2,264) - - -
Issue of shares Bkl 30@)iv) 18211 163,902 - - - - - - - 182,113 - 182,113
Share issue expenses FRIAE (TR 0@ - (683 - - - - - - - (683 - (68%)
Diidends paidto 2 F3EFERR 1
non-controling w2l 8
interests - - - - - - - - - - (9494 (9,494)
18211 157,067 - R0 R%) - 2 - B29) 171366 (3879 167488

At31 March 2016 R-B-A%

36422 499007 (3637) 5963 4170 1214 11,083 48 (16403) 537907 14876 552,783
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 4 A REX @8 %

For the year ended 31 March 2017

BE_T—t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7 7t £ 1))

At1 April 2016 RZB-R%§
mE-A

Changesin equity for —B—+%2
2017; RE2E:

Profitfor theyear ~— ERER
Other comprehensive £ 412 8
loss

Total comprehensive  £R 2 F Uiz
ncome forthe year #4148

Redemption of BRMARE
convertblenotes 1%

Bxpration of share B
options

Appropriaiontothe B REETE
PRC statutory BHEE
surplus reserve

Issue of shares RN

Share issue expenses i D ETEIX

Diidends paidto B RFEERE
non-controling #ZRE
interests

Partiel disposal of B HER -
equiyinteresting  IER
subsidiary B

e

B

At31March2017 RZB—-+E
=fA=+
-8

The notes on pages 81 to 221 form part of the consolidated financial

statements.

EZAZ+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

BRRERARAA
Share- The PRC (Accumulated
based Convertible statutory losses)/ Non-
Share Share  Merger Exchange payment notes  surplus Other retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests  equity
ket & EX ROAS TEREE HEEE By (RHEE)/ R BR
R& HE BB i R i BHEG R REEN  Af Bs  4E
Note ~ HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 — HKS'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$000
Wi TEr TEr TEzn  TEr  TEr  TAr  TEr  TEn Tz FAr TErn TEn
36,422 499,097  (3637) 5963 4170 1,214 11,033 48 (16,403) 537,907 14,876 552,783
- - - - - - - - 26071 26071 11482 37,558
- - - (6437 - - - - - (6437 (3232 (9,669
- - - (6437 - - - - 26071 19,634 8,250 27,884
25 - - - - - (1,214) - - 1,214 - - -
% - - - - (194 - - - s - - -
- - - - - - 2,658 - (2,658) - - -
30@)y) 72,846 291,382 - - - - - - - 364,228 - 364,228
30@)(v) - (11,874 - - - - - - - (11,874 - (11,874
- - - - - - - - - - (8,453) (8453
35 - - - - - - - 11,568 - 11,563 (2309 9,254
72,846 279,508 - (6437) (1,948 (1,214 2658 11,563 26,575 383,551 (2512) 381,039
109,268 778,605  (3,637) (474 2,222 - 13691 11,611 10172 921458 12,364 933,822

FIEF21THE LM EBKEAMBERERZ

—85 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Fortheyearended 31 March2017 HZ = —tF = A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7 7t £ 1)

Operating activities

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

— Net unrealised gains on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

— Interest income from money lending

— Bank interest income

— Dividend income

— Other interest income

— Gain arising from acquisition of a subsidiary

— Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

— Finance costs

— Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses

— Amortisation of intangible assets

— Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

— Impairment losses on trade and
other receivables

— Write off of trade receivables

— Write off of other receivables and
amounts due from related parties

— Net foreign exchange gain

Operating profit before changes in working
capital

Decrease in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Increase in trade receivables

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Increase in loans receivable

Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from joint
ventures

(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from
related parties

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

Increase/(decrease) in other payables and
accrued charges

Increase/(decrease) in deferred income

Decrease in amounts due to joint ventures

(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to related
parties

ReEEg

B 5% A1t A

AT A

—RAFEFABGZ
THMEEZARER
Ui 71 )% BR

— MEZAEWA

— RITHBUA

— BB YA

— A A B UA

— Wi — B R R AT
BEAEZ W

—HEME  HBELRE
2 (Was), iR F R

— BB KA

—REEEERNDNRAX

—BILEEH#H
—ME BERREWE

—EWE F A K EAM
R LA 3% TR R B S 1R
— J3H e U B 5 5KR
— JHU5H H i B WK R &
& Ui B8 38 A £ 3R IA
—EX W E R

EEETRDA 2 KEEHEF

FER D
BAFEFABSZZ SR
BEGEM, R

J& W B 5 IR SE BN
BNRA - R REAMER
IR A (1)

& U B SR 3E AN
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(38 hm)
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Note
b &t

N ANO®

5(a)

5(b)
5(c)

5(c)

5(c)
5(c)

5(c)

BEmER

2017 2016
—=ZE—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
62,696 15,988
(26,585) (5,662)
(5,947) —
(1,052) (1,363)
(1,168) —
(389) —
(1,663) -
(234) 259
4,157 3,165
= 2,002
1,956 1,843
17,727 12,463
2,892 339
352 —
2,807 4,695
91) (2,107)
55,458 31,842
529 8,153
(61,377) 58,532
(49,773) (68,848)
4,843 (36,983)
(59,921) —
9,042 (3,117)
(78) 6,434
1,658 (12,065)
58,113 (6,144)
2,528 (2,356)
= (1,854)
(6,210) 46,366




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #REHRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #{ & =% —
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) \LA,* 7T ?’ 7‘J )

Cash (used in)/generated from used in
operations

PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid
HK Profits Tax paid

Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating

activities

Investing activities

Deposit paid for the acquisition of subsidiaries

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from acquisition of
subsidiaries

Net cash outflow from assets acquisition

Payment for the purchase of intangible assets

Payment for the purchase of property, plant
and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

+tF=ZA=+—HLLFE

Note
Mt &t

(AR),/ REREXLEZ

B

B BEMEMRAER

ENEB 1
B A B
2 Wi 8

S

(AR),/ REREETEHZ

ReF#E

REED

WBEMBLARZE RS
WEHBRARZRERA

(it th) 73 88

BEEWEZRER

34
F R 36

BEBTLEEZMNR

BEYE HER

BE:S

ELgiped

HEWE HERREZ

P15 5008

ARBREEB 2R FH

2017 2016
—E—tF —EF—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(45,188) 19,960
(10,062) (8,669)
(717) —

6,611 1,006

1,168 —
(48,188) 12,297
— (4,119)
863 (14,503)

(8,000) —

— (711)

(70,266) (65,984)
472 51
(76,931) (85,266)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ZFREHRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & & —Z —+
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A 7 7t 2 /‘J

Financing activities

Proceeds from new bank loans
Proceeds from issue of shares,

net of expenses
Advance from/(repayment to) a director

Repayment of bank loans

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Interest paid on bank loans

Interest paid on convertible notes
Interest paid on broker’s overdrafts
Interest paid on loan due to a director

Net cash generated from financing activities

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

FE=A=+-RAILFE

BMEEH

FIZIRITER B
BTN 2 FTS R
BRI 2

RE—REEFZBRS
(M—BEEEN

EERITEX

B IR 2 RS

BEREITERZHE

SRR S i)

BERERESZHE

ENEN—REEERZ
IS

REMEZH 2R FH
RERBASESEYEN

ROA-—BZRERRE
ZEY

ERGH s E

R=A=+t-HZzHER
REZEEY

The notes on pages 81 to 221 form part of the consolidated financial

statements.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 6 5 Z#ZBRER AT

Annual Report 2016/17 FER &

KB

2017 2016
=2 tf T RF

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

k=2 F#ET FET
169,328 92,002

30 352,354 175,278
447 ©2)
(124,174) (98,231)
(8,453) (9,494)
(2,456) (1,585)
(400) (400)

(220) —

(100) —

386,326 157,658

261,207 84,689

263,867 182,953

(3,029) (3,775)

522,045 263,867
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Company information

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21 May 2002 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law
Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman lIslands and its shares have been listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 19 November 2008.

The Company is domiciled in the Cayman Islands and has its
registered office and principal place of business at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and 16th Floor, Prosperity Tower, 39 Queen’s
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong, respectively.

Significant accounting policies
(@) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for year ended 31
March 2017 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(@) Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c) provided
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial

statements.

(o) Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial

statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the financial instruments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, derivative financial
instruments and investment property are stated at their fair

values (see notes 2(h), 2(i) and 2(j) respectively).

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on these consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 40.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ % 5 &t 83 4)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group. None of these developments have had
a material effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been prepared

or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period (see note 41).

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are

considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to

the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(n)(ii).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 4 sE B3 5] -

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or the
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in
the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see notes 2(g)
and 2(n)(i). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
whereas the Group’s share of post-acquisition post-tax
items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount
of the investment under the equity method together with the
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of
the Group’s net investment in the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition-date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values,
except that:

—  deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12, Income taxes, and HKAS 19, Employee benefits,
respectively;

— liabilities or equity instruments related to the
replacement by the Group of an acquiree’s share-
based payment awards are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2, Share-based payment; and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations, are
measured in accordance with that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()

(9)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill represents the excess of:

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of
the Group’s previously held interest in the acquiree;
over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then its excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Non-controlling interests may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost established at the date of acquisition of the business (see
note 2(f)) less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
arising on a business combination is allocated to each cash-
generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination
and is tested annually for impairment (see note 2(n)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h)

@

0

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Investments in equity securities held-for-trading are
classified as current assets. Any attributable transaction
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 2(n)(i)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investment property

Investment property is a building which is owned or held
under a leasehold interest (see note 2(m)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment property is stated at fair value. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss.

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for as
an investment property on a property-by-property basis.
Any such property interest which has been classified as an
investment property is accounted for as if it were held under
a finance lease (see note 2(m)), and the same accounting
policies are applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease
payments are accounted for as described in note 2(m).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

Other property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(n)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2(ab)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the estimated net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment (except for construction in
progress), less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight line method over their estimated useful lives at
the following annual rates:
Land and buildings Over the unexpired
term of lease
10.0%-33.3%
10.0%-33.3%

Machinery
Furniture and fixtures

Office and computer equipment 10.0%-33.3%

20.0% or over the
remaining terms of leases

Leasehold improvements

(whichever is shorter)

Motor vehicles 20.0%-33.3%

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(U]

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on
development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs, where applicable.
Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note
2(n)(ii). Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful life
of 5 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f 5 B £ 5h » 19 LB T HIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of

transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines

that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset

or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a

payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is

made based on an evaluation of the substance of the

arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement

takes the legal form of a lease, with the following exceptions:

(i)

property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on a
property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under
a finance lease (see note 2(j); and

land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is also
clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken
over from the previous lessee.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Leased assets (Continued)

(ii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over
the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property is
classified as an investment property (see note 2())).

(n) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current and
non-current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor or
borrower;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— the Group, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

— it becoming probable that the debtor or
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor or borrower;

—  oObservable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a portfolio of financial assets
since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified
with the individual financial assets in the
portfolio, including:

(1)  adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the portfolio; and

(2) national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the
portfolio; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in joint ventures recognised
using the equity method (see note 2(g)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with note 2(n)(ii).
The impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 2(n)(ii).

For trade, loans and other current receivables,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)
2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FEETHXRw®
(n) Impairment of assets (Continued) n EBEEREGE)
(i)  Impairment of investments in equity securities and () REFABFRZRERHAME

other receivables (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease

Wk B 2 B ()

HREBREBELR
HAFE R > - T &% Rl 8 A

can be linked objectively to an event occurring =B b B 2R (B S
after the impairment loss was recognised, the BB T Y B

impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding

81 (8 5 18 4 JR 2
[0 o 35 A5 B 1 B R 13

EHEE 7 REEER
that which would have been determined had no ;:’ ﬁ éﬁ& Z E\EE{ TL L
o o P38 1 4 2 30 M W SRR
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. L .
BEEMNREETE R
{8 °

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade, loans and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade and other receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to
that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)
2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FESTEXR®
(n) Impairment of assets (Continued) n EBEREHE)
(i)  Impairment of other assets (i) HMEEZHME
Internal and external sources of information are NERAINEBE R KRN & 2
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify WHARETRN - UEER
indications that the following assets may be impaired BEDRBTRANTEE &L
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss IR OB E 2 (i 8 B & B B
previously recognised no longer exists or may have SN ERIERZBEEET
decreased: BB R :
—  property, plant and equipment; - WE BHBELEE
intangible assets; - EBREE:
goodwill; and - HWE K
investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s —  ARBFBHBMRAKFR

statement of financial position.

MEBARZKRE -

i BB ERZEFTFR - BAE
AEEZAKRE 2 E M
S BEEMS BFEM
AAKREERANEERSAR

[f any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwiill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss

in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()

(9]

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(n)(i)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(q)

U]

(s)

Loans receivable

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of loans receivable
is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets, or if not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment (see
note 2(n)(i)).

Interest receivables

Interest receivables are interests derived from loans granted
to borrowers in the ordinary course of business. If collection
of interest receivables is expected in one year or less, they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Interest receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment (see
note 2(n)(i)).

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value of
the consideration that would be received at that time do not
vary, are accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an equity
component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %24 B f& 3R R Mt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&

B EAI

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(s)

(t)

Convertible notes (Continued)

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible
notes is measured as the present value of the future interest
and principal payments, discounted at the market rate of
interest applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar
liabilities that do not have a conversion option. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the
liability component is recognised as the equity component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound
financial instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on
the liability component is calculated using the effective
interest method. The equity component is recognised in the
convertible notes reserve until either the note is converted or
redeemed.

If the note is converted, the convertible notes reserve,
together with the carrying amount of the liability component
at the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital and
share premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the
note is redeemed, the convertible notes reserve is released
directly to retained profits/accumulated losses.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u)

v)

(w)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Trade and other payables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand and deposits with banks and securities brokers that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to

defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme in Hong Kong and defined contribution
government pension schemes in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(w)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans (Continued)

The employees in the PRC are members of the
retirement benefit scheme organised by the
government in the PRC. The Group is required to
contribute, based on a certain percentage of payroll,
to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. Contributions to this
retirement benefit scheme are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred except to the
extent that they are included in the cost of inventories
at the end of the reporting period.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in share-based payment
reserve within equity.

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which the Group receives services or goods from its
directors, employees and other eligible participants as
consideration for share options of the Company. The
fair value is measured at grant date using the Binomial
Lattice model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f 5 B £ 5h » 19 LB T HIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(w)

()

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)  Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payment reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payment reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based payment
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits/accumulated losses).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

()

Income tax (Continued)

Where investment property is carried at its fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(j),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at
their carrying value at the reporting date unless the property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

)

v)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously;
or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(y) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.

(z7 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue

is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Sale of goods

Revenue from the distribution sale of cosmetic and
skin care products and the sale of health, beauty and
related products is recognised when goods are
delivered at the customers’ premises which is taken to
be the point in time when the customer has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade

discounts.

(i) Revenue from the provision of beauty and

slimming services

Revenue from the provision of beauty and slimming
services is recognised in profit or loss in proportion to
the stage of completion of the service contract.
Revenue is also recognised in profit or loss in respect
of the deferred income upon expiry of the service

contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(2

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Franchise fees income

Franchise fees income is recognised on an accrual
basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

Management fee income

Management fee income is recognised when services
are rendered.

Referral fee income

Referral fee income is recognised when customers
referred by the Group to other parties and services are
rendered to the customers by the other parties.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. When a loan and interest
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loan and receivables are

recognised using the original effective interest rate.
Dividend income
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised

when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.
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2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(aa) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items, including
goodwill and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition of
foreign operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a
foreign operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is
translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the
date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 A st BA 5N 5 LB TT 51 7R)
2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FESTEXR®
(ab) Borrowing costs (ab) BEE R

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the BEEFEBEANE BEREIEES
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which RENBAUBEREEAER T
necessarily takes a substantive period of time to get ready EZEEZEERAGE RN A
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost ZHEEZEOIKA HMEE
of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the AR EE ARS8 o

period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a WEEEERY E£L£EEKX
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset K WEKH®KFEEENBIERE
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and TR EMS 2 EE
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its KA ERIAEZEEREEZ
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of MOKAK - BEFEEEREETH
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially EFETERBSKHEEMRE 28 K30
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for DyEE P EE e EE KK
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete. @d e EIEE R -
(ac) Related parties (ac) EBE AL
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, @ MWEATHFEATES A
is related to the Group if that person: ZATHEHERABEASE
A&
() has control or joint control of the Group; () HAREEZESZEG K

H A2 i 4

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEEEBEATE
75K
(i) is a member of the key management personnel iy AEAEBEFAE N
of the Group or the Group’s parent. AIZEEERAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 5

AR

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(ac) Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

U

(i)

(V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)() has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(ac) Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(ad) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

3 Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are the distribution sale of
cosmetic and skin care products, provision of beauty and
slimming services, provision of franchise services, sale of health,
beauty and related products, investments in securities and
provision of money lending business.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 5 Z#KRER A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

3 Turnover (Continued)

3 EXHe

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods supplied to BEEEmMEEIEAE R ER
customers, net of discounts, returns, value added tax or other RE EMERSEMEER 2 BZ2EH
sales taxes; service income from provision of beauty and slimming KARMEERLBLRE R =N
services, net of discounts; franchise fees income; net gains or BREWA s INBEEBIWA  BAFEE
losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; and HABSZEARMEEZWFENEIEF
interest income earned from the money lending business. The B UARKEEERIZFERA - F
amount of each significant category of revenue recognised in N NEXEBERRAZEZTEWSERS
turnover during the year is as follows: RN
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care DIHEE LA R EEE D
products 2,024,349 1,572,106
Provision of beauty and slimming services IRHER NSRS 100,183 71,322
Provision of franchise services REMBEIERS 6,885 10,207
Sale of health, beauty and related products (& R1E - EAREBEE S 5,941 8,276
Net realised gains on financial assets at far ~ Z AFEFABRZ SR EE
value through profit or loss 2 BEIR W FE 58,527 25,977
Net unrealised gains on financial assets at fair & A FEFABRZZ SR EE
value through profit or loss L AREIE WS FRR 26,585 5,662
Interest income from money lending WEZ F B A 5,947 -
2,228,417 1,693,550
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Other revenue and net income

Other revenue

Referral fee income
Management fee income
Bank interest income
Dividend income

Other interest income
Others

Other net income

Subsidy income from the PRC government

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Gain arising from acquisition of a subsidiary

Net foreign exchange loss
Others

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %2 B i8R R MisT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

4 HMWzmKRBAZRE

H At U &

MEERA
EEBWA
RITA B WA

e B M A
HAl F B A

H A

Hi WA FE

B B A A A
HEME HBEREREZ
YWz, (E518) %5
WE-—HNBRARMELZ
U s

PE 3 B 1R F FR

Hit
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2017 2016
—B-tF& T AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETL
— 12,374
= 7,101
1,052 1,363
1,168 —
389 —
85 334
2,694 21,172
1,591 2,598
234 (259)
1,663 —
1) (1,682)
841 61
4,328 718




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

5 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived after charging:

Finance costs:

Interest on bank loans

Interest on convertible notes
Interest on other liabilities
Interest on broker’s overdrafts
Interest on loan due to a director

Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration (note 7)):

Salaries, allowances and other
benefits

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses

(b)

5 ERB AR

B B A g A 2 0Bk T 51508

2017 2016
—Z2—+tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
BhE R
RITERZF B 2,456 1,585
AR E 2 F B 641 869
EmesBdEzFE 740 711
BREBEBEIT2F B 220 —
ER—Z2EEERZFE 100 —
4,157 3,165
BTIRA(BIEE S FHM
(KtaE7)) :
e RN EMET
85,492 77,143
ATEHFGRIREIE 2 H R
10,806 10,671
EREERMARAX
= 2,202
96,298 90,036
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

5 Profit before taxation (continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived after charging: (Continued)

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 6 5 Z#ZBRER AT

Other items:

Cost of inventories sold and services
provided*
Auditors’ remuneration
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Provision for impairment losses on
— trade receivables
— other receivables
Write off of
— trade receivables
— other receivables
— amounts due from related parties
Operating lease charges: minimum
lease payments

(c)

5 BREAERN®

HiIERE :

EEFERERHRY
Z AR

1% BUAD B &

B A E

ME HBERREITE

R 15 B 1R B A
—RKEZHIA

— H ftb &R IA

i

—EWE S HIA

— H ftb & U IR

— BB EA LA
REHEER: EHRE
BE:S

Cost of inventories sold and services provided includes HK$1,306,000 (2016: "
HK$1,262,000) relating to staff costs and depreciation, which amount is
also included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above

or in note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.

Annual Report 2016/17 FER &

BR AT A 2R T HIEE - ()

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,958,591 1,509,127
1,307 1,608
1,956 1,843
17,727 12,463
2,557 134

335 205

352 —

2,807 3,785

- 910

35,689 29,843

EEGEREBRHEBREZKRABIEEH
8 TR A K I E 21,306,000 T (=%
—NEF 11,262,000 7C) c ZE B E
SR D BIE A LSS FE5(0) B 5L
W2 HB B -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 6 ZEERXRAZHEBH
profit or loss
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (@) HZEBERAZHERE:
represents:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax EHRIE —BANER
Provision for the year (note 26(a)) FNEAE (i 26@) 14,422 2,766
Under provision in respect of prior years BEFERBTR 290 —
14,712 2,766
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax EHiHi1E — hE %
g
Provision for the year (note 26(a)) FNEAE (K27 26(a) 10,445 8,644
(Oven)//under provision in respect of BEFE GBERE), B
prior years HBHrRE (14) 136
10,431 8,780
Deferred tax IEREFRIH
Origination and reversal of temporary EARBOEREZRE
differences (note 26(b)(i)) (K1 ZE26(b)()) = (1406)
Income tax expense Frisfim X 25,143 11,400
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 5 4 sE B 4 -

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss (Continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

represents: (Continued)

U

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2017 is
calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year. Taxation for overseas
subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate current rates
of taxation ruling in relevant countries.

Under the PRC tax law, profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”)
derived since 1 January 2008 is subject to withholding
income tax at rates of 5% or 10% upon the distribution
of such profits to foreign investors or companies
incorporated in Hong Kong or for other foreign
investors, respectively. Pursuant to the grandfathering
arrangements of the PRC tax law, dividends receivable
by the Group from the PRC subsidiaries in respect of
the undistributed profits derived prior to 31 December
2007 are exempt from the withholding income tax.

At 31 March 2017 and 2016, no deferred tax liabilities
have been recognised in respect of tax that would be
payable on the unremitted profits of the PRC
subsidiaries derived since 1 January 2008 as the
directors of the Company is in a position to control the
dividend policies of the PRC subsidiaries and no
distribution of such profits is expected to be declared
from the PRC subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss (Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between income tax
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

expense and

6

REBRERAZHAMER @

(b)) FBHEAXEREARKRTELZ

Profit before taxation

Notional tax on profit before taxation,
calculated at the rates applicable to
profits/losses in the jurisdictions
concerned

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of temporary differences not
recognised

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised

Under provision in respect of
prior years, net

Others

Actual tax expense

BN RFZHE:
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
B A% A1 g ) 62,696 15,088
BREAAEN BETIE &
HARBAREER 2R
M/ BEZBEFE
22,944 7,280
T IR 2 e 2 2,353 1,402
BARBMBA 2 BHETE (7,951) (2,924)
AERELREZBIMBETE
(623) (854)
RERKRBARIEBEEE
e 12,139 10,003
HABERBATEERZ
MBx 2 (4,795) (3,348)
BOEFECBETRE  FE
276 136
HAh 800 (295)
EREBIERE 25,143 11,400

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED £ 5 Z# KGR 2 7
Annual Report 2016/17 FER &

119



120

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #& B i s R MIzT
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)
7 Directors’ remuneration 7 EEHH
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of RIED B R &A% 383(1) 1% ~ A A (]
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of the Companies EEENZER) B E2E kAl EIR
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation TR BEZESTFMOT -
and the GEM Listing Rules are as follows:
Salaries, allowances Retirement
Directors' fees and benefits in kind scheme contributions ~ Share-based payments Total
E=he §¢ 2RRENHG RIS L E &
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tE CT-F ZE-tf -E-5F ZB-tF ZTF ZB-tf CF-5F ZE-tfF —TE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
fé&z THr  FAx  FAr  TEn  TEr  FEx  TEr TEn TEx
Executive directors Hi7ES
Dr.Cheung Yuk Shan,  FERET
Shirley - - 3,120 3,120 18 18 - - 3,138 3,138
Mr. Mui Wai Sum BEFRE - - 360 360 18 18 - 1,11 378 1,489
Mr. Cheung Ka Heng, FEEREMZ
Frankie (resigned on B-nETC
31 December 2015) F=t-HE
f) - - S 187 - 1 - - - 501
Non-executive director ~ ¥#HTEE
Mr. Takashi Togo RAZLEE
(appointed on (RZF-R
15 March 2016) £=At1H
BZt) %0 11 - - - - - - 240 11
Independent non- BUFufEs
executive directors
Mr. Hong Po Kui, Marin -~ RE 8% £ 30 30 - - - - - - 30 30
Ms. Hui Yat Lam F-ERLT(R
(resigned on “E-NET
16 December 2016) ZATREE
ff) 43 60 - - - - - - 4 60
Ms. ChiuKamHing, Kathy #4804+ 50 50 - - - - - - 50 50
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, BeRrE(n=
Alfred (appointed E-AETZ
on16December 2016) A+ REZ
ff) 3 - - - - - - - 35 -
Mr. Li Kuo Hsing FRELE (R
(resigned on E-nETC
31 December 2015) F=t-HE
) - 30 - - - - - - - 20
398 181 3,480 3967 36 50 - 111 3914 5309
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 EEHAL
hE&eHALTH —B(ZE—-R
F MEB)RES HMWSFBERWET
BE - BHIMNEZE(ZE—ARF:=ZF)A

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2016:
two) is a director whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other four (2016:

three) individuals are as follows: T MESBEHNT
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FHETT
Salaries and other emoluments FehEMME 7,302 4,121
Retirement scheme contributions EARET B 70 36
7,372 4157

The emoluments of the four (2016: three) individuals with the ME(—E—RNE: = B)BRaHF AT

highest emoluments are within the following bands:

MEBR Ty E :

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A Z A Z

HK$NIl - HK$ 1,000,000 = 78 7T 21,000,000 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 /% 7T Z 2,000,000 7 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 /% 7T & 3,000,0007% 7T — 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 % 7T & 4,000,000 7T 1 =
4 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 A st BA 5N 5 LB TT 51 7R)
9 Earnings/(loss) per share 9 BEF, (EE)
(@) Basic earnings/(loss) per share @ SREXBRA (FHE)

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based
on the profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$26,071,000 (2016: loss of HK$3,744,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
approximately 2,110,522,000 (2016 (restated):
1,382,981,000) shares in issue during the year, calculated
as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Issued ordinary shares at 1 April RIMA—BERTEBEK

Effect of shares issued under rights issue  IBIFEHR D EITIRND 272
(note 30(a)(v)) (Kt 5£30@)V))

Effect of shares issued under open offer BIEARZEERRITRMD Z
(note 30(a)(iv)) & (K177 30(8)(v))

Weighted average number of ordinary R=ZA=+—HBzLER
shares at 31 March INHEF 198

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 5 Z#KRER A 7
Annual Report 2016/17 FER &

BREAXARBANA(BBR)RFERN
EERARREBE AR F L
26,071,000 T(ZF — N F :
183,744,000/ 7T) kB T E B
niEF 4 2,110,522,000 (= &
—NF (L EF) - 1,382,981,000)
REFE T :

ZBERMEFHE
2017 2016
—E-tF —TAF
000 000
FiR F i
(restated)
(F&E5)
1,821,136 915,121
289,386 —
— 467,860
2,110,522 1,382,981




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 5

9 Earnings/(loss) per share (Continued)

(b)

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

LA

C B TEIR)

(b)

The calculation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the
year ended 31 March 2017 is based on the profit
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately

HK$26,071,000 (2016:

loss of HK$2,875,000) and the

weighted average number of ordinary shares of

2,110,522,000 (2016 (restated):

calculated as follows:

(i)

1,456,666,000) shares,

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company

(diluted)

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of
the Company

After tax effect of effective interest in
the liability component of convertible
notes

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of
the Company (diluted)

BENARAEAE NG
M/ (B18)

ABRREBERERS
ERANEZHBRTE

BENRARAEAA
A (ER) (#5E)

BRERN,(EE) @)

SRBERR(FH)

HE-_Z—+t&F=A=+—H
tFE2ERESRF(EEB)
REBRARBEAR AR L
26,071,000 T(Z T — X F : &
182,875,000 7T ) K& & i@ % hn &
19 #2,110,522,000 (= T — ;N 4
(g &= 5) : 1,456,666,000) A% 5T &
T

() BERFIADEEANEF

(Ei18) (#8)
2017 2016
—E—tH —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAETT
26,071 (3,744)
— 869
26,071 (2,875)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %24 B f& 3R R Mt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B FE8A 4h - ¥ LB T HI7R)
9 Earnings/(loss) per share (Continued) 9 BRER(BE) @
(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (Continued) b) SREBERA (BB (&)
(i)  Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) (i) ZBBERMEFIGE (#EF)
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
000 000
TR FR
(restated)
(ES)
Weighted average number of ordinary WR=A=+—H 7 L@k
shares at 31 March hn#E 5 8 2,110,522 1,382,981
Effect of share options exercised EITFERECFE
(note 28) (Kizt28) = 165
Effect of conversion of convertible notes ## # AT AR Z 4% » 22 &
(note 25) (K7t 25) - 73,530
Weighted average number of ordinary HR=A=+—HZ @K
shares (diluted) at 31 March INHE ST 15 8 (H5E) 2,110,522 1,456,666

The assumed exercise of the outstanding share
options and convertible notes for the year ended 31
March 2017 has anti-dilutive effect and has therefore
been excluded from the above calculation.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for
2017 and 2016 above has been adjusted for the share
consolidation which was completed on 23 September
2016.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 5 Z#KRER A 7
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10 Segment reporting

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the directors that are used to make
strategic decisions. The directors review the Group’s financial
information mainly from business lines prospective. Accordingly,
the Group’s operating segments are:

(i) Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products

(i) Provision of beauty and slimming services

(i) Franchise operations (including sale of health, beauty and
related products to franchised shops)

(iv)  Sale of health, beauty and related products

(v)  Investment in securities

(v)  Money lending

The directors assess the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of reportable segment results. This
measurement basis excludes certain other revenue, other net
income, finance costs, share of results of joint ventures and
unallocated expenses.

Segment assets mainly exclude certain property, plant and
equipment, current tax assets and other assets that are managed
on a central basis. Segment liabilities mainly exclude current
income tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities and other liabilities that
are managed on a central basis.

C B TEIR)

10

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 5

7R E

EEECHBEEZEEEMAUELRE

MREZREBEEKEDH - EFEE

REBBRAEENAEBZHBER -

At REBEZ2&EDIH A

() DHEEELEREBEE®R

(i) TRHEED MRS RS

iy MEBEEEH(BERMNBEEE
HHEERRE AR EMBABE
o)

vy #HERFRRE XBFRHEBEESR

v BERE

V) HE

BRSO BEEELETRLLE
DWZzRB -A2REFBEETHEM
Wz B ACESE BB A - B

BEMREENRKDOBERAX -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (K 5= & s£ B 51 + 5 A% 7T 51l 7R )

10 Segment reporting (Continued)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities

e R ERR MR

10 D EHE &)

@ 2WXE BEEREE

2017
“E—tF
Distribution
sale of  Provision Sale of
cosmetic  of beauty health,
and skin and beauty and
care  slimming  Franchise related Investment Money
products services operations products in securities lending Total
PHHEE HERRE
Lk REEAR me E3Y5
EEER MERY SFEBE HEER BHRE B A
HK$°000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Reportable segment 7] 2§ 5 Utz
revenue 2,024,349 100,183 11,011 1,815 85,112 5,947 2,228,417
Reportable segment R[22 H EELE
results 32,023 (33,852) (8,100) 1,020 83,772 5,780 80,643
Unallocated corporate & 2 it 22 Al f %
expenses (13,790)
Profit from operations 4% % i F| 66,853
Finance costs BB AR (4,157)
Profit before taxation & B3 Al i 7 62,696
Income tax expense Frefim % (25,143)
Profit for the year E R A 37,553
Provision for impairment i {8 /E5 18 % -
losses on:
— trade receivables —EWE SHE 436 2,121 - - - - 2,557
— other receivables —HihEWRFIE - 335 - - - - 335
Write off of; s
— trade receivables —EWEFFE - - 352 - - - 352
— other receivables — HipEl A - 2,807 - - - - 2,807
Amortisation of EVEESH
intangible assets - 1,956 - - - - 1,956
Depreciation of property, #1% « # 82 K i&
plant and equipment e 878 13,105 337 2 1,195 - 15,517
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

e R SRR MR

10 Segment reporting (Continued) 10 78BS @
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (@ 7HEE BEEREGE)
2016
—E-RF
Distribution  Provision of Sale of
sale of beauty health,
cosmetic and and beauty and
skin care slimming Franchise related  Investment
products services  operations products  in securities Total
DEEE $HE R
ftH#k REEXETR MNEEHE E3 )4
EEER HBERH %% MHEER  BFHRE A
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Reportable segment revenue BES VR0 1,672,106 71,322 16,066 2,417 31,639 1,693,550
Reportable segment results AERNBEE 22,959 (16,462) (8,995) 1,102 31,443 30,047
Unallocated corporate expenses & 9 Bt 2 815 2 (10,894)
Profit from operations 18 A 19,153
Finance costs BEKAE (3,165)
Share of losses of joint ventures ~ JEH A ¥ E18 -
Profit before taxation BR 5t Al i A 15,988
Income tax expense FIERAY (11,400)
Profit for the year FREF 4,588
Provision for impairment HEBBERE:
losses on:
— trade receivables — BB FHE 134 — — — — 134
— other receivables — Hith B T8 — 55 — 150 - 205
Write off of: 58
— other receivables — Hith B T8 — 1,499 2,286 - - 3,785
— amounts due from related —EREEALT
parties WA - 910 - - - 910
Amortisation of intangible assets % 7 & /& # 4 — 1,843 - - - 1,843
Depreciation of property, ME BERIETE
plant and equipment 1,036 10,296 333 25 - 11,690
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A O 4=

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (K 5= & s£ B 51 + 5 A% 7T 51l 7R )

10 Segment reporting (Continued)

(@)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Distribution
sale of  Provision
cosmetic  of beauty
and skin and
care  slimming
products services
DHEE
ik #ES RUEER
Em RABRERH
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Segment assets DEEE
— Property, plantand ~ — ¥ - i 3¢
equipment B 2,652 35,276
— Intangible assets —BREE = 1,820
— Other assets —HuEE 332,929 170,572
Unallocated corporate R 9 Be A B &
assets
Total assets EEGE
Segment liabilities SEEE (246,077) (36,047)
Unallocated corporate KA e AR & &
liabilities
Total liabilities BERE
Additions to segment 9 BBIERENEE
non-current assets NE 1,086 26,481

10 D EHE &)

Franchise
operations

mEEE
E 3

HK$000
FET

625

7,724

(12,904)

102

(@)

2017
—E—+tF

Sale of
health,
beauty and
related
products
HERRE
E354
HEER
HK$°000
FET

1,983

(406)

Investment
in securities

EERE
HK$’000
FET

5,590

483,537

6,785

Money
lending

&
HK$°000
FET

93,420

(138)

595

e R ERR MR

THWER BEEREEE)

Total

A
a

HK$’000
FET

44,149
1,820
1,090,165

157,207

1,293,341

(295,572)

(63,947)

(359,519)

35,049
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10 Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Segment assets
— Property, plant and
equipment
— Intangible assets
— Other assets
Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities

Additions to segment
non-current assets

SHEE
~ 0% BERRE

—EBVAE
—HHAE
ADEARAE

¥
mt
b

S
$
B ow
S
el
puy
e

Distribution

sale of

cosmetic and

skin care
products
7 E
et B
BEESD
HK$'000
FET

2,832

227,850

(145,481)

784

10

Provision of
beauty

and
slimming
services

REETR
EERY
HK$'000
FET

31,320
3,776
201,788

(28,011)

14,774

DEEE (&

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

@ 2HXE BERAEE)

2016
—E-RF

Sale of

health,

beauty and
Franchise related  Investment
operations products  in securities

HERRE

mEEHE =YY
% MHEER JEFRE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
911 8 -
13,114 874 165,185
(17,519 - -
669 33 —

Total

A
A

HK$'000
S

35,071
3,776
598,811
155,031

792,689

(191,011)
(48,895)

(239,906)

16,260
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)
10 Segment reporting (Continued) 10 7 EHE &)
(b) Geographical information (b) HEEHR
The Group’s revenue from external customers and AEBIIBEEP ZWE B BE
information about its non-current assets by geographical ERBEEZERIRMAAEME S
locations are as follows: [N
2017
—ZE—tF

The PRC Hong Kong Total

i 58 aH

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET FET

Revenue from external customers 4p & F 7 W %5 2,072,238 156,179 2,228,417

Non-current assets EREBEE 579 170,652 171,231

2016
—E—RF

The PRC Hong Kong Total

H BB S

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET

Revenue from external customers 4pE8 & P 2 U 5 1,613,262 80,288 1,693,550

Non-current assets EREEE 20,327 88,507 108,834
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B £ 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

10 Segment reporting (Continued)

(©)

Major customers (c)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, three (2016: three)
customers with whom transactions exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue. Revenue from distribution sale of cosmetic
and skin care products to these customers in the PRC is set

out below:

Customer A Z2EA
Customer B ZFEB
Customer C =FC

10 7 EHwE &)

TEEF

REBEE-_ZT—tF=A=+—H
LEE =R(ZF—RF: =4)
BEPZRHMEAKEREE10% A
F-RAEETREFPDHEEL
e B B 2 W B ST

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT F&IL
679,426 557,937
552,454 278,938
328,331 235,562
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %2 B i8R R MisT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

11 Property, plant and equipment and investment 11 Y%  BKERREREEY

property ¥
Furniture  Office and
Land and and computer Leasehold ~ Motor Construction Sub- Investment
buildings Machinery fixtures equipment improvements vehicles in progress total  property Total
HRR
i BE BAER BE

kEF BE RE EZMRE  WEEB  RE  EEIR M RENE &4
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAR TERn TRET TAR TET Thrn TER TER

Cost or valuation: BASMEE:

At 1 April 2015 R-_B-—RE
MA—H - 20,444 6,068 9,694 37,454 13,281 500 87,341 - 87,341
Exchange adiustments [ ¥ & - (B56)  (410) (215) (1006)  (641) (26 (2674 — (2674
Additions NE 49,724 2,482 1,420 1,861 9,713 784 — 65984 — 05984
Additions through business EBE KA HRE
combination (note 34) (H1:£34) - 1,438 18 72 948 - — 2476 — 2476
Disposals He - {21y (1,021) (1,849 @68  (649) — 4109 - 4102)
At 31 March 2016 RZZ-R"%
=A=1+—8© 49,724 23,887 6,075 9,963 46,121 12,781 474 149,025 — 149,025
Representing: 1§
Cost KA 49724 23887 6075 9,963 46,121 12,781 474 149,025 — 149,025
At 1 April 2016 RZE—RF
MA—H 49,724 23,887 6,075 9,963 46,121 12,781 474 149,025 — 149,025
Exchange adjustments BN AR - (4306) (122) (188) (1,555) (705) (290 (3,035 - (3,039
Additions NE 44,517 1,089 682 355 15,318 8,305 — 70,266 8,001 78,267
Additions through business & B £ %A R E
combination (note 34) (B1:£54) - 50 32 9 125 - - 216 - 216
Disposals g - (171) - (135) - 23 - 549 - 549
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+tF
=A=1+—H© 94,241 24,419 6,667 10,004 60,009 18,144 445 213,929 8,001 221,930
Representing: i
Cost %A 94,241 24,419 6,667 10,004 60,009 18,144 445 213,929 — 213,929
Valuation @ - - - - - - - - 8,001 8,001
94,241 24,419 6,667 10,004 60,009 18,144 445 213,929 8,001 221,930
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B £ 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

11 Property, plant and equipment and investment 11 ¥ ¥ - B ERRERKREY

property (Continued) EY¢
Furniture ~ Office and
Land and and computer Leasehold ~ Motor Construction Sub- Investment
buildings Machinery fixtures equipment improvements vehicles in progress total  property Total
BRR
TR BE WAE Be

BF BE HE EERE NEEE  RE  ERIB Mt RENE A#
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET ThErx ThEx AL ThER TEL TET TEr TiExn

Accumulated RiHE:
depreciation:

At 1 April 2015 RZZE—1F

NA—H - 17,597 4,541 7,775 19,118 8,729 — 57,760 — 57,760
Exchange adjustments ERAE - (2695) (102) (94) (510) (490) - (1,461) - (1,461)
Charge for the year FNTE 753 1,534 446 550 7503 1,677 — 12,463 — 12,463
Written back on disposals {1} & ¥ # g - (116)  @877) (1,252 968  (579) - (3792 - (379
At 31 March 2016 RZZE—RF

=A=1+—H 753 18,750 4,008 6,979 25,143 9,337 - 64,970 — 64,970
At 1 April 2016 RZE-—R%F

MA—H 753 18,750 4,008 6,979 25143 9,337 - 64,970 - 64,970
Exchange adiustments  [E % 5% - (330) 73 (144) (863)  (494) - (1,904) — (1,904)
Charge for the year FRME 2,197 1,695 604 864 9926 244 - 7727 - 7727
Written back on disposals () & B # o] - (171) - (124) - (2010 - (2,309 - (2,309
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—tF

=A=1+-H 2,950 19,944 4,539 7,575 34,206 9,274 — 78488 — 78488
Carrying amount: REE:
At 31 March 2017 i S o2

“A=+-H 91,291 4,475 2,128 2,429 25,803 8,870 445 135,441 8,001 143,442
At 31 March 2016 RZE—R

=A=+-H 48,971 5137 2,067 2,984 20,978 3444 474 84,055 — 84,055
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

11 Property, plant and equipment and investment
property (Continued)

(@  The land and buildings and investment property are situated
in Hong Kong under medium-term lease.

(b)  Investment property

Investment property was revalued at its open market value
as at 31 March 2017 by an independent professional valuer,
ARM Appraisals Limited, an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors.

The market value of investment property was determined
using market comparison approach by reference to recent
sales price of comparable properties on a price per square
foot basics using market data which is publicly available.
This valuation is categorised as Level 2 fair value
measurement within the three-level fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement.

Level 2 fair value measurement is those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices within Level 1, or significant
unobservable inputs within Level 3. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

No rental income was derived from the investment property
as the investment property has not been leased out during
the year ended 31 March 2017.
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E_RATFEFERERNB AR
BEMIEFE —MANZRE KFE=
BATAERE ABE- T8 8
RBAREBERSTSBIEELRER
ZBANHIE -

RAEREVERBE_T—LF=
A=+—BLEEFERKRLE #
BREMEELTHSRA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)
12 Intangible assets 12 BELEE
Website
costs
8 uh B A<
HK$'000
FAETT
Cost: RN
At 1 April 2015 N_E—RFNMA—H 9,072
Additions NE 711
At 31 March 2016, 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 R -ZT—XE=ZA=+—H
—E—-XRFMA HX
—E—tF=HA=+—H 9,783
Accumulated amortisation: Rt
At 1 April 2015 RZZE—RFMA—H 4,164
Charge for the year F G 1,843
At 31 March 2016 RZZE-RF=ZA=+—H 6,007
At 1 April 2016 N_E—RFWEOA—H 6,007
Charge for the year F R E 1,956
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—+F=A=+—H 7,963
Carrying amount: BRMEE :
At 31 March 2017 RZTE—t+F=RA=+—H 1,820
At 31 March 2016 RZE-—RF=ZA=+—AH 3,776
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “general and FRAZEHEERAFAGEBRER 22—
administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or W RATBF S »
loss.
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Goodwill is accounted for in accordance with the Group’s

accounting policies as set out in note 2(g).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B SRR MiET
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)
13 Goodwill 13 &
HK$'000
FET
Cost: RN :
At 1 April 2015 R-_ZE—RFWMA—H 341
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 34) KB U — B AR (B E34) 16,564
At 31 March 2016 RZE—R"E=ZA=+—H 16,905
At 1 April 2016 R-E—R"FEOA—H 16,905
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 34) BN B AR (K7 iE34) 9,085
At 31 March 2017 R-E—+F=ZA=+—H 25,990
Accumulated impairment: 2itHE
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016, 1 April 2016 and 31 R-ZE—REMA—H —F— < 4F
March 2017 =A=+—B8B —Z—X"FWA—H
r—E—+HF=ZA=+—H 21
Carrying amount: SRTEE
At 31 March 2017 R-E—+F=ZA=+—H 25,969
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RF=ZA=+—H 16,884

B R M 2 P Bl 2 A K B & 5 R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

13 Goodwill Continued) 13 &%)
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwil has been RENRAME  BECERBEEKER

SEEAEEZEBEREEEEN

(ReELEBMN) SXBHIBOT

allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs) identified
according to country of operations and business segment as
follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FET
Provision of beauty and slimming services RMEER MG R
— Hong Kong (“Unit A”) — BB (TEMA]) 16,564 16,564
Provision of beauty and slimming services BEEFTNEERE
— PRC (“Unit B”) - E(TEuB)) 8,490 -
Money lending — Hong Kong BE— &S 595 -
Multiple units without significant goodwill BEABE L EEM 320 320
25,969 16,884

The directors have reviewed the carrying amount of goodwill in

ESEREFLGTEAFEIREE

accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of assets. BESEEEERE-
Unit A BNA

The recoverable amount of Unit A is determined based on value-
in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth rate of 3%
(2016: 3%). This growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rates for the market in which Unit A operates. The
cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of 21.2% (2016:
21.3%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific
risks relating to Unit A. Other key assumption for the value-in-use
calculation relates to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
included budgeted sales, such estimation is based on the Unit A’s
past performance and management’s expectations for the market
development including the fluctuation in beauty and slimming
service business in the current economic environment in Hong
Kong.

BRAZA KO EZEEREMETES
EET  WEHEFEAARREEED
ZEZAFHVBEEER RSN
EEAN - AFHUE ReERERER
HETIEFHEREIR(ZE—RF
3%)HEE - W ERT TN BBEMAL
BEmig o REAFHERE -HaRENU
212% (= F — /N F : 21.3%) Bh 3 & &b
IR o FTER FA RN IR 3 /5 40 BR 15 18 A1 [ /= B
EHEMAZEERR - BEEFEL A
ZHEMETEZEBRREBFEEFEEANL
Bem A/ mbhsrBEE - BEMTE
REBEMABRTEEREEEYMISEE
PREEEAEELSERENER L
BRI XML E) 2 TEED -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

13

14

Goodwill continued)
Unit B

The recoverable amount of Unit B is determined based on value-
in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth rate of 3%.
This growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth
rates for the market in which Unit B operates. The cash flows are
discounted using a discount rate of 18.8%. The discount rate
used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to Unit B. Other
key assumption for the value-in-use calculation relates to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which included budgeted
sales, such estimation is based on the Unit B’s past performance
and management’s expectations for the market development
including the fluctuation in beauty and slimming service business
in the current economic environment in PRC.

In the opinion of the directors, any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying amounts
of the CGUs to exceed their recoverable amount.

Interests in and amounts due from joint
ventures

Share of net liabilities
Amounts due from joint ventures

EIEREFR

Amounts due from joint ventures

The amounts due from joint ventures at 31 March 2016 were
unsecured, interest free and had no fixed terms of repayment.
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14

BHE s
BB

BBzl B« BRFERABETNES
EET - WHEFEAAARREERED
REZhAEHUWEEEELR RSN
EEA -AFHNEZReREFERMG
ETINEFE I R EI%HEE - IR X
WAHBABMBEEMS 2 KEFIIIL
EX-BE&REN18.8%EHIR KALIR -
FrRAREANBRMEARREE
MEMBzEBRAR BEFEFEZ
B EFERFZEDIERIHEAN IR
SRA/MEHAHER  BEMETER
BEUBBAXEREEEHMEGERE
FEPERELERENED L4 8
R % EB 28 -

EERR EARFREZEEALE
P T eEYRNeELBENZREE
HBBE AT Yo & A8 -

\EELECEBERERS

g R

2017 2016
—B—tF —TKE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET

= (6,028)

- 6,028

- 3,117

RZZE-—RE=ZA=+—H EBkK&a%
CEFESEER R2ENREBTENR
5 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

14 Interests in and amounts due from joint
ventures (Continued)

Details of joint ventures, which were accounted for using the
equity method in the consolidated financial statement and are

material to the Group are as follows:

Particulars of

Place of issued

incorporation/ and paid up

Name of company operations capital
RNEER A BERITREH
=385 RAFE

Wealthy Sound Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares
EBERAT BB 10,000 % % 15
BEHEESHERNGER) The PRC Registered capital
BRAF of US$150,000
BEHEEHEERUR) H RPN
BRAA 150,000% 7T
ENBEXAZULR) The PRC Registered capital
BRAF of RMB500,000
ENBEXAZH(GER) [ HMERARE
BRAF 500,0007T

14

RABGZRN G BERRTINEKZ
EERCERHEASEMEBERZH
BT :

Proportion of indirect
effective ownership interest

BEREEREESLLH

2017 2016 Principal activity

—E—tF —T-RF FEER

N/A* 50% Investment holding
8 A REER
N/A* 50% Provision of beauty and

slimming services
and investment

holding
i8R~ REET R E
AR 75 LA I 3% & 15 3%
N/A* — Inactive
38 R B

Wealthy Sound Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, {& & &
FHERILR)BRAR and ENEZERZMUELR)BRAF
(together “Wealthy Sound Group”), are unlisted corporate entities
whose quoted market prices are not available.

*

The Group has acquired all the remaining equity interests in these
entities on 23 May 2016 (see note 34(c)) and since then, these entities
have become subsidiaries of the Group.

EEBRAGREZEWNBAREBH
FEHERN(ER)ERAARENE
BXRAZHOLR)BRAG(FE[EE
EEDAYEERMISMEZIIFE LT
ES

T-RFERAZ+=BK

AEEERZE
BREZSEEMBH TRARRS (RK =
34 EEERE REBEROKALE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %24 B f& 3R R Mt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

14 Interests in and amounts due from joint 14
ventures (Continued)

Summarised financial information of Wealthy Sound Group,

REELECEERERS
EIERE )

IE/\A XSBEEZHBENM

adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and a M(ERE et RE=ERELH
reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial g) U RRSAVEREIERMEY
statements, are disclosed below: HEWEMT :
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Gross amounts of Wealthy Sound Group EBEECHE
Non-current assets FEMBEE 212
Current assets MEBEE 8,981
Current liabilities mE B & (21,859)
Non-current liabilities B AE (3,969)
Net liabilities 8RBT (16,635)
Included in the above assets and liabilities: ALREENAEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBReEMEY 1,266
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and ~ R#H 4R EBE (TBEENE Z X
other payables and provision) TR Ko HoAth JE A FRIE R ) —
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade  3Em B @ R & & (°F /P] HENES
and other payables and provision) RN H A R FE R ) —
Revenue 1 &= 487 9,148
Profit/(loss) for the period/year MR/ ERksES(ER) 1,634 (3,519)
Other comprehensive income Hib 2w 263 698
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for HA W/ FREEWE(EB)
the period/year 4858 1,897 (2,821)
Included in the above profit/(loss): sEA btk s (&18) ¢
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4% - MR B2 T E — —
Interest income FLE WA - 4
Interest expense FEFX = -
Income tax expense Frisfim < - -
Note: The information on profit or loss items for the year ended 31 March B R iLz’;"'J@Zi_ T—+E=A= + =
2017 presented above represents the amounts recognised from 1 April TEEBFEREMIEE -_Z—REN

2016 to 22 May 2016.

B—RAZE—
REHE

Reconciled to the Group’s interest in Wealthy BEEAEBREBEB 2 #E >

Sound Group
Wealthy Sound Group’s net liabilities
Group’s effective interest
Group’s share of Wealthy Sound Group’s net
liabilities
Amount due from Wealthy Sound Group

Carrying amount of the Group’s interests in joint
ventures

Ea
SEEEREFE
ZIKEIZA[‘%WE

REBEESBEEBE ZBERE
& i B £ T GRIE

N BECEZASERERZ
fRmEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 5

14

15

16

RSN - A TTHIR)

Interests in and amounts due from joint
ventures (Continued)

As at 31 March 2016, the Company’s share of losses of joint
ventures exceeded its interests in the joint ventures and the
accumulated unrecognised losses amounted to HK$2,290,000.

Deposit paid

The balance as at 31 March 2016 represented cash deposit paid
in relation to the acquisition of the remaining 50% equity interests
in Wealthy Sound Limited. Details of the aforesaid acquisition are
disclosed in note 34(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

Inventories

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position
comprise:

SLAX o

Merchandise

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows:

EEFEZREE
5 & MO

Carrying amount of inventories sold
Write down of inventories

15

16

REEDLECZEZRERS
EhERE B
RZE—XRFEF=ZA=+—H ARQ 7
EhAaEtXEBEBEBERGELE
D MEBFARAEREBZ2EEA
2,290,000 Jt °
EffEE
RZE—RNF=ZA=+—"HBH&E%EE
UK BB A éﬁ@“ﬁ%TZm%%K
T*°ﬁﬁtL%%$EZ¢I RERE
B 75 R 2% MY 3£ 34(c) R IR FE o
FE
RERBRARAZGEERRE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
9,415 10,559
BRAERITABZ ZHFESED
Mo :
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE FET
1,945,204 1,500,210
- 1,651
1,945,204 1,501,861
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& B B &£ B 51 » 9 A L3I R)

17 Financial assets at fair value through profit or 17 MAFEFAEBEZZzs@E

loss =3

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (note a) & & E kA& % (ffsta) 117,493 42,530

Unlisted convertible bonds in Hong Kong EEB LAl R E S (M iFb)
(note b) 14,309 —
Unlisted equity fund outside Hong Kong EBBIRLETRAES 7,944 -
139,746 42,530

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 5 Z#Z=RER A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

17 Financial assets at fair value through profitor 17 R AT Bt ABHZ 2 MmE

loss (Continued) E )
(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (@ BFBLTRAIZS
As at 31 March 2017, the Group had financial assets at fair N—E—+FEF=A=+—H ~A&E£EFA
value through profit or loss representing equity securities BAFHEFABRZEREE  EEB
listed in Hong Kong of approximately HK$117,493,000 (2016: FHARRARFES4117,493,0008 L (=&
HK$42,530,000). Details of significant investments are as — N4 42,530,000/ ) © BB KRB FE
follows: (=R N
2017
ZE-tF
Percentage Market Unrealised
of total value at gain/(loss)
issue share the end of Percentage on change Dividend
Number of capital the to the in fair Gain/  received
Name of investee shares owned by reporting  Group’s value for (lossjon  for the
Stock code  company Principal activities held the Group Cost  period total assets the year disposal year
ERAY
iy - E2E
RERT RERE (458 2Kk28R HE
5E REBE Rhs EELE WH/ KB/ FAEK
RAKS HRELRNER TEXH RHBE t Bl KA EE e (BB (BB BRR
'000 % HKS$000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TR FExT THEn TEx THErT FiEx
8101 JiaMeng Holdings  Design, manufacture and sale of mattressesand 221,728 767% 17,7388 27,494 2.13% 6,680 - -
Limited soft bed products in the PRC and export of (note) (note)
mattresses to overseas markets; securities (Hfit) (W)
investment in Hong Kong; and property
investment
8101 REERBRAR RPER; LERHERBNERER I
MENTIELORE: REBREZES
ARMERE
8215 First Credit Finance ~ Money lending business 31,000 0.85% 8,352 13,640 1.05% 5,288 150 1,050
Group Limited
8215 F-EREREE REER
BRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %2 B i8R R MisT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

17 Financial assets at fair value through profit or 17 MAFEFAEBEZZzs@E

loss (Continued) -3¢ )
(@) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued) (@ BFEBELTRAZHE)
2017
ZB-tF
Percentage Market Unrealised
of total value at gain/(loss)
issue share the end of Percentage on change Dividend
Number of capital the to the in fair Gain/  received
Name of investee shares owned by reporting  Group’s valuefor (lossjon  for the
Stock code  company Principal activities held  the Group Cost  period total assets the year disposal year
FHDT
£39 B2
RERT RERH HA%E 2RER HE
BE RAEE R BELE WE/ KE/ EREK
RGRE HREVNFDEE TEEH RO #E 4] R BE el (B8R (BB BRE
'000 % HK$000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000
TR TAr THx FEn THERT TFiEx
275 Master Glory Group  Trading of securities, industrial water supply 64,210 0.62% 8255 13227 1.02% 4972 601 -
Limited business, property development and trading
and other strategic investments
275 HESBERAR XFEF TEHKER WEREERSR
HEtEBEE
1082 Hong Kong Provision of private educational services, 10,000 1.83% 4,000 11,500 0.89% 7,500 - -
Education (Int'l investment in securities, property investments
Investments and money lending business
Limited
1082 EEHE(ER) RELAUERS REESH WERERH
RESBERAR {EB
NS
8178 China Information  Development and sale of computer software and 73,288 1.27% 9,397 11,060 0.86% 1,663 1,097 -
Technology hardware, provision of system integration and
Development related support services, provision of IT
Limited infrastructure solutions and maintenance

services, money lending and securities trading

8178 hEE SRR HEREESHEMRES REZREN
BRARAA RABXERS REEANREREE
BANRREERSE RENREFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

17 Financial assets at fair value through profit or 17 MAFEFAEBEZZs@E
loss (Continued)

(@

Stock code

Betn 5%

8269

8269

8101

8101

1499

1499

8268

8268

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued)
2016
—E-RF
Name of investee Number of
company Principal activities shares held
fBERH
BREDTAE ITEEXE L=
‘000
it
Wealth Glory Coal trading business; trade natural resources 199,980

Holdings Limited ~ and commaodities; develop and promote
brands, design, manufacture and sale fashion
and other products; money lending and
secured financing business; and investment in
securities

EEERBERAR EREBHE% EHaRERNAER: HE
REE@E Rt BERNHERKEE
m ERRERBERER: RREES

Jia Meng Holdings  Design, manufacture and sale of mattressesand 106,048
Limited soft bed products in the PRC and export of
mattresses to overseas markets; securities
investment in Hong Kong; and property
investment

REER R BER WEEEERBNERER T
BAA MENTHEORE: REEREES
NRMERE
LEAP Holdings Provision of foundation works and ancillary 23,080
Group Limited services; and construction wastes handling at

the public fill reception facilities managed by
the Government in Hong Kong
MERREEER RUARIBRENRE : URBFEEE
R ERRRENREZEIENEE

Deson Construction - Provide building construction works, electricaland 16,504
International mechanical engineering works and alterations,
Holdings Limited ~ addition, renovation, refurbishment and
fitting-out works, mainly in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Macau

HERREREE TEREE PERBREMRMARET

BRRAE BoERERRIRRIE FE BF
HEMKEIR

=)

@ BBELWREFZSE)

Percentage Market Unrealised
of total value at gain/(loss)
issue share the end of Percentage on change Dividend
capital the to the in fair value Gain/  received
owned by reporting  Group’s forthe  (loss)on for the
the Group Cost period total assets year  disposal year
ERRT
REER EEabd
R RERE BA%E RER HE
RAE%E A5 EELE Ba/(B ks FRE
Ll KA EE s fl B) (BB WBRE
% HK$000 HK$000 % HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET THERT FEr THErT FEx

487% 13999 15398 1.94% 1,399 2,584 -

4.58% 8484 11,559 1.46% 3,075 13 -

1.01% 5770 10,271 1.30% 4,501 866 -

165% 8087 4786  060%  (3301)  (1,799) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %24 B f& 3R R Mt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B 51 + ¥ A& T oI 7R)

17 Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued)

Note: Investment cost in this investee company represented the initial
acquisition cost for the investee company. The investment in this
investee company was made by the Group in prior years. For
that part of investment in this investee company which was made
in prior years, it was subject to unrealised gain/ (loss) on change
in fair value was recognised at the financial year end of the
respective years. The unrealised gain/ (loss) on change in fair
value of this investee company for the year ended 31 March
2017 excluded gain/ (loss) being recognised in prior years.

The fair values of listed equity securities are determined
based on the quoted market closing price available on the
Main Board and the GEM of the Stock Exchange at the end
of the reporting period.

(b)  Unlisted convertible bonds in Hong Kong

On 18 April 2016, the Group subscribed unsecured, three-
year maturity 2% coupon convertible bonds with a principal
amount of HK$12,000,000 from Deson Construction
International Holdings Limited (“Deson”), a company listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

The Group, as a holder of the convertible bonds has:

(i) an option to request Deson to redeem the convertible
bonds by the Group at its principal amount
outstanding together with all accrued and unpaid
interest at the date of redemption on 17 April 2019 or
the occurrence of other conditions as provided for
under the definitive subscription agreement; and

(i) an option to convert the convertible bonds into
ordinary shares of Deson at the conversion price
based on certain conditions on the date of conversion
as provided for under the definitive subscription
agreement.

The convertible bonds, together with abovementioned
options, were designated as a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss and recognised at fair values.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 5 Z#KRER A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

18 Trade and other receivables

18 B E Z FIE Kk H b & WK

15

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FE T FEIT

Trade receivables FEWE 5 I8 249,794 212,949

Less: allowance for doubtful debts (note 18(b)) & : = BR B4 (K7 18(b)) (3,350) (855)
246,444 212,094

Other receivables H b fE IR 97,185 104,387
Prepayments and deposits FENFRIERIEZS 45,536 45,861
142,721 150,248

Included in the Group’s other receivables, prepayments and
deposits were rental, utilities and other deposits amounting to
approximately HK$39,410,000 (2016: HK$47,254,000), which are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses after more
than one year. All of the other trade and other receivables are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses within one
year.

Included in the Group’s other receivables were amounts due from
slimming business partners and consultants of approximately
HK$87,039,000 (2016: HK$89,936,000), net of allowance for
doubtful debts of approximately HK$14,794,000 (2016:
HK$14,459,000) and advances to staff of approximately
HK$1,315,000 (2016: HK$1,059,000).

EEAREE 2 H B W RIE - AR
HRkiEeABS 2B&HEREEMIZ
© #939,410,000% T ( = T — X F:
47,254,000 7T) - TEHAR BB —F 1B I
ElkERERAS - FTBEEMEKRE K
BEEREMERKEERRN —FRUYE

ETAKRE B 2 H b B U R IE A FE WA
BE 2 5 R 1 R EE [ 2 3UIE £987,039,000
77T (ZZ — 75 4F ¢ 89,936,000/% JT) (31
B R BE B 15 4914,794,00008 T (— & —
N 114,459,000 ) &) R E T
B 2 FIB 41,315,000 L (ZF — X
4 1,059,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %2 B i8R R MisT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)
18 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 18 EWESRERAEMEKRR
I8 ()
(@) Ageing analysis (@ MRERDMN
As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of REREEKR EWE S zZE(ER
trade receivables, based on the invoice date and net of BEHAHLNG REREER) ZE
allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows: BT
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Less than 1 month LR1E A 241,292 163,243
1 to 2 months 1Z22M@A 783 39,910
More than 2 months but less than 4 months % A 2{& A8 L R 4@ A 248 3,131
More than 4 months but less than 12 months % R 41 A 18 L 7 12{& A 445 1,625
More than 12 months 1218 A A 3,676 4,185
246,444 212,094
Trade receivables are usually due within 30 to 90 days from FEWEBESRIE—MAZXEZHEE
the date of biling. Further details on the Group’s credit FFS0ZEQQRHEIH - AEEEEK
policy are set out in note 31(a). R2E—THBHNRMES3@) -

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 6 5 Z#ZBRER AT

148 Annual Report 2016/17 FER &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

18 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade
receivables directly (see note 2(n)(i)).

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debt during
the year, including both specific and collective loss
components, are as follows:

At 1 April REA—H
Impairment loss recognised BHERZRERE
Exchange adjustments b X 3 &

At 31 March R=A=+—H

At 31 March 2017, the Group’s trade receivables of
approximately HK$3,350,000 (2016: HK$855,000) were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to customers that were in
default in payments and management assessed that only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$3,350,000 (2016: HK$855,000) was recognised.

18 EWEZFERH i EWRK
8 (%)

(b)

B8 5% RERE

FEURE 53k IE 2 % B & B A&
BRI BRIEAEBEFHKD
ZHBEZAREMEGRE ERBER
T O REBEEERERE S K
TE e (R EE2(n)() ©

FR-REEE(EEERNRXR

BRSH) ZEHMT -
2017 2016
—B—tF& —TXF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F# T Fi# T
855 764
2,557 134
(62) (43)
3,350 855

RZE—+E=A=+—H &
£ B 7 W E 5 FIE 43,350,000
BT (= Z — /N 1 855,000/ Jr)
WEBETE AT RAE - Z@73R
BEEKARBEEZENNRZER,E
WmEEENEEAES S E
WO IE AT LAY B - it R ER A B
B 1#3,350,000 8 L (ZE — N F «
855,000/ 7t) B HER °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

18 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:

Neither past due nor impaired

Less than 1 month past due

1 1o 2 months past due

More than 2 months but less than
4 months past due

More than 4 months but less than
12 months past due

More than 12 months past due

BE 4 360 2 N O OB (B

wE A E A
wHEI1 =218 A
mEZR2@AME D
R 41E A

‘A R4EAE D
»121E B
BE12M@ A L &

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate

to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent

history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a

number of independent customers that have a good track

record with the Group. Based on past experience,

management believes that no impairment allowance is

necessary in respect of these balances as there has not

been a significant change in credit quality and the balances

are still considered fully recoverable.
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18 BWE 5 FIR K H b & WK

8 (%)

(c)

IR E 2 B E 57 FOR

B 4 1 5 % 4 £ R s R (E 8 T
WA 2 R 5 R 2 S
mF :

2017 2016
—2-tF -—T-AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
229,209 189,685
12,805 15,097
739 1,389

38 1,315

237 571
3,416 4,037
17,235 22,409
246,444 212,004

BE 48 780 HA 7% 4 ORG B 2 FRE WRR IR B
ZRAUEBORERCBRIERE
fg -

B8 HI B3 &R B 2 B R R
HEEZRAEERAERTFAER
THRZBYEFPAB- -REBE
K AR EEERLEEARE
B AEBRDEESA 2 EK
- REEBHREBARXSTHE
R HRE R R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

19 Loans receivable

The Group’s loans receivable arise from the money lending
business of providing loans in Hong Kong by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding loans receivable to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management.

Details of loans receivable as at 31 March 2017 are as follows:

Secured loans by personal guarantees BABRREERER
Unsecured loans EIERER

Loans receivable as at 31 March 2017 are interest-bearing at
rates ranging from 8% to 54% per annum and repayable on
maturity date under the terms in contractual agreements or on
demand in writing by the Group.

19 BWRER

ARERREREREBREERT
ARF R ERANER T HEES
B o AN SR N B AR ELR 1B A
WEHAREREEEAR - EREE
BEBD B -

RURERNR _—_T—tF=A=1+—8H
ZEBEMT

HK$'000
FET

8,721
51,200

59,921

RZZE—tF=A=+—H EKRER
NEFENFEE4E S HAR
BAEANBEGROIHALZAEHE
EWERERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %24 B f& 3R R Mt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 5 4 sE B 4 -

19 Loans receivable (Continued)

(@) Ageing analysis

Neither past due nor impairment

Less than 1 month past due

BB TTIIR)

REBER IR R RLE
— 18 AR 5

In respect of loans receivable which have been past due,

the amounts mainly represent occasional delay in

repayment. Accordingly, the management is of the opinion

that no impairment allowance on this individual loan in

necessary.

The credit quality of loans receivable that are neither past

due nor impaired has been assessed by reference to

historical information about counterparty default rates. The

existing counterparties do not have defaults in the past.

20 Interest receivables

The Group’s interest receivables arise from the money lending

business of providing loans in Hong Kong by a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company.

Interest receivables, apart from the interest receivables derived

from loan balances of HK$8,721,000 which are secured by

personal guarantees from the borrowers’ guarantors, are

unsecured. All of the interest receivables are repayable on maturity

date under the terms in contractual agreements or on demand in

writing by the Group.

As at 31 March 2017, all of the interest receivables are neither

past due nor impaired, and are wholly repayable within one year.
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19 EWER®)

(@ BRERDAT

HK$'000
FET

58,421
1,500

59,921

SEMERERME  KREBEXTE
RBAELEZER - Hit - EEE
R A6 B Bt B B & RAE R
(RS

REB|ITRBERKERZEE
ZEC2REMUBTRENRES
BRETHG - BRHFHIBE

20 EWR B

AEBRKANEREARAZENEB
RANRBBRBERZBNEE -

JE W FI B Bk B fE BRA BR A B AER
EH | 2 B 54 #:8,721,000% T
G- 19 BRI - FT B EIRF BN E L
BEER TR EA AR EAEERE
HERKERE-

RZZE—tF=ZA=+—B FAEEK
MEBREBMARREESR —FR
TREE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 A i B3 5) 5 LA TT 51 7R)
21 Amounts due from/to related parties 21 W ENEEALRE
2017 2016
—®-t& -T-~7F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Amounts due from: JE W FRIE -
— related companies (note) —BERAE (K i) 1,428 1,438
— a holder of non-controlling interest —FERESREA 2 2
1,430 1,440
Amounts due to: JE - 3RE :
— adirector of a subsidiary ——fNBRRz—RES 22,633 36,142
— a holder of non-controlling interest —JEEREEFEAA 14,675 10,224
37,308 46,366

22

Note: Certain directors of subsidiaries have significant influence over these

related companies.

The amounts due from or to related parties are unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

Bank loans

The bank loans are repayable within one year, and secured by
pledge of certain trade receivables amounting to approximately
HK$143,342,000 (2016: HK$76,942,000) and personal guarantee

by a director of a subsidiary.

BERAYEN-

BNBRBREE -

22 SRITER

M - ETHEARNEETYZEAMERAE

S BN BEA L REREER &

RITEREAN—FAREE WAETE
W & 5 3 IE #7143,342,00078 T (& —
7N 0 76,942,0007%8 7T) K — i B A A

Z—REEZEAEREER-
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

23 Trade and other payables

24

23 BN EZFMIERHEMEMNK

b1 |
2017 2016
—E—+t5F ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Trade payables JENTE 5308 38,938 39,693
Other payables and accrued charges HthErRmEkETER 130,449 64,201
169,387 103,894
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or FIERNESHEREthERKERE
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on HKER—FREEXERBIANKE
demand. REREER-
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with the LT AFTARNE S RIE K EMER
following ageing analysis as of the end of the reporting period: REZENEBESREREZBREARZE
B DA
2017 2016
—Z2—t5F —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
Due within 1 month or on demand A 11E A Ak Z sk 2| H 38,938 39,693
Amount due to a director 24 B —RBESNE
The amount due to a director, Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley, is ENESZREME L 2 HEFEEM
unsecured and repayable on demand. Apart from a loan of M BE ZE KB E - B B 320,000,000
HK$20,000,000 (2016: HK$Nil) which is interest-bearing at 2% T(ZE—RF  E)AFERE2EFE
per annum (2016: N/A). The amount due to the director is interest (Z2—RF:TEA) I - BHEERK
free. BRER -
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25 Convertible notes 25 AR EE
On 20 December 2013, the Company issued a three-year, 2% RZE—=%5+ZA=Z+H KAFAM
per annum convertible note with a principal amount of AATEEREITMBE L ERTASES
HK$20,000,000 (the “CN’) to Dr. Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley, a 20,000,000 7T+ = 4 9} 4F F| K2 E
director of the Company. Interest is payable annually in arrears. AR EE (AR ERE]) BEF
XA RTEAR B o
The director has the right to convert, on any business day from EETRREEEEAERRNA ?ﬁ A%
the date of issue of the CN until 5 business days before the ERFETBEHREEERRHA (A=
maturity date, being 20 December 2016, the whole or part only, in NE+ZAZ+H)REZEEH H;ﬁ 5]
multiples of HK$1,000,000 of the principal amount of the CN, into FREHER - Ho272B L7 BB (B
ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion price of M-_E—RNENAFT=BRK 2K
HK$0.272 (adjusted for the share consolidation which was 2 & OFVE 38 B (R MY sE30()i)) #5 7]
completed on 23 September 2016 (see note 30(a)(ii)). #ﬁ REE2 LT DERERNN R LT
i f% (12 A1,000,00078 7T 2 E &) °
As the CN has not been converted, it has been redeemed by the AR BREESAEER KA
Company on 20 December 2016. The director would not demand R-ZE—X i += H +EEZEE
for repayment of the amount owing prior to 20 March 2017. As B -ZAEETZEXKEER=-Z—t
such, the amount has been converted into an unsecured loan due FZA-+BRAERFRIE AL %
to the director and transferred to “amount due to a director”. It DB EBAENZES 2 EK %Eﬁ =
continues to bear interest at 2% per annum. The CN issued has RWHEHREREN—RZRESHE] - E2
been split as to the liability and equity components, as follows: T% BUGF2EFBE -BET2UHBRK
ZEREIRABELERME S FEW
T~
2017 2016
—E—t5F —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 April KRIMA—H 19,759 19,290
Effective interest expense BERMERZ 641 869
Interest paid B FE (400) (400)
Transfer to amount due to a director ERTEN—REEHE (20,000) —
Liability component at 31 March R=ZA=+—Hz&a&#ks = 19,759
The equity component is presented as convertible notes reserve EmEHERmAZ A RIRE R -
within equity. The effective interest rate of the liability component BEHDPCERENEREF411% (=
is 4.11% (2016: 4.11%) per annum. T—NF 411%)
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26 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 26 MEMBMRRERAZHABH
financial position

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (@ REEHBRRRAZEPHE
financial position represents: 15
2017 2016
—E—-t5F AN
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETL
Hong Kong Profits Tax FEEMGH
— Provision for the year (note 6(a)) — FNEAE (K E6a@) 14,422 2,766
— Provision tax paid — B TR (427) —
13,995 2,766
— Balance of profit tax provision —ERBAFEFESREE
relating to prior year b 7S 2,766 —
16,761 2,766
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FESEMEH
— Provision for the year (note 6(a)) — FNEAE (M i 6(a) 10,445 8,644
— Provisional tax paid — BT TESF (8,638) (7,109)
1,807 1,535
18,568 4,301
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26 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 26 MEMBMRARRAZFABH
financial position (Continued) (&)
(b) Deferred tax (b) EEBIIE
()  Deferred tax liabilities recognised: () ERRBZELZFHELE:

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised RNIFAETBERRRER ZIE
in the consolidated statement of financial position and EFRBEBEGELIYERERZ
the movements during the year are as follows: EEHINT -
Depreciation
in excess of
the related Other
depreciation temporary
allowances differences Total
FEBHEE
ERE HMOTRESH aH
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET FET
Deferred tax arising from: LI TR ERE4L 2
I FE B 18 ¢
At 1 April 2015 RZE—HF
mA—H 981 3,399 4,380
Exchange adjustments [E 5 A& (50) (77 (227)
Credited to profit or loss s AB = (M iE6a)
(note 6(a)) — (146) (146)
At 31 March 2016 RZIZE—RF
=A=+—H 931 3,076 4,007
At 1 April 2016 RZT—RF
mA—A 931 3,076 4,007
Exchange adjustments PEE i, 3 2 (57) (189) (246)
At 31 March 2017 RZFE—+F
=A=+—H 874 2,887 3,761
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

26

Income tax in the consolidated statement of
financial position (Continued)

(b)

Deferred tax (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

At 31 March 2017, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax liabilities relating to temporary differences
of approximately HK$27,951,000 (2016:
HK$24,911,000).

Deferred tax assets not recognised:

At 31 March 2017, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
of approximately HK$257,843,000 (2016:
HK$208,516,000) and deductible temporary
differences of approximately HK$15,516,000 (2016:
HK$7,600,000) as it is not probable that future taxable
profits, against which the assets can be utilised, will
be available in any relevant tax jurisdiction or entity. Of
the total tax losses, approximately HK$109,968,000
(2016: HK$68,512,000) will expire within 5 years and
the remaining tax losses of approximately
HK$147,875,000 (2016: HK$140,004,000) have no
expiry date under the current tax legislation.
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(%)

(b)

i FEBLE ()

(ii)

(iii)

AERELEFHBERE

RZE—tF=H=+—
H - AEETERERFERE
#927,951,0008 L (ZF — <
& 124,911,000 70 ) #ERIE
ERIEEE -

RERELZHAEE -

RZE—+tF=ZA=+—
B BREEMAABESH A
EERNEBEEBTATESR
RRERM BT ATEBAE
B MAEBEYER R
TE & 18 %)257,843,0007 JT
(=% — /X %F : 208,516,000
BL) RAT RS R EREL
15,516,000 ;T ( = & — X
% : 7,600,000/ 7T ) T R &
EHEEE -MEBIBAEAE
A+ #9109,968,000% JT( =
T — N 4F 1 68,512,0007% 7T)
BREFANER MHBTH
TE & 18 %)147,875,0007 JT
(= = — /X F 1 140,004,000
B BIBBTH AL ERE
WA -



27 Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the
“Ordinance”). The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF Scheme, certain subsidiaries of the Group and the eligible
employees are each required to make monthly mandatory
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

At 31 March 2017 and 2016, certain employees of the Group had
completed the required number of years of service under the
Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on
termination of their employment. The Group is only liable to make
such payments when the termination meets the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance and the employees’
entitlement is not covered by the aforesaid MPF scheme. At 31
March 2017 and 2016, the Group’s contributions to the MPF
scheme and the accrued interest thereon exceeded the potential
liabilities should the required circumstances specified in the
Ordinance be met.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes covering its full-time PRC
employees. The schemes are administered by the relevant
government authorities in the PRC. The Group and the PRC
employees are required to make contributions based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under
the requirements in the PRC and the relevant government
authorities undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations
of all existing and future retired employees of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC.

27

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f 5 B £ 5h » 19 LB T HIR)

REHRFRKETE

AEBREFERINELE K
PIRRIEE B R IE (% GH1]) BDA
EEERAZEERIBRVERTES
ArEI([aEEE)) - 2R E R H
BUXEAEEZ EREFRNKEE -
RipgRESE AEEETHWEAF
AEREBESBARRIELRER
RGP ETHREZEEREBAR
Z5%I[A &t B FE H AR - & 05 2 58 Bl
R LR & & A MR W A 30,0008 7T °
[ &t 81V 2z R BN B 55 B o

RZE—LFR_F—ARF
— B AEEETEED THZIKD

ERENEZGHEEZBRT A
R MEEANSZE2BETE E
MRBEEAERE- R _F—LF R
E-REZA=+t—H A&EERRE
TR EFHZHFIARERANEES
BREAZGIEEZBEAZBEHEA

(==
=]

o

AEERTBEZHBAR T AESH
2REB2EREHIRKTE - %F
AEATEAERBTHEAEE KEH
K Bl g B AR T B E FTR] E 2 8
AHFERAZETADLIEHEK
1 78 TR P 1 B R S R HE N & [ R B Y
BRrrlz2BRERBRENKERZ
BERBHNEL-
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28 Equity-settled share-based transactions

(@)

Share option scheme adopted on 4 November 2003

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 4
November 2003 (the “Expired Share Option Scheme”). The
purpose of the Expired Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.
Eligible participants of the Expired Share Option Scheme
include full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers (including executive, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company and/
or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers, consultants,
agents or advisers who, in the sole opinion of the Board,
have contributed to the Company and/or such subsidiaries.

Share options are granted to the eligible participants at a
consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.
The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that
no option may be exercised more than five years after it has
been granted. No option may be granted more than 10
years after the date of approval of the Expired Share Option

Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Expired Share Option Scheme and any
other share option plans of the Company at any time shall
not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

28 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(a)

Share option scheme adopted on 4 November 2003
(Continued)

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the
Expired Share Option Scheme and any other share option
plans of the Company (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) to each eligible participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant in excess of 1% of
the number of shares in issue as at the date of grant, are
subject to the Company issuing a circular and the approval
from the Company’s shareholders in a general meeting.

The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Expired Share Option Scheme
(which shall be payable upon exercise of the option) shall be
such price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall
determine, save that such price will not be less than the
highest of (i) the official closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant, which must be a business day; (i) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the nominal
value of a share.

28 REHEERODARRZ &)

(@

R-BE=F+-AWEBEHHAZ
BRERE (2

BTN RRIEE EREKE
FENRARBMEMEMBRER
FRARAERSEARBERE
(BREETE BEERRETE
ZERE)EITERAREEIT IR
MBE MRBEERLBEHLE
M+ - EAAREEBRL BN
TITRM BB 21% BN A FEA
FLULEE BB K RE AR AR
RIERRAE LR -

RIBEC E B ERE 2
s EBBE ERBRMZT
EE(RETERRESN) E
HEFE2RBRE EZERBD
BEROENMRELBERWAR
EXRB)EBIAARKRMAHRZIE
AWEHE: (EOREZERLA
HpAEEXBERIMB MK
PR 2 SF U T B K)o @
BEMUEsERE) -
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28 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(b)

Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016

On 24 February 2016, the Company has adopted a new
share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”).
The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.
Eligible participants of the New Share Option Scheme
include full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers (including executive, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company and/
or any of its subsidiaries and any consultants, agents or
advisers who, in the sole opinion of the Board, have
contributed to the Company and/or such subsidiaries.

Share options are granted to the eligible participants at a
consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.
The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that
no option may be exercised more than five years after it has
been granted. No option may be granted more than 10
years after the date of approval of the New Share Option
Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the New Share Option Scheme and any
other share option plans of the Company at any time shall
not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

28 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(b)

Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016
(Continued)

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the New
Share Option Scheme and any other share option plans of
the Company (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) to each eligible participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant in excess of 1% of
the number of shares in issue as at the date of grant, are
subject to the Company issuing a circular and the approval
from the Company’s shareholders in a general meeting.

The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the New Share Option Scheme (which
shall be payable upon exercise of the option) shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of (i)
the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, which must be a business day; (i) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (jiij the nominal value of a
share.

28 REHEERODARRZ &)

(b)

R-ZBE-—ARE-_AZ+HAKEH
ZEBRRETE (&)

B AT R AR I ¥ R A AT 8l
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BT SEEIRETEZE
PeE) BITER A RERT 2RO A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %2 B i8R R MisT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)
28 Equity-settled share-based transactions 28 RgEROBARKRSZ &)

(Continued)

(c) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed ) REBE-E—tER-ZZE—XE
during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as =SA=1+t—HLEEFREZRY
follows: RRREGDOT :

Number of Contractual
options life of options
BREZ
BREHE EHEH
(restated)
(RE)
Options granted to directors: BTEF2HERE
— on 2 March 2011 - E——F=FA_H 2,345,000 5.0 years4
— on 10 March 2016 —RZE—A"F=ZA+H 18,211,359 5.0 years4F
20,556,359
Options granted to Chief Executive Officer 1% F 17K 48 &, 2 B AR #% -
— on 10 March 2016 —-R-_E—XF=ZA+H 18,211,359 5.0 yearstE
Options granted to employees: BTREE 2B :
— on 2 March 2011 - R-E——F=A_H 8,090,250 5.0 yearsfF
Options granted to suppliers/consultants: % T i f& ],/ 8 9 2 B8 AR 42 -
— on 22 February 2012 —RZE—ZF=A
—+=A 6,894,300 5.0 years4
Total share options i A% FE 1B 2K 53,752,268
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28 Equity-settled share-based transactions

28 REHEERODARRZ &)

(Continued)
(d) The number and weighted average exercise prices of d BREFERMEFGTEEN
share options are as follows: T:
2017 2016
—E—t5F —E—RF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
g5 N9
TEE BREHR TR E HBREHAE
HK$ HK$
B JETT
(restated) (restated)
(g&E:5)) (se&E5))
Outstanding at the REYHKRTITEE
beginning of the year 0.1784 43,317,018 0.5076 17,329,550
Expired during the year R F R E) Hf 0.4239  (6,894,300) 0.5628 (10,435,250)
Granted during the year RERKEH N/A RiEH — 0.1320 36,422,718
Outstanding at the end of A 4& 1K KR 1T{E
the year 0.1320 36,422,718 0.1784 43,317,018
Exercisable at the end of R F LK AT 1T{E
the year 0.1320 36,422,718 0.1784 43,317,018
The options outstanding at 31 March 2017 had an exercise RZE—t+tF=ZHA=+—HEX
price of HK$0.1320 (2016 (restated): HK$0.1320 to ITEERE Z1TEE B0.13208
HK$0.4239) and a weighted average remaining contractual T(ZE—=RFHEEF]) : 01320

life of 3.94 years (2016: 4.30 years).

BILE0.423978 7T) - MNEFHF
BALYFHA3UFE(ZZT — X
£ 1 4.304F) °
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28 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(e)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted on 10 March 2016 is measured based on a
Binomial Lattice model. The contractual life of the share
option is used as an input into this model. Expectations of
early exercise are incorporated into the model.

The significant assumptions made in deriving the fair value
of the share options granted on 10 March 2016 are as
follows:

Fair value at measurement date HK$0.0305
Share price (restated) HK$0.1320
Exercise price (restated) HK$0.1320
Expected volatility (expressed as weighted 58.13%
average volatility used in the modeling
under Binomial Lattice model)
Option life (expressed as weighted average 5.0 years
life used in the modeling under Binomial
Lattice model)
Expected dividends Nil
Risk-free interest rate 1.39%

The number and exercise prices of the options and the
share price of these options at the grant date as disclosed
in (c), (d) and (e) above are adjusted to reflect the effect of
share consolidation, which was completed on 23 September
2016 (see note 30(a)(ii)).
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RERDBREZEEBRRSE A
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AERZF-AE=At+ARE
BREZAFERBAIELEAR
R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

/|

On 28 December 2012, the Company, Bravo Media Limited (“BML”)
and Beauty University Management Limited (“BUML”) entered into
an investment agreement with an independent third party,
pursuant to which the independent third party subscribed new
shares in BUML, representing 20% of the enlarged issued share
capital of BUML, at a cash consideration of HK$20,000,000.
Further details of this transaction were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 28 December 2012.

Prior to the issue of new shares under the investment agreement,
BUML was a wholly-owned subsidiary of BML which is wholly-
owned by the Company. Upon the issue of new shares in BUML
on 28 March 2013, the Group’s effective interest in BUML was
reduced from 100% to 80%. This change in the Group’s interest
in BUML did not result in a loss of control over BUML and was
accounted for as an equity transaction, whereby adjustments
were made to reflect an increase in non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$3,508,000 and an increase in other reserve of
approximately HK$16,492,000 at the date of issue of the new
shares in BUML.

29 Other liabilities 29 &

b B &

X

ZE-—ZF+ZAZ+NB- XA
A] * Bravo Media Limited ([BML]) % 3= &
REBEBARARA([EBARE]EB
BRI UREBZE B - BUE=
77 LA IR % X {8 20,000,000/ 7T iR B8 & B
REBZHBRM NEBABEREADH
TRAZ20% - RIER B2 #E—FTHIB
BERARBEAE-TE——-—F+=A
Z+NBZRMHA -

BERERBBZRITHRMDA - EBEXRE
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TTN\BBEITEERENKRMN®E K&
ENEEANE 2 BEBREREZEB100% 5 2
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29 Other liabilities (continuead)

Pursuant to the investment agreement, in the event that BUML
fails to procure the listing of its shares or the listing of the shares
of an entity holding the business of BUML on an internationally
recognised stock exchange with the market capitalisation size of
such listing of not less than HK$200,000,000 on or before 28
December 2017, the independent third party shall have the right,
but not an obligation, to request the Company to purchase all of
the shares of BUML then held by the independent third party for
HK$20,000,000 (the “Put Option Right”) within 90 days from the
receipt of the written notice by BUML from the independent third
party to communicate its intent to exercise the Put Option Right (the
“Put Option Notice Period”). If the Company fails to purchase all of
the shares of BUML then held by the independent third party for
HK$20,000,000 within the Put Option Notice Period, then BML
and/or the Company shall be obligated to take up and fulffill
BUML's obligations in relation to the Put Option Right under the
investment agreement within 90 days from the end of the Put
Option Notice Period. The fair value of gross liability of
HK$16,444,000 of the Group and of the Company under the Put
Option Right has been accounted for as other liabilities in the
consolidated and Company’s statement of financial position. The
effective interest rate of the other liabilities is 4.00% per annum.
During the year ended 31 March 2017, an imputed interest on the
other liabilities of HK$740,000 (2016: HK$711,000) is recognised
as finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Since the Put Option Notice Period falls within one year from 31
March 2017, the other liabilities presented in non-current liabilities
as at 31 March 2016 have been reclassified as current liabilities in
the consolidated and Company’s statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

30 Capital, reserves and dividends

(@)

Share capital

(i)

Authorised and issued share capital

Authorised:

Ordinary shares:

At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016
and 1 April 2016 of HK$0.01
each

Share consolidation
Increase in authorised share
capital

At 31 March 2017 of HK$0.02
each

Issued and fully paid:

Ordinary shares:
At 1 April 2015
Issue of shares

At 31 March 2016 and
1 April 2016

Share consolidation

Issue of shares

At 31 March 2017

Bein & B

S8 05 5E IR

R-E—tF=ZA=+—-RER
E{80.02/E T

EBRTRARE:

EfilE

R-ZE—HFMNA—H

BITR D
RZZE—RE=ZA=+—-8xK
—Z-REMA—H
B & Bt

BT
R-ZE—+F=A=+—H

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the

Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard

to the Company’s residual assets.

e R SRR MR

30 EX-RBERRE

(@ m’=x
() 2EREZEHTRA
Number of
shares
RH&E
Note ‘000 HK$'000
k=3 T FET
10,000,000 100,000
30(a)(ii) (5,000,000) —
30(a)(ii) 15,000,000 300,000
20,000,000 400,000
1,821,136 18,211
30(a)(iv) 1,821,136 18,211
3,642,272 36,422
30(a)(ii) (1,821,136) —
30(a)(v) 3,642,272 72,846
5,463,408 109,268
TR E AR W ED B
ERk2KE  WHESRETR

BRORARAANE LR —
R-MEBEERELARAZ
HNHpBEZARFMMA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

30 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(@)

Share capital (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Share consolidation

By an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting hold on 22 September 2016, every 2
issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
were consolidated into 1 new ordinary share of
HK$0.02 each (the “Share Consolidation”). Following
the Share Consolidation which has become effective
on 23 September 2016, the authorised share capital
of the Company was HK$100,000,000 divided into
5,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.02 each, of which
1,821,135,954 shares were in issue and fully paid.

Increase in authorised share capital

By an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting on 23 January 2017, the Company’s
authorised share capital was increased from
HK$100,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.02 each to HK$400,000,000 divided
into 20,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each
by creation of additional 15,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.02 each.

Issue of shares in 2016

On 25 September 2015, the Company issued
1,821,135,954 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at a
subscription price of HK$0.10 per ordinary share on
the basis of one new share for every existing share
held (the “Open Offer”), resulting in net proceeds of
approximately HK$175,278,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 5
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30 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(@)

(b)

(©)

Share capital (Continued)

(v) Issue of shares in 2017
On 3 March 2017, the Company issued 3,642,271,908
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each at a subscription
price of HK$0.10 per ordinary share (the “Rights
Issue”), resulting in net proceeds of approximately
HK$352,354,000.

Dividend

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$NIl).

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

Share premium reserve

Under the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands
where a company issues shares at a premium,
whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the
aggregate amount of the value of the premiums on
their shares shall be transferred to share premium
account. The application of the share premium
account is governed by the Companies Laws of the
Cayman Islands.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to
shareholders of the Company out of the share
premium account unless immediately following the
date on which the distribution or the dividend is
proposed to be paid, the Company will be in a
position to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

C B TEIR)
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(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

30 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the share capital and
share premium of the subsidiaries acquired by the
Company through exchange of shares under a group
reorganisation scheme on 4 November 2003. Further
details are set out in the Company’s prospectus dated
10 November 2003.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with accounting policy set out in
note 2(aa).

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options granted to the eligible participants of the
Share Option Scheme recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(w).

Convertible notes reserve

The convertible notes reserve represents the amount
allocated to the unexercised equity component of the
convertible notes issued by the Company recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
convertible notes in note 2(s).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

30 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(©)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(vi)  PRC statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the
PRC enterprises, a PRC subsidiary of the Group,
which is a sino-foreign joint-venture enterprise, is
required to allocate at least 10% of its after-tax profit
but before dividend distribution to the general reserve
until the reserve has reached 50% of their registered
capital. The general reserve can only be used, upon
approval by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital. The
appropriation for the year amounted to HK$2,658,000
(2016: HK$2,264,000).

The enterprise expansion fund can only be used to
increase capital upon approval by the relevant
authority. Appropriation to enterprise expansion fund
is at the discretion of the board of directors of the
PRC subsidiaries. There was no appropriation during
the year (2016: HK$NIl).

The staff welfare and bonus fund can only be used for
the welfare of the PRC subsidiaries’ employees.
Appropriation to the staff welfare and bonus fund is at
the discretion of the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. For Hong Kong reporting purposes, this
appropriation is charged to profit or loss and included
in other payables and accrued charges in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %24 B f& 3R R Mt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 5 7 7t 87 4] -

30 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

()

(d)

(€

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(vii) Other reserve

Other reserve represents (i) the difference between the
fair value of the consideration received and the
carrying amount of the net assets of BUML attributable
to the non-controlling interests; (ii) the fair value of
gross liability of written put option issued by the
Company in connection with the disposal of 20%
equity interest in BUML that do not result in a loss of
control by the Group (see note 29); and (jii) the excess
of the fair value of consideration received for the
disposal of 25% equity interest in a non-wholly owned
subsidiary over the increase in the carrying amount of
the non-controlling interest.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$436,896,000 (2016: HK$210,756,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes judgements to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

30 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

()

Capital management (Continued)

The capital structure on the basis of net debt-to-capital ratio
of the Group consists of net debt, which includes bank
loans, trade payables, other payables and accrued charges,
amount due to a director, amounts due to related parties,
convertible notes and other liabilities, less cash and cash
equivalents; and capital, which comprises all components of
equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on an annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of debt and cost of capital. Based on the
recommendation of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %24 B f& 3R R Mt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&

SHEEBN

31 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency

risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The

Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity

investments in other entities.

The Group’s exposure to risks and the financial risk management

policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks

are described below.

(a)

Credit risk and concentration risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, trade and other
receivables, loans receivable, interest receivables, amounts
due from joint ventures, amounts due from related parties
and cash and cash equivalents. The maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are usually due within 30 to 90 days from the
date of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

31 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
receivables is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the
industry and country in which customers operate also has
an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group had a certain
concentration of credit risk as 18% (2016: 36%) and 61%
(2016: 60%) of the total trade receivables was due from the
largest customer and the five largest customers respectively.
Management does not expect any significant losses from
trade debtors that have not been provided for other than
impairment loss on bad and doubtful debt as set out in note
18(b).
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the

receivables are set out in note 18.

The Group’s other receivables at 31 March 2017 comprise
mainly amounts due from business partners and
consultants, advances to staff and trade deposits amounting
to approximately HK$90,646,000 (2016: HK$93,207,000) in
total. Should the counter parties default in settling the
payments and/or providing services, the Group may suffer
financial losses. However, the directors consider that these
amounts are fully recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

31 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (Continued)

(@

Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

For loans and interest receivables, the Group manages and
analyses the credit risk for each of the new and existing
borrowers before standard payment terms and conditions
are offered. If there is no independent rating, the Group
assesses the credit quality of the borrower based on the
borrower’s financial position, past experience and other
factors. For loans principal exceeding a predetermined
amount, the Group holds collateral against these loans
receivable and interest receivables in the form of guarantee
executed by the guarantor. Individual risk limits are set
based on the value of collaterals provided by borrowers, if
required, and internal or external ratings in accordance with
limits set by the directors. The credit quality classification of
loans receivable and their respective interest receivables as
at 31 March 2017 using the Group’s credit rating system is
set out in the table below:

Performing EB1TH
Doubtful xR
Loss 518

The Group considers the loans and respective interest
receivables as doubtful if the repayment of principal and/or
of interest has been overdue and principal, accrued interest
and/or future interest may not be fully secured by the
collaterals. The Group considers the loans and respective
interest receivables as loss if the repayment of principal and/
or of interest has been overdue for more than 12 months
and the collection of principal and/or of interest in full is
improbable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

31 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

The Group estimates and recognises impairment losses for
the loans and interest receivables considered as “doubtful”
and “loss”, taking into account of the fair values of collaterals
which are inadequate to cover the loans and interest
receivables. The amount of doubtful and loss of loans and
interest receivables were HK$1,500,000 as at 31 March
2017.

The Group performs collective assessment of the loans
receivable considered as “performing” by grouping together
all its receivables with similar credit risk characteristics. The
impairment review is carried out on all those loans and
interest receivables based on the historical impairment rates.
Since the historical impairment rate is zero during the
current year, the management therefore considers that the
collective impairment loss is HK$Nil as at 31 March 2017.

The amount of provision for impairment is monitored by the
management on a monthly basis.

Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers
constituted approximately 33% and 93% of the Group’s
loans receivable balance respectively as at 31 March 2017.

The directors consider that the credit risk arising from the
loans receivable is significantly mitigated by the collaterals
held, if required.

In respect of the amounts due from joint ventures and
amounts due from related parties at 31 March 2017
amounting to approximately HK$Nil (2016: HK$3,117,000)
and HK$1,430,000 (2016: HK$1,440,000) respectively, the
Group may suffer financial losses if the joint ventures and
related parties default in settling the payments. However,
the directors consider that these amounts are fully
recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

31 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (Continued)

(@

(b)

Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

Substantially all the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are
deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited as the majority
of counterparties are financial institutions with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies and
stated-controlled financial institutions with good reputations.

The Group’s investments which are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss together with
certain deposits, are placed with securities brokers, which
management believes it is of higher credit quality.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
Company’s Board when borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

31 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities which are based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments,
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

31 eMIBECSREAREER
YNRZE=RE )

(b)

REBESRAR(E)

TERHFEAEEERABER 2R
HRZHBTANIHE  RED
AMRATRE(BREEAEOF
RHR(HFH)BRERHRZR
TMEFHEZFBNR) EAKE
ARAXNZZF SRS

2017 2016
ZB-tF —T-RF

More than

Total Within Total Within 1 year

contractual 1 year contractual 1 year but less

Carrying undiscounted oron  Carrying  undiscounted oron than

amount cash flow demand amount cash flow demand 2 years

BHARER  1FAK AHARRE  1FRSR 1FHEAE

FEHE ReRsRR EZ% HHE HeR28E [EEX 2R

HK$’000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FET FET FELT  TET FHET FET FET

Bank loans BIIER 67,731 (67,731) (67,731) 24,055 (24,055) (24,055) -

Trade payables FERTE SHIE 38,938 (38,938) (38,938) 39,693 (39,693) (39,693) -

Other payables and accrued £ fts J& {5 278 |2

charges [t ER 130,449 (130,449)  (130,449) 64,201 (64,201) (64,201) -

Amount dugto adirector BN —ZEEHE 20,338 (20,338)  (20,338) 37 @7) (37) -
Amounts due to related ERNBEALTHE

parties 37,308 (37,308) (37,308) 46,366 (46,366) (46,360) =

Convertible notes ARREE = = = 19,759 (20,400)  (20,400) -

Other liabilities Hit8 & 19,237 (20,000) (20,000) 18,497 (20,000) - (20,000)

314,001 (314,764)  (314,764) 212,608 (214,752)  (194,752) (20,000)
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31 Financial risk management and fair values of

financial instruments (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank

deposits, loans receivable, bank loans and convertible

notes. Deposits placed and borrowings issued at variable

rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow

interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by

management is set out in (i) below.

(i)  Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s net deposits/(borrowings) (being bank

deposits less net interest-bearing financial liabilities or

vice versa) at the end of the reporting period.

Variable rate deposits:
Bank deposits and cash
at bank

Net fixed rate borrowings:

Loans receivable
Amount due to a director
Bank loans

Convertible notes

Total net deposits

TR
RITHF R IRTT
Re

ELEEFE
& W & 3K

e —REERRIA
RITER
Qe

7 30F 5
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)
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() RERAEK
AEEzMERBREZRB IR
TR BRER  RITERRATR
BEH - BEFR2ERLIERFE
REBBLZEBESSAEH
EXBRSREMNERBEAFE
MERRE AEEHEEEEER
Z M EABE R T) °
() FERAE
TRHFMLAEERZHMAR
Z2HERUEE) FEE (AR
GRAMEcmEEFE
R INR) 2 R RBE o
2017 2016
—E2—+tF —E-RF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
B A= TR &
% HK$°000 % HK$’000
FHETT FEIT
1.22% 123,279 1.51% 49,200
8%-54% 59,921 N/A 1@ —
2.00% (20,000) N/A i@ A —
5.32% (67,731) 4.40% (24,055)
N/A R E A - 411% (19,759)
(27,810) (43,814)
95,469 5,386




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

31 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2017, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Group’s profit after tax and
decreased/increased the Group’s retained profits/
accumulated losses by approximately HK$925,000
(2016: HK$369,000). Other components of equity
would not be affected (2016: HK$Nil) by the changes
in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after-tax
and retained profits/accumulated losses assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the
end of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at that date. The 100
basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the next
annual reporting date. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2016.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is not exposed to significant currency risk as
most sales, income, purchases and expenses are
denominated in the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

31 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (Continued)

(e)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (see note 17).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on both the Main
Board and the GEM of the Stock Exchange. Decisions to
buy or sell trading securities are based on daily monitoring
of the performance of individual securities and other industry
indicators, as well as the Group’s liquidity needs. The
portfolio is diversified in terms of industry distribution, in
accordance with the limits set by the Group.

At 31 March 2017, it is estimated that an increase/decrease
of 5% (2016: 5%) in equity price, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased the Group’s
profit after tax and decreased/increased the Group’s
retained profits/accumulated losses by approximately
HK$4,905,000 (2016: HK$1,776,000). Other components
of consolidated equity would not be affected (2016: HK$NIl).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits/
accumulated losses) and other components of consolidated
equity that would arise assuming that the changes in the
stock market index had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to
equity price risk at the end of the reporting period. It is also
assumed that the fair values of the Group’s equity
investments would change in accordance with the historical
correlation with the relevant stock market index and that all
other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 5

as

BRAN - 9 T R)

31 Financial risk management and fair values of

financial instruments (Continued)

®

Fair value measurement

(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial

instruments measured at fair value at the end of the

reporting period on a recurring basis shall be categorised

into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into

which a fair value measurement is classified is

determined with reference to the observability and

significance of the inputs used in the valuation

technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using

only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices

in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

at the measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using

Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to

meet Level 1, and not using significant

unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

31 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The following table illustrates the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial

31 eRIBE-sEAREER
YNRZRI=RE )

) 2DFEFEGE)

() BAFEABZZHBEE
(&)

RFEER(E)

TRERAEESBTIAL
AFEHEEL

instruments:
Fair value measurement
AFEFE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—#& E-® E=ER &5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FEIT FAETT FAETT FAEIL
At 31 March 2017 R-ZT—+tF
=A=+—H
Listed equity securities in -~ R & 2 £ AR AR
Hong Kong EH 117,493 — — 117,493
Unlisted convertible bonds A& 2 3k £
in Hong Kong ez e - - 14,309 14,309
Unlisted equity fund outside F & BNz IE L
Hong Kong RARER - 7,944 - 7,944
117,493 7,944 14,309 139,746
At 31 March 2016 RZZB-—XRF
=HA=+—H
Listed equity securities in =~ REFE Z F A
Hong Kong s 42,530 — — 42,530

During the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

31 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (Continued)

()  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets measured at fair value (Continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements:

The fair value of the unlisted equity fund was
determined with reference to the net asset value of the
fund which are provided by the broker.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements:

The fair value of the unlisted convertible bonds of
approximately HK$14,309,000 at 31 March 2017
represents the aggregate of the fair value of the bonds
as if they do not include a conversion option and fair
value of the conversion option embedded in the
convertible bonds.

The fair value of the bonds as if they do not include a
conversion option is determined using discounted
cash flows method. A discount rate of 9.29% is
applied. The fair value measurement is negatively
correlated to the discount rate.

The fair value of the conversion option embedded in
the convertible bonds is determined using Binomial
Lattice model and the significant unobservable input
used in the fair value measurement is the expected
volatility. An expected volatility of 70% is applied. The
fair value measurement is positively correlated to the
expected volatility.

The above fair values were determined by the
directors of the Company with reference to valuation
carried out by an independent valuer.

e R SRR MR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

81 Financial risk management and fair values of N eWMIAZEMEAREERER

financial instruments (Continued) NEEE)
()  Fair value measurement (Continued) f AFEFEGE)
(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value (Continued) () BAFEFEZTHEE
(&)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements: EHE=RANFEFAEZE
(Continued) #(4E)
Movement in fair value measurements within Level 3 FRNE=FRNZAFHEFTE
during the year are as follows: BEHIIT
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Financial assets TREE
At 1 April REA—H - -
Payment for purchases BENR 12,000 -
Unrealised gain recognised in REZTFERZARER K
profit or loss 2,309 —
At 31 March R=A=+—H 14,309 —
The unrealised gain above are included in “net L REBRWETAREE
unrealised gains on financial assets at fair value ma[EFEFEIBENEAT
through profit or loss” under “turnover” in the Bt ABRZERMEEZR
consolidated statement of profit or loss. IR W FRE] -
(i)  Financial instruments carried at other than fair (i) LHZEIFEINFZE/T
value A
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial AN 55 [ 9% B AR S B B AR B
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not eI ARmEREAER
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March TE—+HFERE—RFE=
2017 and 2016. A=+—BZzAFEIES
RER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

32 Commitments

(@)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2017 not (@)
provided for in the consolidated financial statements

are as follows:

Authorised but not contracted for
— acquisition of remaining 50% equity
interest in Wealthy Sound Limited

Contracted but not provided for
— capital injection into a joint venture
— acquisition of property, plant and
equipment

32 AiE®)

R=-B—t+tFE=ZA=+—-—BXE
TMARGEMBERRBEZE
AAEEMT
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FAET
EREBRETY
—WEEEBERAAIBT
50% % 2N #E - 375
DET41B KRB
—m—HeEELEILTE - 6,000
— B - SRR
1,424 1,424
1,424 7,424
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %24 B f& 3R R Mt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B 51 + ¥ A& T oI 7R)

32 Commitments (Continued)

(o) At 31 March 2017, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

Within 1 year 15K
After 1 year but within 5 years 1FZEFER

The Group is the lessee in respect of certain properties
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to ten years, with an option to renew the lease
when all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are usually
increased every one to four years to reflect market rental.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

33 Contingent liabilities

At 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 5 Z#KRER A 7
Annual Report 2016/17 FER &

32 EAiE®)

(b)

R-ZE—tE=A=+—H 'R
BAUHELLEHEENFZ2BE
BREAESFZOT :

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
28,576 26,875
45,343 30,180
73,919 57,055

AEELAREHERTETYE
ZEBA - HE-—RONTHH—
ETF UEEBERENEBMA
FREETHE - HENTBE
B-—ZWNFEMEN ARBRT
SiEe MEHEERIAEE -

33 HAEE

i =A
-8 $Elﬁﬂiﬁi RER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

34 Business combination

(@)

(b)

()

Acquisition of | Pro Medical Skin Care Centre Limited

On 12 June 2015, Creative Time Investments Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, acquired the entire
equity interests in | Pro Medical Skin Care Centre Limited
(“iPro”) from an independent third party (the “iPro Vendor”)
and all debts owned by iPro to the iPro Vendor for a cash
consideration of HK$18,000,000. iPro is principally engaged
in the operation of a beauty centre for the provision of
slimming and beauty services in Hong Kong.

Acquisition of Sun Fung Capital Limited

On 28 April 2016, Trillion Well International Finance
Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
acquired the entire equity interest in Sun Fung Capital
Limited (“Sun Fung”) for a cash consideration of
HK$485,000. Sun Fung is principally engaged in the
provision of money lending services in Hong Kong.

Acquisition of Wealthy Sound Limited

On 23 May 2016, Sau San Tong (Beijing) Investments
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with the other joint
venturer for the acquisition of the remaining 50% equity
interest in Wealthy Sound Limited at a cash consideration of
HK$4,119,000. Upon completion of this acquisition, Wealthy
Sound Group, which were joint ventures prior to this
acquisition, becomes subsidiaries of the Group. The
Group’s interests in joint ventures was treated as disposed
of and reacquired at fair value on the date of obtaining
control. As a result, a gain on remeasurement of interests in
joint ventures to fair value amounting to HK$1,633,000 has
been recognised and is included in other net income (see
note 4).

34 EHEH

(@)

(b)

(c)

WBEHXAEEARAT

RZE—RFEFATZH XK
£ B 2 & [ B 2 7] Creative Time
Investments Limited #t — & & 32
=HTERHERFDKBENHER
EEBERQAF(TENRD 228K
TEZREWNERERER M
HE®  H 2K ER18,000,000/8
T ERNEFTERBEENELE

BROLAIBHEERERTRE

W g TR E (M) BRAA

RZE—-—R"FHA=Z+NH" &
EE2ENBARS B HERT
AR A [l IR & K E485,000%
TR E (BN BR A A
(T3] c 2B RAIER - FIE
FTERBANRSRENERS -

WESBERLF

RZE—-—R"FRA=-Z+=H &
£ E = & W B 2 7 Sau San Tong
(Beijing) Investments Limited &2 H th
AETERBERITVUEE R
LABR & X 84,119,000 7T I 8 &
AR DB 8 T50% 8 2N i & o
IHIEW B EKE - SBEE (RE
RBBERREERE)KRARAE
BrrzEWBRAA - AEBRE
B 2w AR R BUE R
BEHRATEELE REHK
Bo-Elt EFIE6EbEER
A 1B 2z 1,633,000 7T E
WR - Wt AHE AU A FRE (R
iE4) -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (K 5= & s£ B 51 + 5 A% 7T 51l 7R )
384 Business combination (Continued) 34 ¥BEOE
(d) Fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities arising d REURBEAEEZTEREER
from the acquisitions as at the respective dates of EEAFEMT :

acquisition is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—XEF
Wealthy
Sound
Sun Fung Group Total iPro
g EEE &t B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TET

Property, plant and equipment — #1% - #22 R & — 216 216 2,476
Trade receivables B E 5 I - - - 4,029
Deposits, prepayment and other 24 ~ T8 {5 7018 K& E b

receivables FEW IR 23 3,161 3,184 1,102
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBESEEY 5 1,343 1,348 3,497
Other payables and accrued H th FE A~ 7008 K FE BT

charges =333 (138)  (11,245) (11,383) (30)
Shareholder’s loan REE X — — - (5,862)
Deferred income iR E WA - (2,218) (2,218) (9,638)

Fair value of net identifiable FrEEr#r aE

liabilities assumed bR IA/NS S ] (110) (8,743) (8,853) (4,426)
Fair value of previously held BEMEBEEEZ

interests NEE - 4,372 4,372 —
Goodwill arising on acquisition U B8 &= 4 7 2 595 8,490 9,085 16,564
Assignment of a shareholder’'s #E:Z— ZRER 2 E X

loan - - - 5,862

Total consideration, satisfied by AR & X 2 X8
cash B 485 4,119 4,604 18,000

Net cash outflow/(inflow) arising W E4 2R & mH~

on the acquisitions: (RN 58
Cash consideration paid EAEERE 485 4,119 4,604 18,000
Less: deposits paid in prior year i : £ F 2 HiE 4

(note 15) (Krzt15) = (4,119) (4,119) -
Less: cash and cash equivalents & : Frit BB IR & &

acquired ReEED 5) (1,343) (1,348) (3,497)

480 (1,343) (863) 14,503

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 6 5 Z#ZBRER AT

192 Annual Report 2016/17 FER&



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (f 5 B £ 5h » 19 LB T HIR)

34 Business combination (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities arising
from the acquisitions as at the respective dates of
acquisition is as follows: (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs of HK$50,000 (2016: HK$184,000)
arising from acquisition is included in “general and
administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

The goodwill arising on these acquisitions is attributable to
the expected synergies, earnings growth, future market
development and the assembled workforce of the acquirees.
These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwiill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identified intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is expected
to be deductible for tax purposes.

Impact of acquisitions on the results of the Group:

In 2017, Sun Fung contributed HK$5,947,000 to turnover
and profit of HK$4,867,000 to the Group’s result for the
year. Wealthy Sound Group contributed HK$8,864,000 to
turnover and loss of HK$6,667,000 to the Group’s results
for the year.

34 ¥¥%E0t5

(d)

()

REWNBEHELAZTRAEER
BEAFENT : (&)

W B B 4 2 YR 4R B8 X 7K 50,000
L (= ZF — /N F 1 184,000 Jr)
Bt AGRABERP 22— M RIT
Bz

HEEBELEZHEBERNK
WHETT 2 TR H 1 (R e - & IR
R -AREMGHEREKEERT %
FMBEIREFEDHER D
R EI KW B#R 2 EE
EZHERIZE -

BELBREBEE2HERERS
AEMBR B A -

BEEAEEXREAZRE

RZE—tF HBEAAEEF
N ¥ B B R & % 585,947,000%8
7T R 3 #114,867,0008 T o B &
8,864,000 % 7T K& & 186,667,000 %
5T o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

34 Business combination (Continued)

()

Impact of acquisitions on the results of the Group: (Continued)

Had these business combinations been effected on 1 April
2016, Sun Fung would have contributed HK$5,947,000 to
turnover and profit of HK$4,746,000 to the Group’s results
for the year; and Wealthy Sound Group would have
contributed HK$9,337,000 to turnover and loss of
HK$5,096,000 to the Group’s results for the year. This pro-
forma information is for illustration purposes and should not
be viewed as an indication of the result of operations that
would have occurred if the acquisition had been completed
on 1 April 2016.

In 2016, iPro contributed HK$18,673,000 to turnover and
profit of HK$6,477,000 to the Group’s resullts for the year.

Had this business combination been effected on 1 April
2015, iPro would have contributed HK$23,634,000 to
turnover and profit of HK8,473,000 to the Group’s results
for the year. This pro-forma information is for illustration
purposes and should not be viewed as an indication of the
result of operations that would have occurred if the
acquisition had been completed on 1 April 2015.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 6 5 Z#ZBRER AT
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34 ¥(BE/E

)

WERAEEMERCVE: (&

BELEEBEHR T —F
MA—R4A® FESAAEE
Z N R B R E ¥ 55,947,000
7 7T N i F4,746,00078 7T ¢ &
BEBASALASEZFRNER
& Bh 2 % %89,337,000/8 7T & &5 1B
5,096,000% 7T It ## & & BHE 1E
HEAAR TEESGARKWE
EPFR_T—ANFHA—HBHZEK
R BEEREIBZE -

RIE—XNE ENARERZ
FREE B RS 3£%18,673,000%8
JT X3 R 6,477,0005% JT ©

REEKAHN -_ZT—RAENA
—REM BERgRAEEZHF
R 248 B Bl & 3£ 58.23,634,000% 7T
K i %118,473,000/8 L o L EE &
HEEHRPBRZE TEHERAR
BWEEER S —RFNA—
AT EEXECIRET-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 4 sE B3 5] -

35 Changes in ownership interest in a subsidiary
without change of control

On 14 September 2016, Sau San Tong Holdings Inc., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, disposed 25% of the issued
shares of a wholly-owned subsidiary, Sau San Tong Investment
Holdings Limited (“SSTIHL”), for a consideration with a fair value
of HK$9,254,000 to an independent third party (“SSTIHL
Purchaser”). The carrying amount of the non-controlling interests
in SSTIHL as at the date of disposal was a deficit of
HK$2,309,000. As a result, the Group recognised a decrease in
non-controlling interests of HK$2,309,000 and an increase in
equity attributable to owners of the Company of HK$11,563,000.
The effect of changes in ownership interest in SSTIHL is
summarised as follows:

Carrying amount of non-controlling interest disposed
Fair value of consideration received from holders of

non-controlling interests (note) NFE M)
Excess of consideration paid recognised in other BHEREZRF

reserve within equity Eg

Note: The consideration was satisfied by the allotment and issue by the
SSTIHL Purchaser, whose shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange, of 115,680,000 shares at market price of HK$0.10 per share.
On 14 September 2016, the quoted market price is HK$0.08 per share.

BB TTIIR)

35

HE IR R 2 BREE
IR R A AR EZ

EHEYEDSE 2 — HH B
RAEEEESZEE

RZE—ARFNLA+TEHE ARAEE
Bff B8 /A &) Sau San Tong Holdings Inc. 6] —
%ﬁ’”’k*ﬁ(ﬂ\%%_ﬁ&ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁj)

AR F{E 59,254,000 T 2 R B H &
%;éWE“—TV%E&@WH&%@“
Al (e FE2RETER]) 225% 2 FHTR
M-EHFEREERNEEBRZHE
%R 2= 2 AR B & &S 42,309,000 4
7o Bk - AEBERIETRERR D
2,309,000 7t R AR~ EHEB A FEAG HE

51 HN11,563,0008 7T ° & 5 & R B %
PEEEESE S ERMmn T
HK$'000
FET
2,309
9,254

HifEmER e REZ

Wi - REBHEIERELERE H(
R RBTAIZR ) B
115,680,000 % 1 {& & & % 0.
IR Ef/—\inﬁ
HRE A FR0.08 T
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

36 ZRBWNBEHNEBARWBEE

36 Acquisition of assets through acquisition of a

subsidiary

On 18 January 2017, the Group acquired the entire equity interest
in Achieve Plus Investments Limited (“Achieve Plus”).

Achieve Plus is principally engaged in property investment and its
major asset is an office property in Hong Kong classified as an
investment property which was intended to lease out to
independent third party subsequent to the end of the reporting
period.

In the opinion of the management, the acquisition is in substance
an acquisition of the investment property, instead of an acquisition
of business and therefore is excluded from the scope of HKFRS 3
“Business Combinations”. Therefore, the acquisition was not
disclosed as a business combination in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 3.

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed through this
transaction are as follows:

Investment property HEME
Deposits 7k

BRERE R

B 5 fE B AR IR

Shareholders’ loan
Current tax payable

Assignment of a shareholder’s loan

BEX 2 aRE

Total consideration satisfied by cash

WEEEZHRER
ENREKE

Net cash outflow arising from acquisition:
Cash consideration paid

BE-E2RRZER

R-FB—tF—A+N\B AEBWE
KWREARAF (RN 2 2 8EA

T
S o
g

L

KNETEREBEREDERE M B
BERBRIBREREMEZ -—BER
WMAEME  ERRNBEHRRETE
NE=F e

ERERA BRI EERKHR
anE MENEES REBANE
AR R EOR R A O] 2
Bl o Bt - OB B 3 AR R B B
BREEUBIR I RERBELEBA
Bt -

BRAURZAREZEERAAEZ
BEWMT :

HK$'000
TBT

8,001
5
(4,924)
(6)

3,076
4,924

8,000

8,000
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)
37 Material related party transactions and 37
balances

(@) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,

including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as

disclosed in note 7 and senior management, is as follows:

Directors

Directors’ fee

Salaries, allowances and other benefits

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses

Senior management

Salaries, allowances and other benefits

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan

E=x
o ERREMET

EXFEAEIRZREER

@ FEEEBAEME

AEBTEEEABZHME (B
ME7TMRBECH TARRESEZ
RERENTERERAEZR

FE R FOR G 8 2 5K

f o A8 E IR A 9 AR X

BREEAS
oo ERREMET

FE R RE 8l 2 5K

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).
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2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHTT FAETT
398 181
3,480 3,067
36 50
= 1,111
3,914 5,309
3,600 1,842
18 41
3,618 1,883
7,532 7,192

Rt ATE TR (R K

5(0)) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

37 Material related party transactions and 37

balances (Continued)

(b)

Other related party transactions (b)

In addition to the financing arrangements as mentioned in
notes 22, 24 and 25, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions during the year:

[ —BIFERERFEAA

non-controlling interest HEEm

Sales of goods to a holder of

Sales of goods to a holder of non-controlling interest were
made at similar terms as the Group grants to other
customers.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the statements
of financial position and in notes 14, 21 and 24.
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BABEALRS
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZT—RHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET F# T
34,058 40,492

M—-RFEREEREABEESR
mlOBRAEERTHEMER 28
PSR AEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B b + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

38 Financial information of the Company

(@)

Statement of financial position

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Other payables and accrued charges
Amount due to a director
Convertible notes

Other liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Other liabilities

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

38 AAFUHKER

(@) BERRE

2017 2016
—Z2—+tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAETT
kRBEE
REBRARIZRE 4 4
RBEE
L IENEIE 564,699 218,424
FERRE e REMER
B 13,546 12,592
HekBeSEY 211 48,448
578,456 279,464
REBaE
FE I B A B 5B 4,656 2,793
EtEMNFIBERETEA 1,579 1,754
JER—REEHIA 21,046 547
BE:S E87 - 19,759
EmaE 19,237 —
46,518 24,853
REBEEFH 531,938 254,611
EEAERRBER 531,942 254,615
kRBEE
EmaE - 18,497
EEFRHE 531,942 236,118
B HE
& 2 109,268 36,422
&t 1 422,674 199,696
EREHm 531,942 236,118
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

388 Statement of financial position of the 38 ARATHBER 2
Company (Continued)

(b) Movements in components of equity b)) ®EZZDP2EH
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual )‘5/\\ KEEKRRD AP ZE R R B D
components of equity during the year are as follows: & BE)FEBOAT

Share-based  Convertible
Share Share payment notes Other  Accumulated Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses equity
RGAH TAREES
RE  RHEE i R HtfRfE  RHER ERLE
Note  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
fiit FELT  TERT FET FET  TET FELT  THERT

At 1 April 2015 R-ZE-1%
A-H 18,211 342,030 727 1,214 (16,444) (221,397) 130,741

Changes in equity for 2016: —&— XF 2 %

25!
Loss and total comprehensive 4 W E1E | 2 H B 18
loss for the year ek - - - - - (72,123)  (72,123)
Equity-settled share-based ~ EHZEERMH
transactions R 28 - - 2,200 - - - 2,222
Expiration of share options B [k # [E 7% 28 - - (5,179) - - 5179 -
Issue of shares BTl 30(a)(v) 18,211 163,902 - - - - 182,113
Share issue expenses R BT X 30()(iv) - (6,835) - - - - (6,835)
At 31 March 2016 RZB-RE
=B=+-H 36,422 499,097 4170 1,214 (16,444) (288,341) 236,118
At 1 April 2016 R-B-AE
A—-H 36,422 499,097 4,170 1,214 (16,444) (288,341) 236,118

Changes in equity for 2017: —Z—tF 2%

29
Loss and total comprehensive R BER 2 EE
loss for the year ECkS) - - - - - (56,530)  (56,530)
Redemption of convertible ~ FEE A 1Ak 2%
notes 25 - - - (1,214) - 1,214 -
Expiration of share options B R IEE M 28 - - (1,948) - - 1,948 -
Issue of shares EL i 30@)(v) 72,846 291,382 - - - — 364,228
Share issue expenses AR B 1TB X 30@)(v) - (11,874) - - - - (11,874)
At 31 March 2017 RZE-t%
ZA=+-H 109,268 778,605 2,222 —  (16444)  (341,709) 531,942
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B £ 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

39 Subsidiaries’ information 39 B~ AER

RZE—+F=ZA=+—H KA 7
BEEXBEERATINBERAR(ABILAR
(/NI IV [ B - DY N ARVl 11 03
v B EBEBFBLABRRGABMAE
RAzEE2RBOEEEZ KBS BEIEH
SN TR EER AL B - ZEWE

At 31 March 2017, the Company had direct or indirect interests in
the following subsidiaries, which are private limited companies or,
if established/incorporated outside Hong Kong, have substantially
the same characteristics as a Hong Kong private limited company.
The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. The
particulars of these subsidiaries at 31 March 2017 are set out

below: AREAR—ZE—+F=ZRA=+—H2zH
BT -
Proportion of
effective
ownership interest
ERBRERELD

Place of Particulars of issued
Name of company operations and paid up capital Direct  Indirect Principal activity
NEER B BRTRARKRAHE E# B TZEH
Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands:
REBBXHSIMAL -
Sau San Tong Holdings Inc. Hong Kong 1,000 shares of US$1 each 100% —  Investment holding

i 1,000 BREE 1% T2 K RERR
Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% —  Investment holding

i 1REREEIZT2RH RERR
Smartime International Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% —  Investment holding

i 1REREEIZT2RE RERR
Sau San Tong China Investment Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 100% —  Investment holding

i 100 BREE 1T RH RERR
Wise Fortune Holdings Corp. Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each 100% —  Investment holding

Bk 10REREEIET KA RERR
Sau San Tong China Development Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each 100% —  Investment in securities and

investment holding

i 10REREEIETZ KA REREFRRERR
Gold Lane International Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 100% — Inactive

i 100 BREE 1T RH ome%
Victory Assets Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 100% —  Investment holding

i 100 BREE 1T RH RERR
Concept de beauté Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each 100% — Inactive

i 10REREEIETZ KA ome%
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Name of company
ARER

Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands: (Continued)
REBEXHEHAMAL - ()

Linstitut Sau San Tong de la recherche scientifique de
beauté (en France) a Limited

BML

Gold Platform Holdings Limited

Creative Time Investments Limited

Briliant Concept Co. Ltd.

Bright Rainbow Investments Ltd.

Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Limited (“SST(SH)') (note (i)

()

Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute (Hangzhou) Limited
(“SST(HZ)")

Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Development Ltd. (‘SST(SHD)")
(note ()) (Az2()

Sau San Tong (Beiiing) Investments Limited

Machiko Enterprises Inc.

39 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued)

Place of
operations

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
i

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BRARBERAZE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %2 B i8R R MisT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

39 B AER®)

Proportion of
effective
ownership interest

ERARRRRLS

Direct  Indirect Principal activity
E& B TEEHR

100 shares of USH1 each 100% — Inactive

1008 REE I Z T2 R S

1 share of US$1 each 100% — Investment holding
1REREEIZ T RH REER

10 shares of US$1 each 100% — Investment holding
10RERAEEIETEN REER

100 shares of US$1 each 100% — Investment holding
1008 REEIZ T2 KR REER

1 share of US$1 each
1hekaE1ETIRA

100 shares of US$1 each
100RERABIETZR

1,000 shares of US$1 each

- 100%  Investment holding
REER

- 100% Provision of management consultancy services

7 REERHARE

- 50%  Investment holding

1000 SRAEIET 2 REG REER

100 shares of US$1 each
100RERABIETZR

10 shares of US$1 each

0RERAEIRTZ KR

100 shares of US$1 each
100RERABIETZR

100 shares of US$1 each
100RERABIETZR

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 5 Z#KRER A 7
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- 51%  Investment holding

7 RAZR

- 50% Inactive
Eae¥

- 100%  Investment holding

7 RAZR

- 100%  Investment holding

7 RAZR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B £ 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

39 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued) 39 MBEARIER »®)
Proportion of
effective
ownership interest
ERBRERELD
Place of Particulars of issued
Name of company operations and paid up capital Direct  Indirect Principal activity
NEEB EEHY BRETRARKRAFHE E# BE FZER
Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands: (Continued)
REBBEXHEAMAL  (B)
Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute (Shenzhen) Limited ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each - 51% Investment holding
(SST(S2)") A 100REREBIZET IR RAZR
Yield Soar Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each - 100%  Investment holding
BE 1REREEIZT RN REER
Silver Ally International Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% —  Property holding
RHARBRAT BE 1REREE I ZT RN BENE
Siver Shore Holdings Limited (note (i) (42 i) Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% — Investment holding
BE 1REREEIZT RN REER
Win Ease Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% —  Investment in securities
BEERLA BE 1REREEIZT2RH RERES
Incorporated in the United States of America (‘USA”):
REFZEFE([ZE)) MR -
Sau San Tong Rodeo Drive Beauty Scientific Research USA 1 share of US$1 each 100% — Inactive
Institute Limited *H 1REREEIZT2RE BEE%
Incorporated in Hong Kong:
REFHMA YL -
SCO Talent Search Company Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% — Inactive
BRATERERAA BE 1R 1 BEE%
Sau San Tong Beauty Figure Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100% Sale of health and beauty products and
BFEBRRA B 10,000 & 3 investment holding
HERBREREMRRERR
Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited Hong Kong 100 shares - 100% Inactive
EFERAERERAT BE 1008k & £ BEE%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %2 B i8R R MisT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B 51 + ¥ A& T oI 7R)

39 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued) 39 MBABER &
Proportion of
effective
ownership interest
ERBERERELD
Place of Particulars of issued
Name of company operations and paid up capital Direct Indirect Principal activity
ACET EEHY BREARARKRAHE E# B TZEH

Incorporated in Hong Kong: (Continued)
REBAMAYL : (8)

Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim Institute  Hong Kong 18,750 shares - 100% Provision of beauty and slimming services
Limited i 18,7501k & (7 REXARYERS

BHEREXTRREERETLER]

Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim Institute  Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
(TST) Limited o 10,0008 B 3 REXARBERE

ERERRXRRRARRE L (RDE)ERAF

Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Healthy Trim Institute  Hong Kong 100 shares - 100% Provision of beauty and slimming services
(Causeway Bay) Limited ik 100 B 13 RUZARGERE

EHEBEXAREEERHPL(REL) BRAA

Sau San Tong Management Limited Hong Kong 100 shares - 100% Provision of management consultancy services
BEIEERERAA i 1008k & 3 REEEZARE

SST Advertising Agency Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100%  Provision of advertising agency services
BEESKEBERAA i 10,0008 & 3 REBSRBRE

Moon Profit Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Investment holding

mEBERAA i 1R RERR

Highlight International Trading Limited Hong Kong 100 shares - 100%  Inactive

SHEARZHERAA i 1008k & f3 HEex

SSTIHL (note (ii)) Hong Kong 100 shares - 75%  Property holding

s ERERR W) i 1008k & 3 BENE

Wealthy Sound Limited (note (iv)) Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100%  Investment holding

FEERAR (M) i 10,0008 & 3 RERR

Winic Management Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Investment holding

XNEBERA i 1R RAER

Winner Sight Limited Hong Kong 2 shares - 100%  Inactive

BRARAH i 2R 1 HEex

Jadepower International Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Investment holding

BNERERAA i 1R RERR

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 6 5 Z#ZBRER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B £ 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

39 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued) 39 B ATESR (&
Proportion of
effective
ownership interest
ERBRERELD
Place of Particulars of issued
Name of company operations and paid up capital Direct  Indirect Principal activity
NEEB EEHY BRETRARKRAFHE E# B TZEH

Incorporated in Hong Kong: (Continued)
REBAMAL  (8B)

BUML Hong Kong 100 shares - 80% Provision of a proprietary internet platform to

ZEAEZ Bk 100/ Bk 17 promote and sell simming beauty and
health related services and products and
investment holding

RUEER/ETA USERHEEHES
ARARBBZRERER URRE

2l
Starry Crystal Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Investment holding
EERRAA i 1R B o REER
Wide Duo Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 80% Inactive
REERLA it 1R HELR
Trilion Well International Finance Company Limited Hong Kong 1 share - 100%  Investment holding
EREARNBERAA i 1R RERR
Achieve Plus (note (v)) Hong Kong 1 share - 100% Property investment
KA ) i 1R f NERE
Sun Fung (note (iv)) Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100%  Provision of money lending services
& (Wit ) Bk 10,000 R 3 REHERE
iPro Hong Kong 10,000 shares - 100%  Provision of beauty and slimming services
EH T 10,0008 & 3 REZTRERRY

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & & Z#Z=RER A 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

39 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued)

Name of company
ARER

Incorporated in Macau:
REFIAMAL -

Sau San Tong Macau Limited
Ea2(RMBRAT

Incorporated in the PRC:
REFRMAT -

- EA%EERAA T2

(note (i) (Hiz))

LERGRICAEERLR (RAAL)

—ERRIRBARINERAR (—F

—ERBEEEMMERRE (— RN

AR EXAFALRERAT

EEE(LEEEERHAERLT

HARBES(LORRAT

BRRELALRARAR

BXXAEALRBRAR

Place of
operations

Macau
2P

The PRC
q:

The PRC

HE

The PRC
q:

The PRC
q:

The PRC
q:

The PRC

HE

The PRC
q:

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

39

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BRARBERAZE

Registered capital of MOP25,000
& 4 05,00012 P9

Registered capital of US$150,000
H1E 4150,000% T

Registered capital of US$5,000,000
1 45,000,000
Registered capital of HK$3,500,000

1 & 73,500,000 71

Registered capital of HK$3,500,000
1 4 43,500,00075

Registered capital of HK$1,000,000
# i & 451,000,000% 7T

Registered capital of RMB6,000,000
& A A R 6,000,007
Registered capital of RMB500,000

A AR AR #500,0007C

Registered capital of US$200,000
H11 4200,000% T

Registered capital of US$500,000
#1174 4500,000% T

Registered capital of US$300,000
& A30,000% T

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 6 5 Z#ZBRER AT
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e MRS ERR MR

MEBATER &

Proportion of
effective
ownership interest

ERARRRRLS

Direct
EE

Indirect
B#%

9%

50%

51%

51%

51%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activity
EX:3 3

Provision of beauty and slimming services

REXARERRE

Provision of beauty and slimming services

REXARERRE

Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care
products
PREENHREEER

Provision of beauty and slimming services

REXARERRE

Provision of beauty and slimming services

REXARERRE

Provision of beauty and slimming services

REXARERRE

Provision of management consultancy
services and investment holding

REERAARBRREER

Provision of franchise services

REMEAERS

Inactive
Eae¥

Provision of beauty and slimming services

REXARERRE

Provision of beauty and slimming services

REXARERRE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&

SHEEAIN - HLAETHIR)

39 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued) 39 MEARER#)
Proportion of
effective
ownership interest
ERBRERELD
Place of Particulars of issued
Name of company operations and paid up capital Direct  Indirect Principal activity
NEER EEHY BRETRARKRAFHE EE BE FZER
Incorporated in the PRC: (Continued)
R EF AT - (4)
BRI ERENARLA The PRC Registered capital of RMB20,000,000 - 100% Inactive
HE & A& AR #20,000,0007T TEEx
BHESHERAUT)ERAR (note i) (HfEthy) The PRC Registered capital of US$150,000 - 100%  Provision of beauty and simming services and
investment holding
HE & 4150,000% 7T REXARAERBURBERER
EWEEXTDMONERRR note (v) (Witfy)  ThePRC Registered capital of RMB500,000 - 100% Inactive
HE & AR A K #500,0007 BEEx
Note: k3

(i

(i)

()

Although the Group has only 50% ownership in SST(SHD), SST(SH) and
8 —5%F1, a wholly-owned subsidiary of SST(SH), the directors
concluded that the Group has dominant power to direct relevant
activities of SST(SHD) and SST(SH) on the basis of the Group’s control
over the boards of directors of respective companies because of
contractual arrangements with the other shareholders of respective
companies.

The subsidiary was established during the year ended 31 March 2017.

The Group disposed 25% equity interest in this previously wholly-owned
subsidiary during the year ended 31 March 2017 (see note 35).

These subsidiaries were acquired during the year ended 31 March 2017
(see note 34).

The subsidiary was acquired during the year ended 31 March 2017 (see
note 36).

(i)

(i)

()

BEANEEEREABSSTSHD) * S
EH—FBESSTSHzZ2EWE
50% #E & # o M B0 S AE B A A
B2EHEH MEESRALNEE
Imféﬁ LAHJK%@{MEEEQ

%‘J%Z%ETEESST(SHD)&S
Z*EEM@J

ZHBEARREBEE —F
—RIEFERIL ..

AEBR#HEZE_T—tF=A=+—H
ILFEEHEUR 2 EHE R [ 225% 8
AHEz (RLFIEES5) ©

HEMRBARARBE _T—tF=A=
T—BIEFEWRE(RME34) -

ZHBRARAREBEE_T—+tF=A=+
—RIEFEERE(RIMESe) -

S

=
|
=z

(

S
el
L 4t Bt 5B N A

=]

2l 8 it
5 =

92}
=
@

—+F=ZA=+
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B 3R R Mist

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (K 5= & s£ B 51 + 5 A% 7T 51l 7R )

39 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued) 39 MBEARIER &)
TEREINBEAEEEB ERIEER
Eam((EERERD) cMBRARIZE
B TX 2% 2 M BERBMEEMAA

The following table lists out the information relating to the
subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-controlling
interest (“NCI”). The summarised financial information presented

208

below represents the amounts before any inter-company BRI -
elimination.
2017
—E—tfF
SST(HZ)
SST(SH) SST(S2) and its
and its and its subsidiary,
SSTIHL subsidiary, subsidiary, —EBHM
(note) LE—EHB —EBFYl SSTHZ) &
B5%¥ SST(SHR SST(SZ)k: HHB2A
BUML REZR HHEBAR HBAR RA-—ES
ES:pN- (M) EB—EB/ HRHAEL —ESFR M
NCI percentage FEREZEAL 20% 25% 50% 49% 49% 49%
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Non-current assets FEREEE 1,954 47,464 567 2,652 3,670 =
Current assets REEE 11,294 1,230 48,261 353,730 57,640 3,649
Current liabilities TEEE (9,776)  (58,385)  (61,499) (247,879)  (95,242)  (26,148)
Non-current liabilities FRBAaE - - (3,761) - = =
Net assets/(iabilities) BE/(8E)FE 3,472 (9,691)  (16,432) 108,503 (33,932)  (22,499)
Carrying amount of NCI FERER ZEEE 694 (2,423) (8,215) 50,024  (16,626)  (11,025)
Revenue Wz - - 336 2,024,348 11,642 =
(Loss)/profit for the year/period FER/ERE (B,
& ) (1,846) (455) (293) 27,919 (3,276) 86
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2 (B18), /U 25
BE — = (1,224) (6,641) 399 461
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI DIEEFZERER
(B1#8),/ & F (370) (114) (146) 13,681 (1,604) 42
Dividends paid to NCI BEREERER
) = — = 8,453 - -
Cash flows from operating REREEEH RS
activities, net mE 659 (301) 206 43,961 (657) -
Cash flows from investing REREZHZHES
activities, net mE - FE (711) = (384) (663) 545 =
Cash flows from financing REMEEZH RS
activities, net e FE - - — 35,216 = =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&

B EAIN

39 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued)

NCI percentage

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets/(liabilities)

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue
(Loss)/profit for the year
Total comprehensive (loss)/income

(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

Cash flows from operating
activities, net

Cash flows from investing
activities, net

Cash flows from financing
activities, net

FEBRESEDL

FRBEE
REBEE
REAR
FRBAME

BE/(BfE)F

i < REE

Yz
(B8, &7
2EBR) WEeR

DEEFITERER 2
(B18),/ & 7
ENEERERKE

**/ﬁbzfﬁﬁ
FEE

é/ﬁbzfﬁﬁ
R R

RG]
rrfm}rrfm}
o

X Hﬂlﬂ] Fm

\I]]

IE nﬂéé@ﬁzfﬁﬁfn’f% :

R

B TTAIR)

e R SRR MR

Note: The results and cash flow information for the year ended 31 March 2017
presented above represent the results and cash flows from 14
September 2016 (date of partial disposal of SSTIHL) to 31 March 2017.

39 iR RER @)
2016
ZE-RF
SST(SH) SST(S2)
and its and its SST(HZ)
subsidiary, subsidiary, and its
EE—%5 —EBRY subsidiary,
SST(SH) & SST(S7) ke —mE B4
Hif B R HER SSTH)R
BUML &lLE&E— A—E/ EWBAR
YN TR ®EHB Y —EBM
20% 50% 49% 49% 49%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
4,037 351 2,832 6,381 —
11,295 50,374 248,651 59,908 3,740
(10,014) (61,632)  (147,007) (97,344) (26,786)
— (4,008) — - -
5,318 (14,915) 104,476 (31,055)  (23,046)
1,064 (7,457) 47,837 (15217)  (11,293)
3 — 1,572,105 15,396 —
2,192) (4,764) 22,504 480 (166)
— (1,233 (5,684) 459 408
(438) (2,382) 11,026 235 82)
— - 9,494 - -
660 184 (14,388) 481 -
(711) - (733) 580 =
- - (17,217) -
M A ER2IEBE T —LF=A=1+—
HIEFEZEERBERENERT
BT R"ERATHBEHOLEEE
FEREEROBE)ZE-_ZE-—LF=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

40 Accounting estimates and judgements

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors used in
applying the Group’s accounting policies have a significant impact
on the Group’s financial position and operating results. Some of
the accounting policies require the Group to apply estimates and
judgements, on matters that are inherently uncertain. The critical
accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies are described below.

(@) Depreciation and amortisation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation and amortisation charge for the property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets, after taking into
account the estimated residual value. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of the
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of
similar nature and functions. It could change significantly as
a result of technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management will
increase the depreciation and amortisation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

(b) Impairments

In considering the impairment loss that may be required for
certain property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
investments in subsidiaries and goodwill, recoverable
amount of the asset needs to be determined. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less costs
of disposal and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely
estimate fair value less costs of disposal because quoted
market prices for these assets may not be readily available.
In determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement relating to items
such as level of turnover and amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of
items such as turnover and operating costs.
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(b)

ER#E

AEBEEEGBFNBKEERE
EWME BELREBRELEE
ZEFAERFHRARTER
BHEER A DREERD
BEEUZME HERREBNIE
WEEERAERFHZBEL
BEL - ARKRMEH REFY
FOREATEBHRRRZTH

PRERGEFEDR MEREK
EMFEREHER  HEKH
B SMUR B B ek h B R BT
ERERIFRE 2 EE -

A=l

ERAEARE TWE  BER
B CEBEEE RWBARZE
BEREEELREBEY AL
FTEEAKRESE ATKE S5
AATFTERDEXNEFEREE
MEZERE ARZSEEZ
3% B R W AT BE R ELAS - B
NEEGBFHAFERLEERR-
ETTRAEERN BEEACE
MRS REMREZHRE  AY
EEBKIREERASBEEE
BEHEAHE - AEEFEH—
PR BER ARG 2 E R E E Ak E
THEAEBNSE RERERE
KA BREELDGHTREEE
RSN AEIRB EH TR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R & B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B 71 + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

40 Accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

(b)

(©)

Impairments (Continued)

Impairment losses on loans receivable, interest receivables
and trade and other receivables are assessed and provided
based on the directors’ regular review of ageing analysis
and evaluation of collectability. A considerable level of
judgement is exercised by the directors when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each
individual borrower/customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss would
affect the operating results in the year and in future years.

The carrying amounts of the above assets have been
disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position
and related notes.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in
tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet
used and temporary deduction differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future profit will be available against
which the unused tax credit can be utilised, management’s
judgement is required to assess the probability of future
taxable profits. Management’'s assessment is constantly
reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognised
if it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

40 ST E R H E )

(b)

(©

e ()

EWER BRMNEURE S E
o Bl R R B U EL At FROR 2 BB &S
BIORBEEEERRIKRE DN
Ko 7] U [B] 1 R E R AT A R B
- BEERTHSENERA T
P 258 KB E WA 88 1
HEREZHE -

LR EBRZIEBRE T EARNF
ERARRFREZEEEE -

P EEZFEHEEDREEMB
MR R BB PR

i 18 B

EEMERBEIREETRS
Z AR BE IR J7 2 R B A% AR A
ZERBELHE - AREFEERF
EXHRBEE THEST
MBHEX - AR S 2 W EIE
TAEHEHREZE Ut EMAA
WG EG EE o

EEBBEETRAS BB IAE
BRERMNNEBER - BRZ
FREHBAEEEANEAEAR
KBEFASERRBARBAER
BEZBEATHER AEEER
AE IR R FE SRR B ) 2 7] BE MLy
AEHHE BEREEFNGSEY
RS o fiW A] BE A R R B AR B e Al
RN R EE R Y E - RIER
BIMNMELEHIBEE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

40 Accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Inventory provision

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses,
projections of expected future saleability of goods and
management experience and judgement. Based on this
review, write-down of inventories will be made when the
carrying amounts of inventories decline below their
estimated net realisable value. Due to changes in customers’
performance, actual saleability of goods may be different
from estimation and profit or loss could be affected by
differences in this estimation.

The carrying amount of inventories has been disclosed in
the consolidated statement of financial position and note 16.
Fair value of financial assets under Level 3
measurements

The fair value of unlisted convertible bonds is determined by
using valuation techniques including reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis and option pricing model. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 5

41 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 March

2017

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March
2017 and which have not been adopted in these consolidated
financial statements. These include the following which may be

relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 7
BB EANETHR (BT A)

Amendments to HKAS 12
E 5B ERIZ 12958 (BT &)

Amendments to HKAS 40
BB GF R FE 405 (BFTA)

Amendments to HKFRS 2

R BWEEAF25E (BFTA)

HKFRS 9
BB RE LR BN

HKFRS 15 and amendments to
HKFRS 15

EEMBHRELERF15HE REE
B i R AR 1555 (BT )

HKFRS 16
BB REERE16H

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 cycle
EENBHRELN —_T—NEFEE
T -RFRHAZFEIE

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

e R SRR MR

RSN - A TTHIR)

41 BE=-E—+tHE=ZHA=+—
HIEFEFEEEMENREN
ZIERTA - FHEARZRED
EEEZTE
HEAGAMBRETREY E8g
HMABCEMSBEEE T —+

ZA=Z+t-RALEFERRERAR
ZEGAMBHRRAKRKAZE T
RIARNHER - ER BRI TAIAEER
SEERZEE:

Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative'
Reneaxr  HEE

Income taxes: Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses'

PR MABREBEERECHAEE'

Investment property?

REWE?

Share-based payment: Classification and measurement of share-based payment
transactions?
RONK: RONKR G2 DB RETE?

Financial instruments?
TE T A2

Revenue from contracts with customers and clarifications to HKFRS 152

EPAHWARE B REERFE 155

WX E 2
/_7\—‘3'%/%

Leases®

HES

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities — Clarification of the scope of
the standard?
EEMBHRELNF12RREXNEMBE  #G — BFREHE?

! N_E—+tHF-A-Bz&RARzF

EERM AR -

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. 2 RZE-—NF-—A—Hk2ERBEZF
JEHBRE AR A o

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. s RZE-—NF—-—A—BZERBZF
EEM AR -
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41 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 March
2017 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far the Group has
identified some aspects of the new standards which may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below. As
the Group has not completed its assessment, further impacts may
be identified in due course and will be taken into consideration
when determining whether to adopt any of these new
requirements before their effective date and which transitional
approach to take, where there are alternative approaches allowed
under the new standards.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for
financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets, calculation of
impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. On the
other hand, HKFRS incorporates without substantive changes the
requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments and the classification of financial liabilities.
Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories
for financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and (3) fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) as follows:

o The classification for debt instruments is determined
based on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument is
classified as FVTOCI then effective interest,
impairments and gains/losses on disposal will be
recognised in profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B 71 + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

41 Possible impact of amendments, new 41 BE=—EE—tFE=HA=1+—
standards and interpretations issued but not HIEFEEEMEERER
yet effective for the year ended 31 March ZIEFTAXR - FHEARZRER
2017 (Continued) BREXZEE 5
HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued) EAUBREERNFOR ¢ IT A

(%)
(a) Classification and measurement (Continued) (a DERIEE)

° For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL . M ARZFBHEMS  THmE 2
regardless of the entity’s business model. The only EAMEEEEX LI B A
exception is if the equity security is not held for trading BAFEFAEZ - E—f
and the entity irrevocably elects to designate that SN B IR IR AN B 5 W IR
security as FVTOCI. If an equity security is designated VEBEE NZE AT HE H
as FVTOCI then only dividend income on that security BB THZESIRAFES
will be recognised in other comprehensive income A H At 2 E W as o fif B AN 7
without recycling. FEEEREAFEGT AR

thEmEmWEFTE - BIEZE
HFZREBAKREMEE
WEHEAER M T-EEEE
170

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group expects RIBH LG REBEFEHAIR

that its financial assets currently measured at amortised cost BRI A A MR A FEH AE

and FVTPL will continue with their respective classification BT EZEMEEBRNKNED

and measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9. R EEBFIOFREELRH
ZoEEE -

The classification and measurement requirements for EEMBEHREELFIHREB TN/

financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 largely unchanged from BEZHERTEHTEHEZTES

HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value FFERIEIFARAB ERFEAE

change of a financial liability designated as FVPTL that is BBV BRMEERFIORET I

attributable to changes of that financial liability’s own credit SREEAFEERBEEM

risk to be recognised in other comprehensive income (without BEEARABRAFETFAERZZ %

reclassification to profit or loss). A more detailed analysis is MEEATEZE ERAEME

required to determine the extent of the impact. HWEANER(TAIEFHEEE
W) REBEFTEEFZDMNNAR
ERBIEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B R KR M5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

41 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 March
2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred
loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit loss”
model. Under the expected credit loss model, it will no
longer be necessary for a loss event to occur before an
impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required
to recognise and measure expected credit losses as either
12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit
losses, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. This new impairment model may result in an
earlier recognition of credit losses on the Group’s trade
receivables, loans receivable, interest receivables and other
financial assets. However, a more detailed analysis is
required to determine the extent of the impact.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue,
which covers revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of
services, and HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specified
the accounting for revenue from construction contracts. The
Group is currently assessing the impacts of adopting HKFRS 15
on its consolidated financial statements. Based on the preliminary
assessment, the Group has identified the following areas which
are likely to be effected:
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B 71 + 9 LA 7T I 7R)

41 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 March
2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a) Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed in
note 2(z). Currently, revenue arising from the provision of
services is recognised over time, whereas revenue from the
sale of goods is generally recognised when the risks and
rewards of ownership have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the
contract. HKFRS 15 identified 3 situations in which control
of the promised good or service is regarded as being
transferred over time:

(@ When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

(b)  When the entity’s performance creates or enhances
an asset (for example work in progress) that the
customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced;

(c) When the entity’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the entity and the
entity has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %24 B f& 3R R Mt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& 5 A sE B 51 + ¥ A& T oI 7R)

41 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 March
2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

)

(Continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not
fall into any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS
15 the entity recognises revenue for the sale of that
good or service at a single point in time, being when
control has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership is only one of the indicators that will be
considered in determining when the transfer of control
occurs.

As a result of this change from the risk-and-reward
approach to the contract-by-contract transfer-of-
control approach, it is possible that the point in time
when revenue is recognised may be earlier or later
than under the current accounting policy. However,
further analysis is required to determine whether this
change in accounting policy may have a material
impact on the amounts reported in any given financial
reporting period.

(b) Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction price
for the time value of money when a contract contains a

significant financing component, regardless of whether the

payments from customers are received significantly in

advance or in arrears.

Currently, the Group would only apply such policy when

payments are significantly deferred, which is currently not

common in the Group’s arrangements with its customers.

Currently, the Group does not apply such a policy when

payments are received in advance.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 5 A& sE B 41

41 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 March
2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(c) Sales with a right of return

Currently when the customers are allowed to return the
products, the Group estimates the level of returns and
makes and adjustment against revenue and cost of sales.

The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15 will not
materially affect how the Group recognises revenue and
cost of sales when the customers have a right of return.
However, the new requirement to recognise separately a
return asset for the products expected to be returned will
impact the presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position as the Group currently adjusts the carrying
amounts of inventory for the expected returns, instead of
recognising a separate asset.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(m), currently the Group classifies leases
into finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the
lease arrangements differently, depending on the classification of
the lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor and
others as the lessee.

BB TTIIR)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %2 B i8R R MisT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 & £ 83 4h - 19 AB T HIR)

1

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 March
2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that
lessors account for their right and obligations under a lease.
However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases. Instead,
subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise and
measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use”
asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee
will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-
use asset, instead of the current policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis
over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect
not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where
the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be
recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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1

42

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 March
2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a lessee
of leases for properties, plant and equipment which are currently
classified as operating leases. The application of the new
accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in both
assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the
period of the lease. As disclosed in note 32(b), at 31 March 2017
the Group’s future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases amounted to HK$73,919,000 for
properties, the majority of which is payable between 1 and 5 years
after the reporting date. Some of these amounts may therefore
need to be recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding
right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will
need to perform a more detailed analysis to determine the
amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from operating lease
commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into account
the applicability of the practical expedient and adjusting for any
leases entered into or terminated between now and the adoption
of HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.

Comparative figures

As a result of the Share Consolidation and Rights Issue which
were completed on 23 September 2016 and 3 March 2017
respectively (see notes 30(a)(ii) and 30(a)(v)), the loss per share for
the year ended 31 March 2016 has been restated.

41

42

BE-Z—tH&E=ZA=1+-—
HIEFEFEEEMENREN
ZIERTA - FHEARZRED
BREXZEE 5

ERMBHRESENF16RIEE](H)

EXEVBREENFCRBETELE
NEBEAHEEABA)YE  #HE
SZERBIEAKEHE) 285
BB E -TEHERTEHER KT
BERBEHBEMREM TXEHEE
HERNGAEaRERRAI o&BHE-
WM AR ERE R —tF
ZA=+—HB AEERTAHHLE
MEBETHRYEXBREEHAENRA
73,919,000 7T - B REH AR RS
B —Z2hFRAXMN Bt —BK
MBEBMBRMEERE165 & TZE
HEMEEERLSEEAE  WHHHE
EEREEE KERYEAITERR
FEZERBEREREEENT BT B
HEERFEIGH BB L HKRIEZ
FRHEERMBZE2EHARZE &
B EETEARFMAZOMAEER
EMBERBTBHmEENFIGHERLL
HMEREMEECHEERBESE -

BB T

HRDBR=ZZE—A"FALA=+=AR
M TE—+E=ZAZHFR R ZEH
A fF R 3% (R B 52 30(a)(i) K& 30(a)(v))
MREBEE-_Z—R"F=-A=1+—H81
FEZEREBE TEY -

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED 8 B E#ZBRER A A

Annual Report 2016/17 FER &

221



222

CORPORATE INFORMATION A R]E#

_—

Board of Directors
Chairman

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley
Executive Directors

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley
Mr. MUI' Wai Sum

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Takashi TOGO

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. HONG Po Kui, Martin

Ms. CHIU Kam Hing, Kathy

Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred
Company Secretary

Mr. IP Wai Sing

Compliance Officer

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley

Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
Mr. HONG Po Kui, Martin

Ms. CHIU Kam Hing, Kathy

Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred
Nomination Committee

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley

Mr. MUl Wai Sum

Mr. HONG Po Kui, Martin

Ms. CHIU Kam Hing, Kathy
Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 5 E#ZKRER A &
Annual Report 2016/17 £EH%&

Exg
Ed
REMEL
HTES

o E s £+
(EAERZ i

FHITES

RBZ+HE4E

BYFATEES

B 55
We MLt
BlE RS
DEWE
ERBEE
ERFH

REMEL

BERZEEERFMEES

e Ezt
BEREE

REEEE

REMBEL
BERLEE
izhont ;e g
ZERELE



CORPORATE INFORMATION 2~ &]

Authorised Representatives

Dr. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, Shirley
Mr. MUI Wai Sum

Auditor

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
2nd Floor

625 King’s Road

North Point

Hong Kong

Registered Office

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Head Office and Principal Place of
Business in Hong Kong

16th Floor

Prosperity Tower

39 Queen’s Road Central
Central

Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer

Office in the Cayman Islands

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

REAR

ok &S £
BEREREE

% B ED

ABELBSMELAERAA
HE

it A

B EEE255

o1&

AMRER

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

BRSEERERTELEXME

B

HIR
EFREF 395
CREERNE
1612

FMERESTEROBFERE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED & & Z#Z=RER A 7

Annual Report 2016/17 £E®%&

223



CORPORATE INFORMATION A R]E#

-_—

224

Branch Share Registrar and EERARODBFETSE
Transfer Office in Hong Kong

Tricor Standard Limited BEERERRAF

Level 22, Hopewell Centre B

183 Queen’s Road East 2R ANEBHR1835%

Hong Kong E 2218

Principal Banker FEFRBIT

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

RERTT(FE)ERAT

Kwun Tong Plaza Branch REER IR

G1 Kwung Tong Plaza IR 38 6857

68 Hoi Yuen Road HBIEESG1

Kwun Tong, Kowloon BEES ST

The Bank of East Asia Limited RERITAERRAA
iISQUARE Branch GEEDALE|

Shop UGO1 5 FUB 635
iISQUARE B E %S

63 Nathan Road T = B UGO1 5% 3
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon BES DT
Nanyang Commercial Bank B F R
Yaumatei Branch AR

309 Nathan Road 5 ZXE 309 5%
Kowloon S i 53 1T
Website 8 uh

www.sausantong.com

Stock Code

8200

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ 5 Z#Z=RER A 7

Annual Report 2016/17 £EH%&

www.sausantong.com

B A 1SR

8200



c QAN QNP3 57T
i\
v

TN
un@ﬁ&dﬁé&ﬁfj

15592
s

X2k
S
NS

o
Al
ik

wn
P
c
wn
p=d
=
_|
(@)
=
[

pr—

¢ - 1’\; R
! < 4 s .

A

o

Vi &5 2 ERARA S

f / SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED

.”‘l ~

% . 16/F., PROSPERITY TOWER, 39 QUEEN’S ROAD CENTRAL, CENTRAL, HONG KONG

—tt BB DEEE AR LR ARAE S
P

8 2, 726 : '
ﬂ" . ’-.}: ;". \- . “; N \) \ » ) { "(‘»‘)\ .




	封面

	創業板之特色
	目錄
	公司簡介
	本集團財務資料概要
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理人員履歷
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	公司資料
	封底




